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CAUTIONARY NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS
This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains forward-looking statements. Forward-looking statements relate to future events or our
future financial performance. We generally identify forward looking statements by terminology such as “may,” “will,” “should,”
“expects,” “plans,” “anticipates,” “could,” “intends,” “target,” “projects,” “contemplates,” “believes,” “estimates,” “predicts,”
“potential” or “continue” or the negative of these terms or other similar words. These statements are only predictions. We have based
these forward-looking statements largely on our current expectations and projections about future events and financial trends that we
believe may affect our business, results of operations and financial condition. The outcome of the events described in these forwardlooking statements is subject to risks, uncertainties and other factors described in “Risk Factors” in Part 1, Item 1A. of this Annual Report
on Form 10-K. Accordingly, you should not rely upon forward-looking statements as predictions of future events. We cannot assure you
that the events and circumstances reflected in the forward-looking statements will be achieved or occur, and actual results could differ
materially from those projected in the forward-looking statements. The forward-looking statements made in this Annual Report on
Form 10-K relate only to events as of the date on which the statements are made. We undertake no obligation to update any forwardlooking statement to reflect events or circumstances after the date on which the statement is made or to reflect the occurrence of
unanticipated events.
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PART I
ITEM 1.

BUSINESS

Overview
We are a medical device company that develops, manufactures and markets an innovative, discreet and easy-to-use insulin infusion
system for people with insulin-dependent diabetes. Our proprietary OmniPod Insulin Management System, or OmniPod System, which
consists of our OmniPod disposable insulin infusion device and our handheld, wireless Personal Diabetes Manager, is the only
commercially-available insulin infusion system of its kind. Conventional insulin pumps require people with insulin-dependent diabetes
to learn to use, manage and wear a number of cumbersome components, including up to 42 inches of tubing. In contrast, the OmniPod
System features only two discreet, easy-to-use devices that eliminate the need for a bulky pump, tubing and separate blood glucose
meter, provide for virtually pain-free automated cannula insertion, communicate wirelessly and integrate a blood glucose meter. We
believe that the OmniPod System’s unique proprietary design offers significant lifestyle benefits to people with insulin-dependent
diabetes.
The U.S. Food and Drug Administration, or FDA, approved the OmniPod System in January 2005 and we began commercial sale of
the OmniPod System in the United States in October 2005. Since the commercial launch of the OmniPod system, we have progressively
expanded our marketing efforts from an initial focus in the Eastern United States, to providing availability of the OmniPod System in the
entire United States. In January 2010, we entered into a distribution agreement with Ypsomed Distribution AG, or Ypsomed, to become
the exclusive distributor of the OmniPod System in eleven countries. It is expected that Ypsomed will begin distributing the OmniPod
System, subject to approved reimbursement, in France, Germany and the United Kingdom in the first half of 2010, in Australia, Belgium,
Finland, Norway, Sweden, Switzerland and the Netherlands in the second half of 2010 and in China in the first half of 2011. We focus
our sales and marketing efforts towards key diabetes practitioners, academic centers and clinics specializing in the treatment of diabetic
patients, as well as individual diabetic patients.
Insulet Corporation is a Delaware corporation formed in 2000. Our principal offices are located at 9 Oak Park Drive, Bedford,
Massachusetts 01730, and our telephone number is (781) 457-5000. Our website address is http://www.insulet.com. We make available,
free of charge, on or through our Website, our annual reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K,
proxy statements and any amendments to those reports filed or furnished pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange
Act as soon as reasonably practicable after such material is electronically filed with or furnished to the Securities and Exchange
Commission. The information on our Website is not part of this Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2009.
Market Opportunity
Diabetes is a chronic, life-threatening disease for which there is no known cure. Diabetes is caused by the body’s inability to
produce or effectively utilize the hormone insulin. This inability prevents the body from adequately regulating blood glucose levels.
Glucose, the primary source of energy for cells, must be maintained at certain concentrations in the blood in order to permit optimal cell
function and health. In people with diabetes, blood glucose levels fluctuate between very high levels, a condition known as
hyperglycemia, and very low levels, a condition called hypoglycemia. Hyperglycemia can lead to serious short-term complications, such
as confusion, vomiting, dehydration and loss of consciousness; long-term complications, such as blindness, kidney disease, nervous
system disease, amputations, stroke and cardiovascular disease, or death. Hypoglycemia can lead to confusion, loss of consciousness or
death.
Diabetes is typically classified as either Type 1 or Type 2.
• Type 1 diabetes is characterized by the body’s nearly complete inability to produce insulin. It is frequently diagnosed during
childhood or adolescence. Individuals with Type 1 diabetes require daily insulin therapy, typically administered via injections
or conventional insulin pumps, to survive.
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• Type 2 diabetes, the more common form of diabetes, is characterized by the body’s inability to either properly utilize insulin or
produce enough insulin. Historically, Type 2 diabetes has occurred in later adulthood, but its incidence is increasing among the
younger population, due primarily to increasing childhood obesity. Initially, many people with Type 2 diabetes attempt to
manage their diabetes with improvements in diet, exercise and/or oral medications. As their diabetes advances, some patients
progress to multiple drug therapy, which often includes insulin therapy. Recent guidelines, including those published by the
American Diabetes Association in 2006, suggest more aggressive treatment for people with Type 2 diabetes, including the early
adoption of insulin therapy and more frequent testing. It is now becoming more accepted for insulin therapy to be started earlier
in people with Type 2 diabetes, and, in some cases, as part of the initial treatment.
Throughout this Annual Report on Form 10-K, we refer to both Type 1 diabetes and insulin-requiring Type 2 diabetes as insulindependent diabetes.
Managing Diabetes
Diabetes Management Challenges
Diabetes is often frustrating and difficult for patients to manage. Blood glucose levels can be affected by the carbohydrate and fat
content of meals, exercise, stress, illness or impending illness, hormonal releases, variability in insulin absorption and changes in the
effects of insulin on the body. For people with insulin-dependent diabetes, many corrections, consisting of the administration of
additional insulin or ingestion of additional carbohydrates, are needed throughout the day in order to maintain blood glucose levels
within normal ranges. Achieving this result can be very difficult without multiple daily injections of insulin or the use of continuous
subcutaneous insulin infusion, or CSII, therapy. Patients attempting to control their blood glucose levels tightly to prevent the long-term
complications associated with fluctuations in blood glucose levels are at greater risk for overcorrection and the resultant hypoglycemia,
which can cause confusion, loss of consciousness or death. As a result, many patients have difficulty managing their diabetes optimally.
Additionally, the time spent in managing diabetes, the swings in blood glucose levels and the fear of hypoglycemia can all render
diabetes management overwhelming to patients and their families.
Current Insulin Therapy
People with insulin-dependent diabetes need a continuous supply of insulin, known as basal insulin, to provide for background
metabolic needs. In addition to basal insulin, people with insulin-dependent diabetes require supplemental insulin, known as bolus
insulin, to compensate for carbohydrates ingested during meals or snacks or for a high blood glucose level.
There are three primary types of insulin therapy practiced today: conventional therapy; multiple daily injection, or MDI, therapy
using syringes or insulin pens; and CSII therapy using conventional insulin pumps. Both MDI and CSII therapies are considered
intensive insulin management therapies.
Many healthcare professionals believe that intensive insulin management therapies are superior to conventional therapies in
delaying the onset and reducing the severity of diabetes-related complications. As a result, we believe that the use of intensive insulin
management therapies has significantly expanded over the past decade, and that many Type 1 patients manage their diabetes using an
intensive insulin management therapy. A significantly smaller percentage of people with insulin-requiring Type 2 diabetes manage their
diabetes using an intensive insulin management therapy.
The OmniPod System
The OmniPod Insulin Management System was specifically designed to provide people with insulin-dependent diabetes with a
diabetes management solution which provides significant lifestyle and other benefits
3
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and to expand the use of CSII therapy. We believe that the following are important contributors to the success of our OmniPod System:
• Discreet, two-part design. Unlike conventional insulin pumps, the OmniPod System consists of just two discreet, easy-to-use
devices that communicate wirelessly: the OmniPod, a small, lightweight, disposable insulin infusion device worn beneath
clothing that integrates an infusion set, automated cannula insertion, insulin reservoir, drive mechanism and batteries; and the
Personal Diabetes Manager, or PDM, a handheld device much like a personal digital assistant that wirelessly programs the
OmniPod with insulin delivery instructions, assists the patient with diabetes management and integrates a blood glucose meter.
The OmniPod will operate for at least 72 hours (but no more than 80 hours) after it is first activated. We believe our innovative
patented design enables people with insulin-dependent diabetes to experience all of the lifestyle benefits and clinical
superiority of CSII therapy in a more discreet and convenient manner than possible with conventional insulin pumps.
• No tubing. The OmniPod System’s innovative, proprietary design dramatically reduces the size of the insulin delivery
mechanism, thereby eliminating the need for the external tubing required by conventional pumps. As a result of this design, the
OmniPod can be worn discreetly beneath clothing and patients can move, dress, bathe, sleep and exercise without the
encumbrance of the up to 42 inches of tubing required by conventional insulin pumps. In addition to untethering people with
insulin-dependent diabetes, the OmniPod System’s lack of tubing eliminates interruptions in insulin delivery resulting from
kinking, leaking or disconnecting, which leads to more consistent delivery of insulin.
• Virtually pain-free automated cannula insertion. The OmniPod is the only CSII therapy device to feature a fully automated,
hands-free cannula insertion system. This virtually pain-free insertion system features the world’s fastest insertion and the
smallest-gauge introducer needle available for insulin infusion systems. Cannula insertion is activated wirelessly using the
PDM, so the patient never sees or handles an introducer needle, which we believe promotes consistent insertion, reduces patient
anxiety and increases the number of insertion sites available to patients. We believe that the OmniPod’s proprietary insertion
system is a significant differentiating factor for people with insulin-dependent diabetes who are frustrated with the painful and
cumbersome manual insertions required with existing conventional pumps or frequent injections required by MDI therapy.
• Easy to train, learn and use. We have designed the OmniPod System to fit within the normal daily routines of patients. The
OmniPod System requires the fewest steps to start insulin delivery of all CSII therapies on the market by automating much of the
process. In addition, the OmniPod System consists of just two devices, as opposed to up to seven for conventional insulin
pumps. We have also designed the PDM’s user interface to be much more intuitive and user-friendly than those used in
conventional insulin pumps. As a result, the OmniPod System is easier for patients to use, which reduces the training burden on
healthcare professionals. We believe that the OmniPod System’s overall ease of use will make it very attractive to those people
with insulin-dependent diabetes who are frustrated or discouraged by the conventional insulin pumps. We also believe that the
OmniPod System’s ease of use and substantially lower training burden will help redefine which diabetes patients are appropriate
for CSII therapy, enabling healthcare professionals to prescribe CSII therapy to a broader pool of patients.
• Low up-front cost and pay-as-you-go pricing structure. The OmniPod System’s unique patented design and proprietary
manufacturing process have enabled us to provide CSII therapy at a relatively low up-front investment compared to
conventional insulin pumps. While the ongoing cost of OmniPods is greater than the ongoing costs of supplies for conventional
insulin pumps we believe that our pay-as-you-go pricing model significantly reduces the risk of investing in CSII therapy for
third-party payors and makes CSII therapy much more accessible for people with insulin-dependent diabetes.
Sales and Marketing
Our sales and marketing effort is focused on generating demand and acceptance of the OmniPod System among healthcare
professionals, people with insulin-dependent diabetes and third-party payors. Our marketing strategy is to build awareness for the
benefits of the OmniPod System through a wide range of education
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programs, social networking, patient demonstration programs, support materials, media advertisements and events at the national,
regional and local levels. We are using third-party distributors within the United States to improve our access to managed care and
government reimbursement programs, expand our commercial presence and provide access to additional potential patients. In addition,
we entered into a distribution agreement with Ypsomed to become the exclusive distributor of the OmniPod System in eleven countries.
It is expected that Ypsomed will begin distributing the OmniPod System, subject to approved reimbursement, in France, Germany and
the United Kingdom in the first half of 2010, in Australia, Belgium, Finland, Norway, Sweden, Switzerland and the Netherlands in the
second half of 2010 and in China in the first half of 2011. We expect Ypsomed to work with the appropriate agencies to establish an
appropriate distribution and reimbursement process in each of these countries.
Healthcare professional focused initiatives. We believe that healthcare professionals play an important role in selecting patients
for CSII therapy and educating them about CSII technology options. Our marketing to healthcare professionals focuses on positioning
the OmniPod System as an innovative continuous insulin delivery system that makes CSII therapy easier to recommend. We augmented
our healthcare professional focused marketing efforts with market studies to assess various aspects of the OmniPod System’s
functionality and relative efficacy, which we believe assist us in generating additional patient demand for the OmniPod System among
the insulin-dependent diabetes population.
Patient focused initiatives. We sell the OmniPod System directly to patients through referrals from healthcare professionals and
through patient leads generated from our promotional activities and social networking. Our marketing to patients focuses on positioning
the OmniPod System as an innovative continuous insulin delivery system that makes diabetes a smaller part of life and strongly
promotes the lifestyle benefits afforded by the OmniPod System.
Advertising. We promote the OmniPod System and its benefits through targeted advertising in media outlets directed at diabetic
patients, such as television programs and magazines.
Marketing research. In addition to our initiatives focused on healthcare professionals and patients, we also evaluate the benefits of
the OmniPod System in marketing research efforts to assess certain aspects of the efficacy of the OmniPod System.
Distributor arrangements. We have expanded our distribution networks to include relationships with third-party distributors in
order to increase market awareness both within and outside of the United States, improve our access to managed care and government
reimbursement programs and provide access to additional potential patients. In January 2010, we entered into a distribution agreement
with Ypsomed to become the exclusive distributor of the OmniPod System in eleven countries, including nine countries in Europe,
Australia and China. We expect Ypsomed to introduce the OmniPod System to certain European markets, subject to approved
reimbursement, beginning in the first half of 2010.
Training and Customer Support
Given the chronic nature of diabetes, we believe that thorough training and ongoing customer support are important to developing
a long-term relationship with the patient. We believe that it is crucial for patients to be trained as the experts in the management of their
diabetes. At the same time, we believe that providing reliable and effective customer support reduces patients’ anxiety and contributes to
overall product satisfaction. In order to provide a complete training and customer support solution, we utilize a combination of live
training in the office of the healthcare professional, interactive media, as well as online and telephonic support that is available 24 hours
a day, 7 days a week.
Training. We believe that the amount of effort required for healthcare professional offices to train patients to use CSII therapy has
been a key barrier limiting penetration of this therapy. With the fewest steps required to start insulin delivery, compared to conventional
insulin pumps, the OmniPod System was designed to be easy to use and to significantly reduce the burden associated with training
patients to use CSII therapy.
Our training support for healthcare professional offices is tailored to the individual needs of recommending offices. In some cases,
we certify office-based healthcare professionals to train patients on the OmniPod
5
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System through our Certified Pod Trainer Program. In addition, we may assist them with the first customer training as part of the process
of transitioning the ongoing training responsibilities to these healthcare professionals. In other cases, a member of our Certified Pod
Trainer consultant group will conduct the patient training for an office that does not have the capability or capacity to complete patient
training. We have established a network of Certified Pod Trainers, or CPTs, who will conduct customer training at the healthcare site. We
provide all CPTs with a training kit that includes a methodology and documentation for training patients on effective use of the
OmniPod System. We believe the CPT Program is a valuable way for us to develop and maintain relationships with key providers in the
marketplace.
Customer Support. We seek to provide our customers with high quality customer support, from product ordering to insurance
investigation, fulfillment and ongoing support. We have integrated our customer support systems with our sales, reimbursement, billing,
telephone and website in order to provide customers with seamless and reliable customer support.
Our customer support staff is proactively involved with both healthcare professionals and patients. When a patient initiates an order
for the OmniPod System, our customer support staff assists the patient with completing order forms and collecting additional data as
required by the patient’s insurance provider. Once the order forms are complete, we investigate the patient’s insurance coverage for the
OmniPod System and contact the customer to notify them of applicable coverage available under the patient’s insurance. We believe it is
important from a customer satisfaction perspective, as well as a healthcare professional perspective, that we handle the insurance
investigation process accurately, efficiently and promptly, and that we, therefore, are capable of scaling our capacity to meet increasing
demand. We also offer healthcare professionals assistance in generating insurance appeals for customers who are denied coverage. We
believe that our insurance investigation infrastructure will enable us to effectively support the growing demand for the OmniPod System.
Upon approval from the customer, the customer’s order is typically shipped to the customer’s home and our customer support staff
notifies the provider of the shipment date and reviews training plans with the customer. A customer support representative contacts
customers to arrange and schedule subsequent shipments of OmniPod supplies, which are typically shipped every three months. In
addition, patients can be placed on automatic re-order for OmniPod supplies, simplifying the diabetes management process and
preventing patients from experiencing inadvertent supply shortages.
Our third-party distributors generally manage and perform the training and customer support activities for their sales of the
OmniPod System.
Research and Development
Our current research and development efforts focus primarily on the reduction of the size of the OmniPod and reduction of
production costs of the OmniPod System. We are also working toward the integration of our existing OmniPod System with continuous
glucose monitoring technology.
We have agreements with both Abbott Diabetes Care Inc. and DexCom Inc. to develop systems that will enable the OmniPod
System PDM to receive and display continuous glucose data from Abbott’s continuous glucose monitor, the FreeStyle Navigator®, and
DexCom’s continuous glucose monitor, the SEVEN® System. To date, the FDA has approved, as an adjunct to traditional self-testing, a
limited number of continuous glucose monitoring systems, including those manufactured by Abbott Diabetes Care, Inc., Medtronic, Inc.
and DexCom Inc. All of these products have limited capabilities, and none of them is labeled as a substitute for current blood glucose
testing where patients need to draw blood for testing. This means that no continuous glucose monitor, whether currently on the market or
pending FDA approval, can be used to determine insulin infusion amounts. It is unknown when, if ever, any continuous glucose
monitoring systems will be approved as a replacement for current blood glucose monitors.
We believe that the potential uses of our proprietary OmniPod System technology are not limited to the treatment of diabetes. We
plan to pursue the use of the OmniPod System technology for the delivery of other medications that may be administered
subcutaneously in precise and varied doses over an extended period of time. In June 2008, we announced an agreement with Ferring
Pharmaceuticals, of Saint Prex, Switzerland, to
6
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develop the OmniPod System for the delivery of a Ferring drug. Under the terms of the agreement with Ferring, Ferring funded
development of a custom version of the OmniPod’s Personal Diabetes Manager and, upon completion of the development, agreed to
purchase minimum quantities of the OmniPod Systems over a five year period. We received CE mark approval for the DDM System in
September 2009. In January 2010, we received our first purchase order for the DDM System from Ferring. However, there can be no
assurance that we will be able to adapt the OmniPod System technology for further uses or successfully compete in new therapeutic areas.
Manufacturing and Quality Assurance
We believe a key contributing factor to the overall attractiveness of the OmniPod System is the disposable OmniPod insulin
infusion device. In order to manufacture sufficient volumes and achieve a lower per unit production cost for the OmniPod, each of which
is worn for up to three days and then replaced, we have designed the OmniPod to be manufactured through a highly automated process.
We are currently producing the OmniPod on a partially automated manufacturing line at a facility in China, operated by a
subsidiary of Flextronics International Ltd. We purchase complete OmniPods from Flextronics, pursuant to our agreement with
Flextronics. Under the agreement, Flextronics has agreed to supply us, as a non-exclusive supplier, with OmniPods at agreed upon prices
per unit pursuant to a rolling 12-month forecast that we provide to Flextronics. The initial term of the agreement is three years from
January 3, 2007, with automatic one-year renewals. The agreement may be terminated at any time by either party upon prior written
notice given no less than a specified number of days prior to the date of termination. The specified number of days is intended to provide
the parties with sufficient time to make alternative arrangements in the event of termination. By purchasing OmniPods manufactured by
Flextronics in China, we have been able to substantially increase production volumes for the OmniPod and, as a result, reduce our per
unit production cost.
To achieve profitability, we seek to increase manufacturing volume and reduce the per unit production cost for the OmniPod by
collaborating with contract manufacturers and reducing the cost of raw materials and sub-assemblies. By increasing production volumes
of the OmniPod, we have been able to reduce our per-unit raw material costs and improve absorption of manufacturing overhead costs.
This, as well as the continued collaboration with contract manufacturers to reduce the cost of supplies of raw materials and subassemblies
and the installation of automated manufacturing equipment are important as we strive to achieve profitability. We believe our
manufacturing capacity at the end of 2009 is sufficient to meet our expected 2010 demand for OmniPods.
We rely on outside vendors for most of the components, some sub-assemblies, and various services used in the manufacture of the
OmniPod System. For example, we rely on Phillips Plastic Corporation to manufacture and supply a number of injection molded
components of the OmniPod and on Freescale Semiconductor, Inc. to manufacture and supply the application specific integrated circuit
that is incorporated into the OmniPod. Each of these suppliers is a sole-source supplier. To date, we have not experienced significant
disruption of these components and services. For certain of these components, arrangements for additional or replacement suppliers will
take time and result in delays, in part because of the vendor qualification process required under FDA regulations and because of the
custom nature of various parts we design. Any interruption or delay in the supply of components, or our inability to obtain components
from alternate sources at acceptable prices in a timely manner, could harm our business, financial condition and results of operations.
Generally, all outside vendors produce the components to our specifications and in many instances to our designs, and they are
audited annually by our Quality Assurance Department to ensure conformity with the specifications, policies and procedures for our
devices. Our Quality Assurance Department also inspects and tests our devices at various steps in the manufacturing cycle to facilitate
compliance with our devices’ stringent specifications. We have received approval from TÜV America Inc., a Notified Body to the
International Standards Organization, or ISO, of our quality system standards. These approvals are ISO 13485 standards that include
design control requirements. Certain processes utilized in the manufacture and test of our devices have been verified and validated as
required by the FDA and other regulatory bodies. As a medical device
7
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manufacturer, our manufacturing facility and the facilities of our suppliers and sterilizer are subject to periodic inspection by the FDA,
KEMA and certain corresponding state agencies.
Intellectual Property
We believe that to maintain a competitive advantage, we must develop and preserve the proprietary aspect of our technologies. We
rely on a combination of copyright, patent, trademark, trade secret and other intellectual property laws, non-disclosure agreements and
other measures to protect our proprietary rights. Currently, we require our employees, consultants and advisors to execute non-disclosure
agreements in connection with their employment, consulting or advisory relationships with us, where appropriate. We also require our
employees, consultants and advisors who we expect to work on our current or future products to agree to disclose and assign to us all
inventions conceived during the work day, developed using our property or which relate to our business. Despite any measures taken to
protect our intellectual property, unauthorized parties may attempt to copy aspects of the OmniPod System or to obtain and use
information that we regard as proprietary.
Patents. As of December 31, 2009, we had obtained 18 issued United States patents, and had 18 additional pending U.S. patent
applications. We believe it will take up to four years, and possibly longer, for the most recent of these U.S. patent applications to result in
issued patents. Our issued U.S. patents expire between 2020 and 2022, assuming we pay all required maintenance fees. We are also
seeking patent protection for our proprietary technology in Europe, China, Japan, India and other countries and regions throughout the
world. The issued patents and pending patent applications cover, among other things:
• the basic architecture of the OmniPod System;
• the OmniPod shape memory alloy drive system;
• the OmniPod System cannula insertion system; and
• various novel aspects of the OmniPod System and potential next generation OmniPod Systems.
On January 23, 2002, we entered into a development and license agreement with TheraSense, Inc., regarding the incorporation of
the FreeStyle blood glucose meter in the PDM. TheraSense was subsequently acquired by Abbott Laboratories and is currently a whollyowned subsidiary of Abbott Laboratories known as Abbott Diabetes Care, Inc., or Abbott. Under this agreement, we were granted a nonexclusive, fully paid, non-transferable and non-sublicensable license in the United States under patents and other relevant technical
information relating to the Abbott FreeStyle blood glucose meter for the purpose of making, using and selling the OmniPod System
incorporating an Abbott FreeStyle blood glucose meter. On March 3, 2008, we entered into a first amendment of the agreement pursuant
to which the term of the original agreement was extended until February 2013, with automatic renewals for subsequent one-year periods
thereafter, and the license granted therein was extended to cover Israel as well as the United States. In connection with the execution of
the amendment, we received a cash payment from Abbott as an agreement fee. Beginning July 1, 2008, Abbott agreed to pay an amount
to us for services we perform in connection with each sale of a PDM that includes an Abbott Discrete Blood Glucose Monitor to a new
customer. The agreement may be terminated by Abbott if it discontinues its FreeStyle blood glucose meter or test strips or by either party
if the other party is acquired by a competitor of the first party or materially breaches its obligations under the agreement.
In a letter received in March 2007, Medtronic, Inc. invited us to discuss our “taking a license to certain Medtronic patents.” The
patents referenced by this letter relate to technology that is material to our business. We have not had any substantive discussions with
Medtronic concerning this matter since our receipt of this letter. While we believe that the OmniPod System does not infringe these
patents, we would consider resolving the matter on reasonable terms. If we are unable to reach agreement with Medtronic, Inc. on this
matter, they may sue us for infringement. We believe we would have meritorious defenses to any such suit.
In a letter received in September 2009, Becton, Dickinson and Company offered to grant us a license under a certain patent
pursuant to terms to be negotiated. The patent referenced by this letter relates to technology that is potentially material to our business;
however we believe that the OmniPod System does not
8
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infringe this patent. If we are unable to reach agreement with Becton, Dickinson and Company on this matter, they may sue us for
infringement. We believe we would have meritorious defenses to any such suit.
Trademarks. We have registered the trademarks OMNIPOD and the OMNIPOD design with the United States Patent and Trademark
Office on the Principal Register. We have applied with the United States Patent and Trademark Office to register the trademark INSULET.
The INSULET mark is subject to an ongoing opposition proceeding.
Competition
The medical device industry is intensely competitive, subject to rapid change and significantly affected by new product
introductions and other market activities of industry participants. The OmniPod System competes with a number of existing insulin
delivery devices as well as other methods for the treatment of diabetes. Medtronic MiniMed, a division of Medtronic, Inc., has been the
market leader for many years and has the majority share of the conventional insulin pump market in the United States. Other significant
suppliers in the United States are Animas Corporation, a division of Johnson & Johnson and Roche Diagnostics, a division of F.
Hoffmann-La Roche, Ltd.
All of these competitors are large, well-capitalized companies with significantly more market share and resources than we have.
They are able to spend aggressively on product development, marketing, sales and other product initiatives. Many of these competitors
have:
• significantly greater name recognition;
• established relations with healthcare professionals, customers and third-party payors;
• established distribution networks;
• additional lines of products, and the ability to offer rebates or bundle products to offer higher discounts or other incentives to
gain a competitive advantage;
• greater experience in conducting research and development, manufacturing, clinical trials, marketing and obtaining regulatory
approval for products; and
• greater financial and human resources for product development, sales and marketing and patent litigation.
In addition to the established insulin pump competitors a number of companies (including current competitors) are working to
develop and market new insulin “patch” pumps or “multi channel” pump devices (insulin and glucagon). These companies are at various
stages of development. The companies of which we are aware working in this area include Medtronic, Inc., Medingo, Nilimedix, Sensile
Medical, M2 Medical, Phluid Corporation, Calibra Medical, Inc., Valeritas, Inc., Starbridge Medical Systems, Novo Nordisk A/S and
Abbott Laboratories.
The OmniPod System and conventional insulin pumps, both of which provide CSII therapy, also face competition from
conventional and MDI therapy, both of which are substantially less expensive than CSII therapy, as well as from newer methods for the
treatment of diabetes, such as inhaled insulin.
Government Regulation
The OmniPod System is a medical device subject to extensive and ongoing regulation by the U.S. Food and Drug Administration,
or FDA, and other regulatory bodies. FDA regulations govern product design and development, pre-clinical and clinical testing,
manufacturing, labeling, storage, pre-market clearance or approval, advertising and promotion, and sales and distribution.
FDA’s Pre-Market Clearance and Approval Requirements. Unless an exemption applies, each medical device we seek to
commercially distribute in the United States will require either a prior 510(k) clearance or a pre-market approval, or PMA, from the FDA.
We have obtained 510(k) clearance for the OmniPod System. We expect that the product under development by us, integrating
continuous glucose monitoring capability
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with our existing OmniPod System would require a PMA. Both of these processes can be expensive and lengthy and entail significant
user fees, unless exempt.
In order to obtain pre-market approval and, in some cases, a 510(k) clearance, a product sponsor must conduct well controlled
clinical trials designed to test the safety and effectiveness of the product. Conducting clinical trials generally entails a long, costly and
uncertain process that is subject to delays and failure at any stage. The data obtained from clinical trials may be inadequate to support
approval or clearance of a submission. In addition, the occurrence of unexpected findings in connection with clinical trials may prevent
or delay obtaining approval or clearance. If we conduct clinical trials, they may be delayed or halted, or be inadequate to support
approval or clearance.
• 510(k) Clearance. To obtain 510(k) clearance for any of our potential future devices (or for certain modifications to devices that
have received 510(k) clearance), we must submit a pre-market notification demonstrating that the proposed device is
substantially equivalent to a previously cleared 510(k) device or a pre-amendment device that was in commercial distribution
before May 28, 1976 for which the FDA has not yet called for the submission of a PMA application. The FDA’s 510(k) clearance
pathway generally takes from three to twelve months from the date the application is completed, but can take significantly
longer. After a medical device receives 510(k) clearance, any modification that could significantly affect its safety or
effectiveness, or that would constitute a significant change in its intended use, requires a new 510(k) clearance.
• PMA. Devices deemed by the FDA to pose the greatest risk, such as life-sustaining, life-supporting or implantable devices, or
devices deemed not substantially equivalent to a previously cleared 510(k) device or device in commercial distribution before
May 28, 1976 for which PMAs have not been required, generally require a PMA before they can be commercially distributed. A
PMA application must be supported by extensive data, including technical, pre-clinical, clinical trials, manufacturing and
labeling to demonstrate to the FDA’s satisfaction the safety and effectiveness of the device. After a PMA application is complete,
the FDA begins an in-depth review of the submitted information, which generally takes between one and three years, but may
take significantly longer. After any pre-market approval, a new pre-market approval application or application supplement may
be required in the event of modifications to the device, its labeling, intended use or indication or its manufacturing process. In
addition, any PMA approval may be conditioned upon the manufacturer conducting post-market surveillance and testing.
Ongoing Regulation by FDA. Even after a device receives clearance or approval and is placed on the market, numerous regulatory
requirements apply. These include:
• establishment registration and device listing;
• quality system regulation, which requires manufacturers, including third party manufacturers, to follow stringent design, testing,
control, documentation and other quality assurance procedures during all aspects of the manufacturing process;
• labeling regulations and FDA prohibitions against the promotion of products for uncleared, unapproved or “off-label” uses, and
other requirements related to promotional activities;
• medical device reporting regulations, which require that manufacturers report to the FDA if their device may have caused or
contributed to a death or serious injury or malfunctioned in a way that would likely cause or contribute to a death or serious
injury if the malfunction were to recur;
• corrections and removals reporting regulations, which require that manufacturers report to the FDA field corrections and product
recalls or removals if undertaken to reduce a risk to health posed by the device or to remedy a violation of the Federal Food,
Drug and Cosmetic Act that may present a risk to health; and
• post-market surveillance regulations, which apply when necessary to protect the public health or to provide additional safety
and effectiveness data for the device.
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Failure to comply with applicable regulatory requirements can result in enforcement action by the FDA, which may include any of
the following sanctions: fines, injunctions, civil or criminal penalties, recall or seizure of our current or future products, operating
restrictions, partial suspension or total shutdown of production, refusing our request for 510(k) clearance or PMA approval of new
products, rescinding previously granted 510(k) clearances or withdrawing previously granted PMA approvals.
We are subject to announced and unannounced inspections by the FDA, and these inspections may include the manufacturing
facilities of our subcontractors. If, as a result of these inspections, the FDA determines that our equipment, facilities, laboratories or
processes do not comply with applicable FDA regulations and conditions of product approval, the FDA may seek civil, criminal or
administrative sanctions and/or remedies against us, including the suspension of our manufacturing operations. Since approval of the
OmniPod System, we have been subject to FDA inspections of our facility. The inspections resulted in identification of minor items for
correction, some of which were immediately resolved, and we expect that our corrective actions for the remaining items will be
satisfactorily reviewed by the FDA during its next inspection.
International sales of medical devices are subject to foreign government regulations, which may vary substantially from country to
country. The time required to obtain approval by a foreign country may be longer or shorter than that required for FDA approval, and the
requirements may differ. There is a trend towards harmonization of quality system standards among the European Union, United States,
Canada and various other industrialized countries. In April 2009, we received CE Mark approval for our OmniPod System. The CE Mark
gives us authorization to distribute the OmniPod System throughout the European Union and in other countries that recognize the CE
Mark. In September 2009, we received Health Canada approval to distribute the OmniPod System throughout Canada. In January 2010,
we entered into a distribution agreement Ypsomed to become the exclusive distributor of the OmniPod System in eleven countries. We
expect that Ypsomed will begin distributing the OmniPod System, subject to approved reimbursement, in France, Germany and the
United Kingdom in the first half of 2010, in Australia, Belgium, Finland, Norway, Sweden, Switzerland and the Netherlands in the
second half of 2010 and in China in the first half of 2011.
Licensure. Several states require that durable medical equipment, or DME, providers be licensed in order to sell products to
patients in that state. Certain of these states require that DME providers maintain an in-state location. Although we believe we are in
compliance with all applicable state regulations regarding licensure requirements, if we were found to be noncompliant, we could lose
our licensure in that state, which could prohibit us from selling our current or future products to patients in that state. In addition, we are
subject to certain state laws regarding professional licensure. We believe that our certified diabetes educators are in compliance with all
such state laws. If our educators or we were to be found non-compliant in a given state, we may need to modify our approach to
providing education, clinical support and customer service.
Federal Anti-Kickback and Self-Referral Laws. The Federal Anti-Kickback Statute prohibits the knowing and willful offer,
payment, solicitation or receipt of any form of remuneration in return for, or to induce the:
• referral of a person;
• furnishing or arranging for the furnishing of items or services reimbursable under Medicare, Medicaid or other governmental
programs; or
• purchase, lease, or order of, or the arrangement or recommendation of the purchasing, leasing, or ordering of any item or service
reimbursable under Medicare, Medicaid or other governmental programs.
We provide the initial training to patients necessary for appropriate use of the OmniPod System either through our own diabetes
educators or by contracting with outside diabetes educators that have completed a Certified Pod Trainer training course. Outside
diabetes educators are reimbursed for their services at fair market value. Although we believe that these arrangements do not violate the
law, regulatory authorities may determine otherwise, especially as enforcement of this law historically has been a high priority for the
federal government. In addition, because we may provide some coding and billing information to purchasers of the OmniPod System,
and because we cannot assure that the government will regard any billing errors that may be made as inadvertent, the federal antikickback legislation may apply to us. Noncompliance with the federal
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anti-kickback legislation can result in exclusion from Medicare, Medicaid or other governmental programs, restrictions on our ability to
operate in certain jurisdictions, as well as civil and criminal penalties, any of which could have an adverse effect on our business and
results of operations.
Federal law also includes a provision commonly known as the “Stark Law,” which prohibits a physician from referring Medicare or
Medicaid patients to an entity providing “designated health services,” including a company that furnishes durable medical equipment,
in which the physician has an ownership or investment interest or with which the physician has entered into a compensation
arrangement. Violation of the Stark Law could result in denial of payment, disgorgement of reimbursements received under a
noncompliant arrangement, civil penalties, and exclusion from Medicare, Medicaid or other governmental programs. Although we
believe that we have structured our provider arrangements to comply with current Stark Law requirements, these arrangements may not
expressly meet the requirements for applicable exceptions from the law.
Additionally, as some of these laws are still evolving, we lack definitive guidance as to the application of certain key aspects of
these laws as they relate to our arrangements with providers with respect to patient training. We cannot predict the final form that these
regulations will take or the effect that the final regulations will have on us. As a result, our provider arrangements may ultimately be
found to be not in compliance with applicable federal law.
Federal False Claims Act. The Federal False Claims Act provides, in part, that the federal government may bring a lawsuit against
any person whom it believes has knowingly presented, or caused to be presented, a false or fraudulent request for payment from the
federal government, or who has made a false statement or used a false record to get a claim approved. In addition, amendments in 1986 to
the Federal False Claims Act have made it easier for private parties to bring “qui tam” whistleblower lawsuits against companies.
Penalties include fines ranging from $5,500 to $11,000 for each false claim, plus three times the amount of damages that the federal
government sustained because of the act of that person. At present, we do not receive reimbursement from, or submit claims to, the
federal government, although we intend in the future to pursue reimbursement coverage under one or more federal programs, such as
Medicare. In any event, we believe that we are in compliance with the federal government’s laws and regulations concerning the filing of
reimbursement claims.
Civil Monetary Penalties Law. The Federal Civil Monetary Penalties Law prohibits the offering or transferring of remuneration to a
Medicare or Medicaid beneficiary that the person knows or should know is likely to influence the beneficiary’s selection of a particular
supplier of Medicare or Medicaid payable items or services. Noncompliance can result in civil money penalties of up to $10,000 for each
wrongful act, assessment of three times the amount claimed for each item or service and exclusion from the Federal healthcare programs.
We believe that our arrangements comply with the requirements of the Federal Civil Monetary Penalties Law.
State Fraud and Abuse Provisions. Many states have also adopted some form of anti-kickback and anti-referral laws and false
claims act. We believe that we are conforming to such laws. Nevertheless, a determination of liability under such laws could result in
fines and penalties and restrictions on our ability to operate in these jurisdictions.
Administrative Simplification of the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996. The Health Insurance
Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, or HIPAA, mandated the adoption of standards for the exchange of electronic health
information in an effort to encourage overall administrative simplification and enhance the effectiveness and efficiency of the healthcare
industry. Ensuring privacy and security of patient information is one of the key factors driving the legislation. We believe we are in
substantial compliance with the applicable HIPAA regulations.
Third-Party Reimbursement
In the United States, our products are generally reimbursed by third-party payors and we bill those payors for products provided to
patients. Our fulfillment and reimbursement systems are fully integrated such that product is generally shipped only after confirmation of
a physician’s valid statement of medical necessity and
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current health insurance information. We maintain an insurance benefits investigation department which works to simplify and expedite
claims processing and to assist patients in obtaining third-party reimbursement.
We continue to work with additional third-party payors in the United States to establish coverage contracts for the OmniPod
System. Our coverage contracts with third-party payors typically have a term of between one and three years and set coverage amounts
during that term. Typically, coverage contracts will automatically renew for specified incremental periods upon expiration, unless one of
the parties terminates the contract.
We are an approved Medicare provider and current Medicare coverage for CSII therapy does exist. However, existing Medicare
coverage for CSII therapy is based on the pricing structure developed for conventional insulin pumps. We believe that the coding
verification for Medicare reimbursement of the OmniPod System is inappropriate. We continue to seek appropriate coding verification
for Medicare reimbursement. As a result, we have decided to focus our principal efforts in establishing reimbursement for the OmniPod
System on negotiating coverage contracts with private insurers.
Third-party payors may decline to reimburse for procedures, supplies or services determined not to be “medically necessary” or
“reasonable.” In a limited number of cases, some third-party payors have declined to reimburse for a particular patient because such
patient failed to meet its criteria, most often because the patient already received reimbursement for an insulin pump from that payor
within the warranty period, which is generally four years, or because the patient did not meet their medical criteria for an insulin infusion
device. Common medical criteria for third-party payors approving reimbursement for CSII therapy include a patient having elevated A1c
levels, a history of recurring hypoglycemia, fluctuations in blood glucose levels prior to meals or upon waking or severe glycemic
variability. We try to deter and reverse decisions denying reimbursement through education. Although our efforts are usually successful,
such reimbursement may become less likely in the future as pressure increases for lower healthcare costs, particularly near-term costs.
There is widespread concern that healthcare market initiatives in the United States may lead third-party payors to decline or further
limit reimbursement. The extent to which third-party payors may determine that use of the OmniPod System will save costs or will at
least be cost effective is highly uncertain, and it is possible, especially for diabetes, that they will merely focus on the lower initial costs
associated with injection therapy or will otherwise limit reimbursement for insulin infusion systems or other products we develop.
Because of uncertainties regarding the possible healthcare reform measures that could be proposed in the future and initiatives to reduce
costs by private payors, we cannot predict whether reimbursement for our current or future products will be affected or, if affected, the
extent of any effect. The unavailability of third-party coverage or the inadequacy of reimbursement for our current or future products
would adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations.
As part of our distribution agreement with Ypsomed, it is expected that Ypsomed will establish appropriate reimbursement
contracts with third party payors prior to distributing the OmniPod System in each country.
Employees
As of December 31, 2009, we had 276 full-time employees. None of our employees are represented by a collective bargaining
agreement, and we have never experienced any work stoppage. We believe that our employee relations are good.
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ITEM 1A.

RISK FACTORS

Set forth below are certain risk factors that could harm our business, results of operations and financial condition. You should
carefully read the following risk factors, together with the financial statements, related notes and other information contained in this
Annual Report on Form 10-K. This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains forward-looking statements that contain risks and
uncertainties. Please refer to the section entitled “Cautionary Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements” on page 1 of this Annual
Report on Form 10-K in connection with your consideration of the risk factors and other important factors that may affect future results
described below.
Risks Relating to Our Business
We have incurred significant operating losses since inception and cannot assure you that we will achieve profitability.
Since our inception in 2000, we have incurred losses every quarter. We began commercial sales of the OmniPod System in October
2005. Beginning in the second half of 2008, we have been able to manufacture and sell the OmniPod System at a cost and in volumes
sufficient to allow us to achieve a positive gross margin. For the year ended December 31, 2009, our gross profit from the manufacture
and sale of the OmniPod System was $18.3 million. Although we have achieved a positive gross margin, we still operate at a substantial
net loss. Our net losses for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007 were $79.5 million, $94.8 million and $53.5 million,
respectively. The extent of our future operating losses and the timing of profitability are highly uncertain, and we may never achieve or
sustain profitability. We have incurred a significant net loss since our inception, and as of December 31, 2009, we had an accumulated
deficit of $329.9 million.
We currently rely entirely on sales of our sole product, the OmniPod System, to generate revenue. The failure of the OmniPod System
to achieve and maintain significant market acceptance or any factors that negatively impact sales of this product will adversely
affect our business, financial condition and results of operations.
Our sole product is the OmniPod System, which we introduced to the market in October 2005. We expect to continue to derive
substantially all of our revenue from the sale of this product. Accordingly, our ability to generate revenue is entirely reliant on our
ability to market and sell the devices that comprise the OmniPod System. Our sales of the OmniPod System may be negatively impacted
by many factors, including:
• the failure of the OmniPod System to achieve wide acceptance among opinion leaders in the diabetes treatment community,
insulin-prescribing physicians, third-party payors and people with insulin-dependent diabetes;
• manufacturing problems;
• actual or perceived quality problems;
• changes in reimbursement rates or policies relating to the OmniPod System by third-party payors;
• claims that any portion of the OmniPod System infringes on patent rights or other intellectual property rights owned by other
parties;
• adverse regulatory or legal actions relating to the OmniPod System;
• damage, destruction or loss of any of our automated assembly units;
• conversion of patient referrals to actual sales of the OmniPod System;
• collection of receivables from our customers;
• attrition rates of customers ceasing to use the OmniPod System;
• competitive pricing and related factors; and
• results of clinical studies relating to the OmniPod System or our competitors’ products.
If any of these events occurs, our ability to generate revenue could be significantly reduced.
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Our ability to achieve profitability from a current net loss level will depend on our ability to reduce the per unit cost of producing
the OmniPod by increasing our customer orders and manufacturing volume.
Currently, the gross profit from the sale of the OmniPod System is not sufficient to cover our operating expenses. To achieve
profitability, we need to, among other things, reduce the per unit cost of the OmniPod. This can be achieved by increasing our
manufacturing volume, which will allow for volume purchase discounts to reduce our raw material costs and improve absorption of
manufacturing overhead costs. During 2008, we completed construction of a partially automated manufacturing line at a facility in
China operated by a subsidiary of Flextronics International Ltd. Our manufacturing capacity at December 31, 2009 was in excess of
4,000,000 OmniPods per year. If we are unable to reduce raw material and manufacturing overhead costs through volume purchase
discounts and increased production capacity, our ability to achieve profitability will be severely constrained. Any increase in
manufacturing volumes must be supported by a concomitant increase in customer orders. The occurrence of one or more factors that
negatively impact our sales of the OmniPod System may prevent us from achieving our desired increase in manufacturing volume, which
would prevent us from attaining profitability.
Adverse changes in general economic conditions in the United States could adversely affect us.
We are subject to the risks arising from adverse changes in general economic market conditions. The U.S. economy remains
extremely sluggish as it seeks to recover from a severe recession and unprecedented turmoil. The U.S. economy continues to suffer from
market volatility, difficulties in the financial services sector, tight credit markets, softness in the housing markets, concerns of inflation,
reduced corporate profits and capital spending, significant job losses, reduced consumer spending, and continuing economic
uncertainties. The economic turmoil and the uncertainty about future economic conditions could negatively impact our current and
prospective customers, adversely affect the financial ability of health insurers to pay claims, adversely impact our expenses and ability to
obtain financing of our operations, cause delays or other problems with key suppliers and increase the risk of counterparty failures. We
cannot predict the timing, strength or duration of this severe global economic downturn or subsequent recovery.
Healthcare spending in the United States has been, and is expected to continue to be, negatively affected by these recessionary
trends. For example, patients who have lost their jobs may no longer be covered by an employee-sponsored health insurance plan and
patients reducing their overall spending may eliminate purchases requiring co-payments. Since the sale of the OmniPod System to a new
patient is generally dependent on the availability of third-party reimbursement and normally requires the patient to make a significant
co-payment, the impacts of the recession on our potential customers may reduce the referrals generated by our sales force and thereby
reduce our customer orders. Similarly, the impacts of the recession on our existing patients may cause some of them to cease purchasing
OmniPods and to return to MDI or other less-costly therapies, which would cause our attrition rate to increase. Any decline in new
customer orders or increase in our customer attrition rate will reduce our revenue, which in turn will make it more difficult to achieve the
per unit cost-savings which are expected to be attained through increases in our manufacturing volume.
The severe recession has impacted the financial stability of many private health insurers. As a result, it has been reported that some
insurers are scrutinizing claims more rigorously and delaying or denying reimbursements more often. Since the sale of the OmniPod
System is generally dependent on the availability of third-party reimbursement, any delay or decline in such reimbursement will
adversely affect our revenue.
Healthcare reform legislation could adversely affect our revenue and financial condition.
In recent years, there have been numerous initiatives on the federal and state levels for comprehensive reforms affecting the
payment for, the availability of and reimbursement for healthcare services in the United States. These initiatives have ranged from
proposals to fundamentally change federal and state healthcare reimbursement programs, including providing comprehensive healthcare
coverage to the public under governmental funded programs, to minor modifications to existing programs. Recently, President Obama
and members of Congress have proposed significant reforms to the U.S. healthcare system. Both the U.S. Senate
15

Table of Contents

and House of Representatives have passed bills that would substantially reform the provision of healthcare in the United States. Included
as part of this proposed legislation is an excise tax on the medical device industry that would be payable based on revenue, not income.
In addition, recent legislation and these proposed bills include funding to assess the comparative effectiveness of medical devices. It is
unclear what impact the excise tax proposal or the comparative effectiveness analysis would have on the OmniPod System or our
financial results. The ultimate content or timing of any future healthcare reform legislation, and its impact on medical device companies
such as us, is impossible to predict. If significant reforms are made to the healthcare system in the United States, or in other jurisdictions,
those reforms may have a material adverse effect on our financial condition and results of operations.
We may need to raise additional funds in the future, and these funds may not be available on acceptable terms or at all.
Our capital requirements will depend on many factors, including:
• revenue generated by sales of the OmniPod System and any other future products that we may develop;
• costs associated with adding further manufacturing capacity;
• costs associated with expanding our sales and marketing efforts in the United States and internationally;
• expenses we incur in manufacturing and selling the OmniPod System;
• costs of developing new products or technologies and enhancements to the OmniPod System;
• the cost of obtaining and maintaining FDA approval or clearance of our current or future products;
• costs associated with any expansion;
• costs associated with capital expenditures;
• costs associated with litigation; and
• the number and timing of any acquisitions or other strategic transactions.
We believe that our current cash and cash equivalents, including the net proceeds from our public and private offerings and draw
downs on our credit facility, together with the cash to be generated from expected product sales, will be sufficient to meet our projected
operating requirements through at least the end of 2010.
We may in the future seek additional funds from public and private stock offerings, borrowings under credit lines or other sources.
In October 2009, we sold 6.9 million shares of our common stock in a public offering at a price of $10.25 per share, resulting in net
proceeds to us of approximately $66.1 million. If we issue equity or debt securities to raise additional funds, our existing stockholders
may experience dilution, and the new equity or debt securities may have rights, preferences and privileges senior to those of our existing
stockholders. In addition, if we raise additional funds through collaboration, licensing or other similar arrangements, it may be necessary
to relinquish valuable rights to our potential future products or proprietary technologies, or grant licenses on terms that are not favorable
to us.
The facility agreement we entered into on March 13, 2009, as amended on September 25, 2009, with certain institutional accredited
investors, contains restrictions on our ability to incur certain indebtedness without the prior consent of our lenders. In addition, our
ability to raise additional capital may be adversely impacted by current economic conditions, including the effects of the continued
disruptions to the credit and financial markets in the United States and worldwide. As a result of these and other factors, we do not know
whether additional capital will be available when needed, or that, if available, we will be able to obtain future additional capital on terms
favorable to us or our stockholders.
If we are unable to raise additional capital due to these or other factors, we may need to further manage our operational expenses to
reflect these external factors, including potentially curtailing our planned development activities. If we cannot raise additional funds in
the future on acceptable terms, we may not be able to develop new products, execute our business plan, take advantage of future
opportunities or respond to
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competitive pressures or unanticipated customer requirements. If any of these events occur, it could adversely affect our business,
financial condition and results of operations.
We are dependent upon third-party suppliers, making us vulnerable to supply problems and price fluctuations.
We rely on a number of suppliers who manufacture the components of the OmniPods and PDMs. For example, we rely on Phillips
Plastic Corporation to manufacture and supply a number of injection molded components of the OmniPod and Freescale Semiconductor,
Inc. to manufacture and supply the application specific integrated circuit that is incorporated into the OmniPod. In addition, we
expanded the scope of our existing contract manufacturing agreement with a subsidiary of Flextronics International Ltd. in China to
provide the supply of complete OmniPods. We do not have long-term supply agreements with most of our suppliers, and, in many cases,
we make our purchases on a purchase order basis. In some other cases, where we do have agreements in place, our agreements with our
suppliers can be terminated by either party upon short notice. For example, the initial term of our agreement with Flextronics is three
years from January 3, 2007, with automatic one-year renewals, and may be terminated at any time by either party upon prior written
notice given no less than a specified number of days prior to the date of termination. Additionally, our suppliers may encounter problems
during manufacturing due to a variety of reasons, including failure to follow specific protocols and procedures, failure to comply with
applicable regulations, equipment malfunction and environmental factors, any of which could delay or impede their ability to meet our
demand. Our reliance on these third-party suppliers also subjects us to other risks that could harm our business, including:
• we are not a major customer of many of our suppliers, and these suppliers may therefore give other customers’ needs higher
priority than ours;
• we may not be able to obtain adequate supply in a timely manner or on commercially reasonable terms;
• our suppliers, especially new suppliers, may make errors in manufacturing that could negatively affect the efficacy or safety of
the OmniPod System or cause delays in shipment;
• we may have difficulty locating and qualifying alternative suppliers for our sole-source supplies;
• switching components may require product redesign and submission to the U.S. Food and Drug Administration, or FDA, of a
510(k) supplement;
• our suppliers manufacture products for a range of customers, and fluctuations in demand for the products these suppliers
manufacture for others may affect their ability to deliver products to us in a timely manner;
• the occurrence of a fire, natural disaster or other catastrophe, impacting one or more of our suppliers, may affect their ability to
deliver products to us in a timely manner; and
• our suppliers may encounter financial hardships unrelated to our demand, which could inhibit their ability to fulfill our orders
and meet our requirements.
We may not be able to quickly establish additional or replacement suppliers, particularly for our sole-source suppliers, in part
because of the FDA approval process and because of the custom nature of various parts we require. Any interruption or delay in
obtaining products from our third-party suppliers, or our inability to obtain products from alternate sources at acceptable prices in a
timely manner, could impair our ability to meet the demand of our customers and cause them to cancel orders or switch to competing
products.
Our financial condition or results of operations may be adversely affected by international business risks.
Recently, we entered into a distribution agreement with Ypsomed to become our exclusive distributor of the OmniPod System in
eleven countries, which includes France, Germany and the United Kingdom in the first half of 2010. While this agreement will help us
expand our global footprint, we will now be exposed to fluctuations in product demand and sales productivity outside the United States
as we will have to manage the risks associated with market acceptance of the OmniPod System in foreign countries. Our efforts to
introduce our current or future products into foreign markets may not be successful, in which case we may have expended significant
resources without realizing the expected benefit. Ultimately, the investment required for expansion into foreign markets could exceed
the results of operations generated from this expansion. We will
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have a lack of control over Ypsomed’s operational and financial condition and increased foreign regulatory and export requirements.
In addition, in order to reduce our cost of goods sold and increase our production capacity, we increasingly rely on third-party
suppliers located outside the United States. For example, currently all of our OmniPods are manufactured on a partially automated
manufacturing line at a facility in China operated by Flextronics International Ltd. As a result, our business is subject to risks associated
with doing business internationally, including:
• political instability and adverse economic conditions;
• trade protection measures, such as tariff increases, and import and export licensing and control requirements;
• potentially negative consequences from changes in tax laws;
• difficulty in staffing and managing widespread operations;
• difficulties associated with foreign legal systems including increased costs associated with enforcing contractual obligations in
foreign jurisdictions;
• changes in foreign currency exchange rates;
• differing protection of intellectual property;
• unexpected changes in regulatory requirements;
• failure to fulfill foreign regulatory requirements on a timely basis or at all to market the OmniPod System or other future
products;
• availability of, and changes in, reimbursement within prevailing foreign health care payment systems;
• adapting to the differing laws and regulations, business and clinical practices, and patient preferences in foreign markets;
• difficulties in managing foreign relationships and operations, including any relationships that we establish with foreign partners,
distributors or sales or marketing agents; and
• difficulty in colleting accounts receivable and longer collection periods.
In addition, expansion into foreign markets imposes additional burdens on our executive and administrative personnel, research
and sales departments and general management resources. Our future success will depend in large part on our ability to anticipate and
effectively manage these and other risks associated with doing business outside of the United States. Any of these factors may have a
material adverse effect on our production capacity and, consequently, our business, financial condition and results of operations.
Failure to secure or retain adequate coverage or reimbursement for the OmniPod System by third-party payors could adversely
affect our business, financial condition and results of operations.
We expect that sales of the OmniPod System will be limited unless a substantial portion of the sales price of the OmniPod System is
paid for by third-party payors, including private insurance companies, health maintenance organizations, preferred provider
organizations and other managed care providers. We currently have contracts establishing reimbursement for the OmniPod System with
national and regional third-party payors which provide reimbursement for patients residing in all 50 states. While we anticipate entering
into additional contracts with other third-party payors, we cannot assure you that we will be successful in doing so. In addition, these
contracts can generally be terminated by the third-party payor without cause. Also, healthcare market initiatives in the United States may
lead third-party payors to decline or reduce reimbursement for the OmniPod System. Moreover, compliance with administrative
procedures or requirements of third-party payors may result in delays in processing approvals by those payors for patients to obtain
coverage for the use of the OmniPod System. We are an approved Medicare provider and current Medicare coverage for CSII therapy
does exist. However, existing Medicare coverage for CSII therapy is based on the pricing
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structure developed for conventional insulin pumps. Currently, we believe that the coding verification for Medicare reimbursement of
the OmniPod System is inappropriate and we are therefore in the process of seeking appropriate coding verification. As a result, we have
focused our efforts in establishing reimbursement for the OmniPod System by negotiating contracts with private insurers. In addition, as
we expand our sales and marketing efforts outside of the United States, we face additional risks associated with obtaining and
maintaining reimbursement from foreign health care payment systems on a timely basis or at all. Failure to secure or retain adequate
coverage or reimbursement for the OmniPod System by third-party payors could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial
condition and results of operations.
We face competition from numerous competitors, most of whom have far greater resources than we have, which may make it more
difficult for us to achieve significant market penetration and which may allow them to develop additional products for the treatment
of diabetes that compete with the OmniPod System.
The medical device industry is intensely competitive, subject to rapid change and significantly affected by new product
introductions and other market activities of industry participants. The OmniPod System competes with a number of existing insulin
delivery devices as well as other methods for the treatment of diabetes. Medtronic MiniMed, a division of Medtronic, Inc., has been the
market leader for many years and has the majority share of the conventional insulin pump market in the United States. Other significant
suppliers in the United States include Animas Corporation, a division of Johnson & Johnson, and Roche Diagnostics, a division of F.
Hoffman-La Roche Ltd.
All of these competitors are large, well-capitalized companies with significantly more market share and resources than we have. As
a consequence, they are able to spend more aggressively on product development, marketing, sales and other product initiatives than we
can. Many of these competitors have:
• significantly greater name recognition;
• established relations with healthcare professionals, customers and third-party payors;
• established distribution networks;
• additional lines of products, and the ability to offer rebates or bundle products to offer higher discounts or other incentives to
gain a competitive advantage; and/or
• greater financial and human resources for product development, sales and marketing and patent litigation.
We also compete with multiple daily injection, or MDI, therapy, which is substantially less expensive than CSII therapy. MDI
therapy has been made more effective by the introduction of long-acting insulin analogs by both sanofi-aventis and Novo Nordisk A/S.
While we believe that CSII therapy, in general, and the OmniPod System, in particular, have significant competitive and clinical
advantages over traditional MDI therapy, improvements in the effectiveness of MDI therapy may result in fewer people with insulindependent diabetes converting from MDI therapy to CSII therapy than we expect and may result in negative price pressure.
In addition to the established insulin pump competitors a number of companies (including current competitors) are working to
develop and market new insulin “patch” pumps or “multi channel” pump devices (insulin and glucagon). These companies are at various
stages of development. The companies of which we are aware working in this area include Medtronic, Inc., Medingo Ltd., NiliMEDIX
Ltd, Sensile Medical AG, M2 Medical, Inc., Phluid Corporation, Calibra Medical, Inc., Valeritas, Inc., Starbridge Systems Ltd., Novo
Nordisk A/S and Abbott Laboratories.
Our current competitors or other companies may at any time develop additional products for the treatment of diabetes. For example,
other diabetes-focused pharmaceutical companies, including Abbott Laboratories, Eli Lilly and Company, Novo Nordisk A/S and
Takeda Pharmaceuticals Company Limited, are developing similar products. All of these competitors are large, well-capitalized
companies with significantly greater product development resources than us. If an existing or future competitor develops a product that
competes with or is superior to the OmniPod System, our revenue may decline. In addition, some of our competitors may compete by
changing their pricing model or by lowering the price of their insulin delivery systems or ancillary supplies.
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If these competitors’ products were to gain acceptance by healthcare professionals, people with insulin-dependent diabetes or third-party
payors, a downward pressure on prices could result. If prices were to fall, we may not improve our gross margins or sales growth
sufficiently to achieve profitability.
Technological breakthroughs in diabetes monitoring, treatment or prevention could render the OmniPod System obsolete.
The diabetes treatment market is subject to rapid technological change and product innovation. The OmniPod System is based on
our proprietary technology, but a number of companies, medical researchers and existing pharmaceutical companies are pursuing new
delivery devices, delivery technologies, sensing technologies, procedures, drugs and other therapeutics for the monitoring, treatment
and/or prevention of insulin-dependent diabetes. For example, FDA approval of a commercially viable “closed-loop” system that
combines continuous “real-time” glucose sensing or monitoring and automatic continuous subcutaneous insulin infusion in a manner
that delivers appropriate amounts of insulin on a timely basis without patient direction could have a material adverse effect on our
revenue and future profitability. We have an agreement with Abbott Diabetes Care, Inc., a global healthcare company that develops
continuous glucose monitoring technology, to develop a product that will integrate the receiver portion of Abbott’s continuous glucose
monitor, the FreeStyle Navigator, with the OmniPod System PDM. The FreeStyle Navigator has recently received FDA approval. We
have a similar agreement with DexCom, Inc., a leading provider of continuous glucose monitoring systems for people with diabetes, to
develop a product that will integrate the receiver portion of DexCom’s continuous glucose monitor, currently marketed as the SEVEN
System, with the OmniPod System PDM. Medtronic, Inc. has developed an FDA-approved product combining continuous glucose
sensing and CSII therapy and if we fail to do so, we may be at a significant competitive disadvantage, which could negatively impact our
business. In addition, the National Institutes of Health and other supporters of diabetes research are continually seeking ways to prevent,
cure or improve the treatment of diabetes. Any technological breakthroughs in diabetes monitoring, treatment or prevention could render
the OmniPod System obsolete, which may have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.
If our existing license agreement with Abbott Diabetes Care, Inc. is terminated or we fail to enter into new license agreements
allowing us to incorporate a blood glucose meter into the OmniPod System, our business may be materially adversely impacted.
Our rights to incorporate the FreeStyle blood glucose meter into the OmniPod System are governed by a development and license
agreement with Abbott Diabetes Care, Inc., as the successor to TheraSense, Inc. This agreement provides us with a non-exclusive, fully
paid, non-transferable and non-sublicensable license in the United States under patents and other relevant technical information relating
to the FreeStyle blood glucose meter during the term of the agreement. On March 3, 2008 we entered into a first amendment of the
agreement pursuant to which the term of the original agreement was extended until February 2013, with automatic renewals for
subsequent one-year periods thereafter, and the license granted therein was extended to cover Israel as well as the United States. We are
currently in discussions with Abbott to extend this to other countries as well. The agreement may be terminated by Abbott if it
discontinues its FreeStyle blood glucose meter or test strips or by either party if the other party is acquired by a competitor of the first
party or materially breaches its obligations under the agreement. Termination of this agreement could require us to either remove the
blood glucose meter from PDMs to be sold in the future, which would impair the functionality of the OmniPod System, or attempt to
incorporate an alternative blood glucose meter into the PDM, which would require us to acquire rights to or develop an alternative blood
glucose meter, incorporate it into the OmniPod System and obtain regulatory approval for the new OmniPod System. Any of these
outcomes could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.
In addition, Abbott and a number of other major blood glucose monitor manufacturers were sued for patent infringement by Roche
Diagnostics pursuant to a complaint dated November 21, 2007. The complaint alleges that the blood glucose monitors currently
manufactured by Abbott and others infringe one or more recently-issued Roche patents. Abbott has indemnified us against losses arising
from claims of infringement like these and, if our use of the Freestyle blood glucose meter were to be enjoined and Abbott was unable to
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obtain a license as required by our contract, then we would need to obtain rights to an alternative non-infringing blood glucose meter,
incorporate it into the OmniPod System and obtain regulatory approval for the new OmniPod System. Any of these outcomes could have
a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.
In the future, we may need additional licenses to intellectual property owned by third parties in order to commercialize new
products. If we cannot obtain these additional licenses, we may not be able to develop or commercialize these future products. Our rights
to use technologies licensed to us by third parties are not entirely within our control, and we may not be able to continue selling the
OmniPod System or sell future products without these technologies.
The patent rights on which we rely to protect the intellectual property underlying the OmniPod System may not be adequate, which
could enable third parties to use our technology and would harm our continued ability to compete in the market.
Our success will depend in part on our continued ability to develop or acquire commercially-valuable patent rights and to protect
these rights adequately. Our patent position is generally uncertain and involves complex legal and factual questions. The risks and
uncertainties that we face with respect to our patents and other related rights include the following:
• the pending patent applications we have filed or to which we have exclusive rights may not result in issued patents or may take
longer than we expect to result in issued patents;
• the claims of any patents that are issued may not provide meaningful protection;
• we may not be able to develop additional proprietary technologies that are patentable;
• other parties may challenge patents, patent claims or patent applications licensed or issued to us; and
• other companies may design around technologies we have patented, licensed or developed.
We also may not be able to protect our patent rights effectively in some foreign countries. For a variety of reasons, we may decide
not to file for patent protection. Our patent rights underlying the OmniPod System may not be adequate, and our competitors or
customers may design around our proprietary technologies or independently develop similar or alternative technologies or products that
are equal or superior to ours without infringing on any of our patent rights. In addition, the patents licensed or issued to us may not
provide a competitive advantage. The occurrence of any of these events may have a material adverse effect on our business, financial
condition and results of operations.
Other rights and measures we have taken to protect our intellectual property may not be adequate, which would harm our ability to
compete in the market.
In addition to patents, we rely on a combination of trade secrets, copyright and trademark laws, confidentiality, non-disclosure and
assignment of invention agreements and other contractual provisions and technical measures to protect our intellectual property rights.
Despite these measures, any of our intellectual property rights could, however, be challenged, invalidated, circumvented or
misappropriated. While we currently require employees, consultants and other third parties to enter into confidentiality, non-disclosure
or assignment of invention agreements, or a combination thereof where appropriate, any of the following could still occur:
• the agreements may be breached;
• we may have inadequate remedies for any breach;
• trade secrets and other proprietary information could be disclosed to our competitors; or
• others may independently develop substantially equivalent or superior proprietary information and techniques or otherwise gain
access to our trade secrets or disclose such technologies.
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If, for any of the above reasons, our intellectual property is disclosed or misappropriated, it would harm our ability to protect our
rights and have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.
We may need to initiate lawsuits to protect or enforce our patents and other intellectual property rights, which could be expensive
and, if we lose, could cause us to lose some of our intellectual property rights, which would harm our ability to compete in the
market.
We rely on patents to protect a portion of our intellectual property and our competitive position. Patent law relating to the scope of
claims in the technology fields in which we operate is still evolving and, consequently, patent positions in the medical device industry
are generally uncertain. In order to protect or enforce our patent rights, we may initiate patent litigation against third parties, such as
infringement suits or interference proceedings. Litigation may be necessary to:
• assert claims of infringement;
• enforce our patents;
• protect our trade secrets or know-how; or
• determine the enforceability, scope and validity of the proprietary rights of others.
Any lawsuits that we initiate could be expensive, take significant time and divert management’s attention from other business
concerns. Litigation also puts our patents at risk of being invalidated or interpreted narrowly and our patent applications at risk of not
issuing. Additionally, we may provoke third parties to assert claims against us. We may not prevail in any lawsuits that we initiate and
the damages or other remedies awarded, if any, may not be commercially valuable. The occurrence of any of these events may have a
material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.
Claims that our current or future products infringe or misappropriate the proprietary rights of others could adversely affect our
ability to sell those products and cause us to incur additional costs.
Substantial litigation over intellectual property rights exists in the medical device industry. We expect that we could be
increasingly subject to third-party infringement claims as our revenue increases, the number of competitors grows and the functionality
of products and technology in different industry segments overlaps. Third parties may currently have, or may eventually be issued,
patents on which our current or future products or technologies may infringe. For example, we are aware of certain patents and patent
applications owned by our competitors that cover different aspects of insulin infusion and the related devices. Any of these third parties
might make a claim of infringement against us. In particular, Medtronic, Inc., in a letter received in March 2007, invited us to discuss our
“taking a license to certain Medtronic patents.” The patents referenced by this letter relate to technology that is material to our business.
We have not had any substantive discussions with Medtronic concerning this matter since our receipt of this letter. In addition, in a letter
received in September 2009, Becton, Dickinson and Company offered to grant us a license under a certain patent pursuant to terms to be
negotiated. The patent referenced by this letter relates to technology that is potentially material to our business; however, we believe
that the OmniPod System does not infringe this patent. If we are unable to reach agreement with Becton, Dickinson and Company on this
matter, they may sue us for infringement. We believe we would have meritorious defenses to any such suit.
Any litigation, regardless of its outcome, would likely result in the expenditure of significant financial resources and the diversion
of management’s time and resources. In addition, litigation in which we are accused of infringement may cause negative publicity,
adversely impact prospective customers, cause product shipment delays, prohibit us from manufacturing, marketing or selling our current
or future products, require us to develop non-infringing technology, make substantial payments to third parties or enter into royalty or
license agreements, which may not be available on acceptable terms or at all. If a successful claim of infringement were made against us
and we could not develop non-infringing technology or license the infringed or similar technology on a timely and cost-effective basis,
our revenue may decrease substantially and we could be exposed to significant liability. A court could enter orders that temporarily,
preliminarily or
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permanently enjoin us or our customers from making, using, selling, offering to sell or importing our current or future products, or could
enter an order mandating that we undertake certain remedial activities. Claims that we have misappropriated the confidential information
or trade secrets of third parties can have a similar negative impact on our reputation, business, financial condition or results of
operations.
We are subject to extensive regulation by the U.S. Food and Drug Administration, which could restrict the sales and marketing of
the OmniPod System and could cause us to incur significant costs. In addition, we may become subject to additional foreign
regulation as we increase our efforts to sell the OmniPod System outside of the United States.
We sell medical devices that are subject to extensive regulation by the FDA. These regulations relate to manufacturing, labeling,
sale, promotion, distribution and shipping. Before a new medical device, or a new use of or claim for an existing product, can be
marketed in the United States, it must first receive either 510(k) clearance or pre-market approval from the FDA, unless an exemption
applies. We may be required to obtain a new 510(k) clearance or pre-market approval for significant post-market modifications to the
OmniPod System. Each of these processes can be expensive and lengthy, and entail significant user fees, unless exempt. The FDA’s
process for obtaining 510(k) clearance usually takes three to twelve months, but it can last longer. The process for obtaining pre-market
approval is much more costly and uncertain and it generally takes from one to three years, or longer, from the time the application is filed
with the FDA.
Medical devices may be marketed only for the indications for which they are approved or cleared. We have obtained 510(k)
clearance for the current clinical applications for which we market our OmniPod System, which includes the use of U-100, which is a
common form of insulin. However, our clearances can be revoked if safety or effectiveness problems develop. Further, we may not be
able to obtain additional 510(k) clearances or pre-market approvals for new products or for modifications to, or additional indications
for, the OmniPod System in a timely fashion or at all. Delays in obtaining future clearances would adversely affect our ability to
introduce new or enhanced products in a timely manner which in turn would harm our revenue and future profitability. We have made
modifications to our devices in the past and may make additional modifications in the future that we believe do not or will not require
additional clearances or approvals. If the FDA disagrees, and requires new clearances or approvals for the modifications, we may be
required to recall and to stop marketing the modified devices. We also are subject to numerous post-marketing regulatory requirements,
which include quality system regulations related to the manufacturing of our devices, labeling regulations and medical device reporting
regulations, which require us to report to the FDA if our devices cause or contribute to a death or serious injury, or malfunction in a way
that would likely cause or contribute to a death or serious injury. In addition, these regulatory requirements may change in the future in a
way that adversely affects us. For instance, the FDA has recently announced that it is in the process of reviewing the recall process for
insulin pumps. If we fail to comply with present or future regulatory requirements that are applicable to us, we may be subject to
enforcement action by the FDA, which may include any of the following sanctions:
• untitled letters, warning letters, fines, injunctions, consent decrees and civil penalties;
• customer notification, or orders for repair, replacement or refunds;
• voluntary or mandatory recall or seizure of our current or future products;
• administrative detention by the FDA of medical devices believed to be adulterated or misbranded;
• imposing operating restrictions, suspension or shutdown of production;
• refusing our requests for 510(k) clearance or pre-market approval of new products, new intended uses or modifications to the
OmniPod System;
• rescinding 510(k) clearance or suspending or withdrawing pre-market approvals that have already been granted; and
• criminal prosecution.
The occurrence of any of these events may have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of
operations.
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In addition, we entered into a distribution agreement with Ypsomed to become our exclusive distributor of the OmniPod system in
eleven countries, which includes France, Germany and the United Kingdom in the first half of 2010. By distributing our product outside
of the United States we may be required to comply with additional foreign regulatory requirements. For example, in April 2009, we
received CE Mark approval for our OmniPod System. The CE Mark gives us authorization to distribute the OmniPod System throughout
the European Union and in other countries that recognize the CE Mark. Additionally, in September 2009, we received Health Canada
approval to distribute the OmniPod System throughout Canada. As we expand our sales efforts internationally, we may need to obtain
additional foreign approval certifications.
If we, our contract manufacturers or our component suppliers fail to comply with the FDA’s quality system regulations, the
manufacturing and distribution of our devices could be interrupted, and our product sales and operating results could suffer.
We, our contract manufacturers and our component suppliers are required to comply with the FDA’s quality system regulations,
which is a complex regulatory framework that covers the procedures and documentation of the design, testing, production, control,
quality assurance, labeling, packaging, sterilization, storage and shipping of our devices. The FDA enforces its quality system
regulations through periodic unannounced inspections. We cannot assure you that our facilities or our contract manufacturers’ or
component suppliers’ facilities would pass any future quality system inspection. If our or any of our contract manufacturers’ or
component suppliers’ facilities fails a quality system inspection, the manufacturing or distribution of our devices could be interrupted
and our operations disrupted. Failure to take adequate and timely corrective action in response to an adverse quality system inspection
could force a suspension or shutdown of our packaging and labeling operations or the manufacturing operations of our contract
manufacturers, or a recall of our devices. If any of these events occurs, we may not be able to provide our customers with the quantity of
OmniPods they require on a timely basis, our reputation could be harmed and we could lose customers, any or all of which may have a
material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.
Our current or future products are subject to recalls even after receiving FDA clearance or approval, which would harm our
reputation, business and financial results.
The FDA and similar governmental bodies in other countries have the authority to require the recall of our current or future
products if we or our contract manufacturers fail to comply with relevant regulations pertaining to manufacturing practices, labeling,
advertising or promotional activities, or if new information is obtained concerning the safety or efficacy of these products. A
government-mandated recall could occur if the FDA finds that there is a reasonable probability that the device would cause serious,
adverse health consequences or death. A voluntary recall by us could occur as a result of manufacturing defects, labeling deficiencies,
packaging defects or other failures to comply with applicable regulations. Any recall would divert management attention and financial
resources and harm our reputation with customers. A recall involving the OmniPod System would be particularly harmful to our business,
financial condition and results of operations because it is currently our only product.
We are subject to federal and state laws prohibiting “kickbacks” and false or fraudulent claims, which, if violated, could subject us
to substantial penalties. Additionally, any challenge to or investigation into our practices under these laws could cause adverse
publicity and be costly to respond to, and thus could harm our business.
A federal law commonly known as the Medicare/Medicaid anti-kickback law, and several similar state laws, prohibit payments that
are intended to induce physicians or others either to refer patients or to acquire or arrange for or recommend the acquisition of healthcare
products or services. These laws constrain our sales, marketing and other promotional activities by limiting the kinds of financial
arrangements, including sales programs, we may have with hospitals, physicians or other potential purchasers of medical devices. Other
federal and state laws generally prohibit individuals or entities from knowingly presenting, or causing to be presented, claims for
payment from Medicare, Medicaid or other third-party payors that are false or fraudulent, or for items or services that were not provided
as claimed. Because we may provide some coding and billing
24

Table of Contents

information to purchasers of the OmniPod System, and because we cannot assure that the government will regard any billing errors that
may be made as inadvertent, these laws are potentially applicable to us. In addition, these laws are potentially applicable to us because
we provide reimbursement to healthcare professionals for training patients on the use of the OmniPod System. Anti-kickback and false
claims laws prescribe civil and criminal penalties for noncompliance, which can be substantial. Even an unsuccessful challenge or
investigation into our practices could cause adverse publicity, and be costly to respond to, and thus could have a material adverse effect
on our business, financial condition and results of operations.
If we are found to have violated laws protecting the confidentiality of patient health information, we could be subject to civil or
criminal penalties, which could increase our liabilities and harm our reputation or our business.
There are a number of federal and state laws protecting the confidentiality of certain patient health information, including patient
records, and restricting the use and disclosure of that protected information. In particular, the U.S. Department of Health and Human
Services promulgated patient privacy rules under the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, or HIPAA. These
privacy rules protect medical records and other personal health information by limiting their use and disclosure, giving individuals the
right to access, amend and seek accounting of their own health information and limiting most use and disclosures of health information
to the minimum amount reasonably necessary to accomplish the intended purpose. If we are found to be in violation of the privacy rules
under HIPAA, we could be subject to civil or criminal penalties, which could increase our liabilities, harm our reputation and have a
material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.
Product liability suits, whether or not meritorious, could be brought against us due to an alleged defective product or for the misuse
of our devices. These suits could result in expensive and time-consuming litigation, payment of substantial damages, and an
increase in our insurance rates.
If our current or future products are defectively designed or manufactured, contain defective components or are misused, or if
someone claims any of the foregoing, whether or not meritorious, we may become subject to substantial and costly litigation. Misusing
our devices or failing to adhere to the operating guidelines of the OmniPod System could cause significant harm to patients, including
death. In addition, if our operating guidelines are found to be inadequate, we may be subject to liability. Product liability claims could
divert management’s attention from our core business, be expensive to defend and result in sizable damage awards against us. While we
believe that we are reasonably insured against these risks, we may not have sufficient insurance coverage for all future claims. Any
product liability claims brought against us, with or without merit, could increase our product liability insurance rates or prevent us from
securing continuing coverage, could harm our reputation in the industry and could reduce revenue. Product liability claims in excess of
our insurance coverage would be paid out of cash reserves harming our financial condition and adversely affecting our results of
operations.
Our ability to grow our revenue depends in part on our retaining a high percentage of our customer base.
A key to driving our revenue growth is the retention of a high percentage of our customers. We have developed retention programs
aimed at both the healthcare professionals and the patients, which include appeals assistance, patient training, 24/7 customer support
and an automatic re-order program for patients. Since we began shipping the OmniPod System in October 2005, we have had a
satisfactory customer retention rate; however, we cannot assure you that we will maintain this retention rate in the future. Current
uncertainty in global economic conditions, rising unemployment and negative financial news may negatively affect product demand
and other related matters. If demand for our products fluctuates as a result of economic conditions or otherwise, our ability to attract and
retain customers could be harmed. The failure to retain a high percentage of our customers would negatively impact our revenue growth
and may have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.
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We have sponsored, and expect to continue to sponsor market studies seeking to demonstrate certain aspects of the efficacy of the
OmniPod System, which may fail to produce favorable results.
To help improve, market and sell the OmniPod System, we have sponsored, and expect to continue to sponsor market studies to
assess various aspects of its functionality and its relative efficacy. The data obtained from the studies may be unfavorable to the
OmniPod System or may be inadequate to support satisfactory conclusions. In addition, in the future we may sponsor clinical trials to
assess certain aspects of the efficacy of the OmniPod System. If future clinical trials fail to support the efficacy of our current or future
products, our sales may be adversely affected and we may lose an opportunity to secure clinical preference from prescribing clinicians,
which may have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.
If future clinical studies or other articles are published, or diabetes associations or other organizations announce positions that are
unfavorable to the OmniPod System, our sales efforts and revenue may be negatively affected.
Future clinical studies or other articles regarding our existing products or any competing products may be published that either
support a claim, or are perceived to support a claim, that a competitor’s product is clinically more effective or easier to use than the
OmniPod System or that the OmniPod System is not as effective or easy to use as we claim. Additionally, diabetes associations or other
organizations that may be viewed as authoritative could endorse products or methods that compete with the OmniPod System or
otherwise announce positions that are unfavorable to the OmniPod System. Any of these events may negatively affect our sales efforts
and result in decreased revenue.
Substantially all of our operations are conducted at a single location and substantially all of our inventory is held at a single
location. Any disruption at either of these locations could increase our expenses.
Substantially all of our manufacturing of complete OmniPods is currently conducted at a single location on a manufacturing line
owned by us at a facility located in China, operated by a subsidiary of Flextronics International, Ltd. We take precautions to ensure
Flextronics safeguards our assets, including insurance and health and safety protocols. However, a natural or other disaster, such as a fire
or flood, could cause substantial delays in our operations, damage or destroy our manufacturing equipment, and cause us to incur
additional expenses. The insurance we maintain may not be adequate to cover our losses in any particular case. With or without
insurance, damage to our manufacturing equipment, or to any of our suppliers, may have a material adverse effect on our business,
financial condition and results of operations.
In addition, substantially all of our inventory is held at a single location in Billerica, Massachusetts. We take precautions to
safeguard our facility, including insurance, health and safety protocols and off-site storage of computer data. However, a natural or other
disaster, such as a fire or flood, could cause substantial delays in our operations, damage or destroy our inventory, and cause us to incur
additional expenses. The insurance we maintain against fires, floods and other natural disasters may not be adequate to cover our losses
in any particular case. With or without insurance, damage to our facility or our other property, due to fire, flood or other natural disaster
or casualty event may have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.
Our success will depend on our ability to attract and retain personnel.
We have benefited substantially from the leadership and performance of our senior management. Our success will depend on our
ability to retain our current management and to attract and retain qualified personnel in the future, including clinicians, engineers and
other highly skilled personnel. Competition for senior management personnel, as well as clinicians and engineers, is intense and there
can be no assurances that we will be able to retain our personnel. The loss of the services certain members of our senior management,
clinicians or engineers could prevent or delay the implementation and completion of our objectives, or divert management’s attention to
seeking a qualified replacement.
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Additionally, the sale and after-sale support of the OmniPod System is logistically complex, requiring us to maintain an extensive
infrastructure of field sales personnel, diabetes educators, customer support, insurance specialists, and billing and collections personnel.
We face considerable challenges in recruiting, training, managing, motivating and retaining these teams, including managing
geographically dispersed efforts. If we fail to maintain and grow an adequate pool of trained and motivated personnel, our reputation
could suffer and our financial position could be adversely affected.
If we do not effectively manage our growth, our business resources may become strained, we may not be able to deliver the OmniPod
System in a timely manner and our results of operations may be adversely affected.
Since the commercial launch of the OmniPod system, we have progressively expanded our marketing efforts to cover the entire
United States, and we recently entered into a distribution agreement with Ypsomed to distribute the OmniPod System in eleven
countries, including France, Germany, the United Kingdom, China and Australia. As we continue to expand our sales internationally, we
will need to obtain regulatory approvals and reimbursement agreements with government agencies or private third-party payors in those
countries. Failure to obtain such agreements would limit our ability to successfully penetrate those foreign markets. In addition, the
geographic expansion of our business will require additional manufacturing capacity to supply those markets as well as additional sales
and marketing resources.
We expect to continue to increase our manufacturing capacity, our personnel and the scope of our U.S. and international sales and
marketing efforts. This growth, as well as any other growth that we may experience in the future, will provide challenges to our
organization and may strain our management and operations. In order to manage future growth, we will be required to improve existing,
and implement new, management systems, sales and marketing efforts and distribution channels. We will need to manage our
relationship with Flextronics going forward. We may also need to partner with additional third-party suppliers to manufacture certain
components of the OmniPod System and complete additional manufacturing lines in the future. A transition to new suppliers may result
in additional costs or delays. We may misjudge the amount of time or resources that will be required to effectively manage any
anticipated or unanticipated growth in our business or we may not be able to manufacture sufficient inventory or attract, hire and retain
sufficient personnel to meet our needs. If we cannot scale our business appropriately, maintain control over expenses or otherwise adapt
to anticipated and unanticipated growth, our business resources may become strained, we may not be able to deliver the OmniPod
System in a timely manner and our results of operations may be adversely affected.
We may experience significant fluctuations in our quarterly results of operations.
The fluctuations in our quarterly results of operations have resulted, and will continue to result, from numerous factors, including:
• delays in shipping due to capacity constraints;
• practices of health insurance companies and other third-party payors with respect to reimbursement for our current or future
products;
• market acceptance of the OmniPod System;
• our ability to manufacture the OmniPod efficiently;
• timing of regulatory approvals and clearances;
• new product introductions;
• competition; and
• timing of research and development expenditures.
These factors, some of which are not within our control, may cause the price of our stock to fluctuate substantially. In particular, if
our quarterly results of operations fail to meet or exceed the expectations of
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securities analysts or investors, our stock price could drop suddenly and significantly. We believe the quarterly comparisons of our
financial results are not necessarily meaningful and should not be relied upon as an indication of our future performance.
If we choose to acquire or invest in new businesses, products or technologies, instead of developing them ourselves, these
acquisitions or investments could disrupt our business and could result in the use of significant amounts of equity, cash or a
combination of both.
From time to time we may seek to acquire or invest in new businesses, products or technologies, instead of developing them
ourselves. Acquisitions and investments involve numerous risks, including:
• the inability to complete the acquisition or investment;
• disruption of our ongoing businesses and diversion of management attention;
• difficulties in integrating the acquired entities, products or technologies;
• risks associated with acquiring intellectual property;
• difficulties in operating the acquired business profitably;
• the inability to achieve anticipated synergies, cost savings or growth;
• potential loss of key employees, particularly those of the acquired business;
• difficulties in transitioning and maintaining key customer, distributor and supplier relationships;
• risks associated with entering markets in which we have no or limited prior experience; and
• unanticipated costs.
In addition, any future acquisitions or investments may result in one or more of the following:
• dilutive issuances of equity securities, which may be sold at a discount to market price;
• the use of significant amounts of cash;
• the incurrence of debt;
• the assumption of significant liabilities;
• increased operating costs or reduced earnings;
• financing obtained on unfavorable terms;
• large one-time expenses; and
• the creation of certain intangible assets, including goodwill, the write-down of which in future periods may result in significant
charges to earnings.
Any of these factors could materially harm our stock price, business, financial condition and results of operations.
We may not be able to generate sufficient cash to service all of our indebtedness, including our 5.375% Convertible Senior Notes
due June 15, 2013 and amounts outstanding under our Facility Agreement due September 15, 2012. We may be forced to take other
actions to satisfy our obligations under our indebtedness or we may experience a financial failure.
Our ability to make scheduled payments or to refinance our debt obligations depends on our financial and operating performance,
which is subject to prevailing economic and competitive conditions and to certain financial, business and other factors beyond our
control. We cannot assure you that we will maintain a level of cash flows from operating activities sufficient to permit us to pay the
principal, premium, if any, and interest on our indebtedness. If our cash flows and capital resources are insufficient to fund our debt
service obligations, we may be forced to reduce or delay capital expenditures, sell assets or operations, seek additional
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capital or restructure or refinance our indebtedness, including the notes. We cannot assure you that we would be able to take any of these
actions, that these actions would be successful and permit us to meet our scheduled debt service obligations or that these actions would
be permitted under the terms of our future debt agreements. In the absence of sufficient operating results and resources, we could face
substantial liquidity problems and might be required to dispose of material assets or operations to meet our debt service and other
obligations. We may not be able to consummate those dispositions or obtain sufficient proceeds from those dispositions to meet our debt
service and other obligations then due.
We need to expand our distribution network to maintain and grow our business and revenue. If we fail to expand and maintain an
effective sales force or successfully develop our relationship with distributors, our business, prospects and brand may be materially
and adversely affected.
We currently promote, market and sell the majority of our OmniPod Systems through our own direct sales force. We currently
utilize a limited number of domestic distributors to augment our sales efforts. In addition, we recently entered into an exclusive
distribution agreement with Ypsomed to promote, advertise, distribute and sell the OmniPod System in eleven countries, beginning in
France, Germany and the United Kingdom in the first half of 2010. We cannot assure you that we will be able to successfully develop our
relationships with third-party distributors. If we fail to do so, our sales could fail to grow or could decline, and our ability to grow our
business could be adversely affected. Distributors that are in the business of selling other medical products may not devote a sufficient
level of resources and support required to generate awareness of our products and grow or maintain product sales. If our distributors are
unwilling or unable to market and sell our products, or if they do not perform to our expectations, we could experience delayed or
reduced market acceptance and sales of our products.
If we are unable to successfully maintain effective internal control over financial reporting, investors may lose confidence in our
reported financial information and our stock price and our business may be adversely impacted.
As a public company, we are required to maintain internal control over financial reporting and our management is required to
evaluate the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of the end of each fiscal year. Additionally, we are required
to disclose in our Annual Reports on Form 10-K our management’s assessment of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial
reporting and a registered public accounting firm’s attestation report on this assessment. If we are not successful in maintaining effective
internal control over financial reporting, there could be inaccuracies or omissions in the consolidated financial information we are
required to file with the Securities and Exchange Commission. Additionally, even if there are no inaccuracies or omissions, we will be
required to publicly disclose the conclusion of our management that our internal control over financial reporting or disclosure controls
and procedures are not effective. These events could cause investors to lose confidence in our reported financial information, adversely
impact our stock price, result in increased costs to remediate any deficiencies, attract regulatory scrutiny or lawsuits that could be costly
to resolve and distract management’s attention, limit our ability to access the capital markets or cause our stock to be delisted from The
NASDAQ Global Market or any other securities exchange on which it is then listed.
The price of our common stock may be volatile.
There has been a public market for our common stock only since our initial public offering in May 2007. The market price of our
common stock is affected by a number of factors, including:
• failure to maintain and increase production capacity and reduce per unit production costs;
• changes in the availability of third-party reimbursement in the United States or other countries;
• volume and timing of orders for the OmniPod System;
• developments in administrative proceedings or litigation related to intellectual property rights;
• issuance of patents to us or our competitors;
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• the announcement of new products or product enhancements by us or our competitors;
• the announcement of technological or medical innovations in the treatment or diagnosis of diabetes;
• changes in governmental regulations or in the status of our regulatory approvals or applications;
• developments in our industry;
• publication of clinical studies relating to the OmniPod System or a competitor’s product;
• quarterly variations in our or our competitors’ results of operations;
• changes in earnings estimates or recommendations by securities analysts; and
• general market conditions and other factors, including factors unrelated to our operating performance or the operating
performance of our competitors.
At times, the fluctuations in the market price of our common stock have often been unrelated or disproportionate to our operating
performance. These forces reached unprecedented levels in the second half of 2008, resulting in the bankruptcy or acquisition of, or
government assistance to, several major domestic and international financial institutions and a material decline in economic conditions.
In particular, the U.S. equity markets experienced significant price and volume fluctuations that have affected the market prices of equity
securities of many technology companies. During the year ended December 31, 2009, our stock price has experienced volatility, with the
closing price of our common stock on the NASDAQ Global Market having ranged from $2.67 on March 11, 2009 to $14.40 on
December 29, 2009. These broad market and industry factors could materially and adversely affect the market price of our stock,
regardless of our actual operating performance.
Future sales of shares of our common stock in the public market, or the perception that such sales may occur, may depress our stock
price.
We have been a public company only since May 2007. For the three month period ended December 31, 2009, the average daily
trading volume of our common stock on The NASDAQ Global Market has been fewer than 450,000 shares. If our existing stockholders or
their distributees sell substantial amounts of our common stock in the public market, the market price of our common stock could
decrease significantly. The perception in the public market that our existing stockholders might sell shares of common stock could also
depress the trading price of our common stock. In addition, certain stockholders, including the holders of the warrants to purchase
3.75 million shares of our common stock issued in connection with the March 13, 2009 facility agreement, have rights, subject to some
conditions, to require us to file registration statements covering their share or to include their shares in registration statements that we
may file for ourselves or other stockholders.
A decline in the price of shares of our common stock might impede our ability to raise capital through the issuance of additional
shares of our common stock or other equity securities.
Anti-takeover provisions in our organizational documents and Delaware law may discourage or prevent a change of control, even if
an acquisition would be beneficial to our stockholders, which could affect our stock price adversely and prevent attempts by our
stockholders to replace or remove our current management.
Our certificate of incorporation and bylaws contain provisions that could delay or prevent a change of control of our company or
changes in our board of directors that our stockholders might consider favorable. Some of these provisions:
• authorize the issuance of preferred stock which can be created and issued by the board of directors without prior stockholder
approval, with rights senior to those of our common stock;
• provide for a classified board of directors, with each director serving a staggered three-year term;
• prohibit our stockholders from filling board vacancies, calling special stockholder meetings or taking action by written consent;
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• provide for the removal of a director only with cause and by the affirmative vote of the holders of 75% or more of the shares then
entitled to vote at an election of our directors; and
• require advance written notice of stockholder proposals and director nominations.
We are subject to the provisions of Section 203 of the Delaware General Corporation Law, which may prohibit certain business
combinations with stockholders owning 15% or more of our outstanding voting stock. These and other provisions in our certificate of
incorporation, bylaws and Delaware law could make it more difficult for stockholders or potential acquirers to obtain control of our
board of directors or initiate actions that are opposed by our then-current board of directors, including a merger, tender offer or proxy
contest involving our company. Any delay or prevention of a change of control transaction or changes in our board of directors could
cause the market price of our common stock to decline.
In addition, in November 2008, our board of directors adopted a shareholder rights plan, implementing what is commonly known as
a “poison pill.” This poison pill significantly increases the costs that would be incurred by an unwanted third party acquirer if such party
owns or announces its intent to commence a tender offer for more than 15% of our outstanding common stock or otherwise “triggers” the
poison pill by exceeding the applicable stock ownership threshold. The existence of this poison pill could delay, deter or prevent a
takeover of us.
ITEM 1B.

UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

None.
ITEM 2.

PROPERTIES

We lease approximately 63,500 square feet of manufacturing, laboratory and office space in Bedford, Massachusetts under leases
expiring in 2010 and 2014. Additionally, we lease approximately 14,000 square feet of warehousing and manufacturing space in
Billerica, Massachusetts under a lease expiring in 2012.
ITEM 3.

LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

None.
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PART II
ITEM 4.

(REMOVED AND RESERVED)

ITEM 5.

MARKET FOR REGISTRANT’S COMMON STOCK, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Market Information
Our common stock has been listed on The NASDAQ Global Market under the trading symbol “PODD” since our initial public
offering on May 15, 2007. The following table sets forth the high and low closing sales prices of our common stock, as reported by The
NASDAQ Global Market, for each of the periods listed.
High

Fiscal Year 2008
First Quarter
Second Quarter
Third Quarter
Fourth Quarter
Fiscal Year 2009
First Quarter
Second Quarter
Third Quarter
Fourth Quarter

Low

$25.87
$20.17
$16.93
$13.32

$12.79
$14.39
$13.00
$ 3.21

$ 9.58
$ 7.83
$11.25
$14.40

$
$
$
$

2.67
3.55
6.08
8.98

As of December 31, 2009, there were approximately 32 registered holders of record of our common stock. The number of beneficial
stockholders of our shares is greater than the number of stockholders of record.
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Performance Graph
The chart set forth below shows the value of an investment of $100 on May 15, 2007 in each of Insulet Corporation common stock,
the NASDAQ Composite Index, and the NASDAQ Health Care Index. All values assume reinvestment of the pre-tax value of dividends
paid by companies included in these indices and are calculated as of December 31, 2009. The historical stock price performance of our
common stock shown in the performance graph below is not necessarily indicative of future stock price performance.
Comparison of 31 Month Cumulative Total Return*
Among Insulet Corp., The NASDAQ Composite Index
And The NASDAQ Health Care Index

* $100 invested on 5/15/07 in stock & 4/30/07 in index-including reinvestment of dividends.
Fiscal year ending December 31.
Insulet Corp.
NASDAQ Composite
NASDAQ Health Care

5/07

6/07

9/07

12/07

3/08

6/08

9/08

12/08

3/09

6/09

9/09

12/09

100.00
100.00
100.00

88.97
103.58
97.67

136.28
105.85
102.62

147.12
103.93
99.44

90.23
88.90
92.21

98.56
89.71
92.34

87.22
80.14
94.25

48.37
61.42
80.19

25.69
59.53
73.83

48.25
71.49
83.02

70.36
82.78
92.57

89.47
88.73
92.57

The material in this performance graph is not soliciting material, is not deemed filed with the SEC, and is not incorporated by
reference in any filing of the Company under the Securities Act or the Exchange Act, whether made on, before or after the date of this
filing and irrespective of any general incorporation language in such filing.
Dividend Policy
We currently intend to retain future earnings for the development, operation and expansion of our business and do not anticipate
paying any cash dividends in the foreseeable future.
33

Table of Contents

Securities Authorized For Issuance Under Equity Compensation Plans
The following table sets forth information regarding securities authorized for issuance under our equity compensation plans as of
December 31, 2009.

Plan Category

Equity compensation plans approved by
security holders(1)
Equity compensation plans not approved by
security holders(2)
Total

Number of Securities to be
Issued Upon Exercise of
Outstanding Options,
Warrants and Rights
(a)

Weighted Average
Exercise Price of
Outstanding Options,
Warrants and Rights
(b)

Number of Securities
Remaining Available for
Future Issuance Under
Equity Compensation Plans
(Excluding Securities
Reflected in Column (a))
(c)

6,995,342

$

5.65

825,423

360,000
7,355,342

$
$

6.71
5.70

—
825,423

(1) Includes our 2007 Stock Option and Incentive Plan and our 2000 Stock Option and Incentive Plan.
(2) Consists of two inducement grants of 180,000 shares each to Brian Roberts and Peter Devlin upon being hired by us in March 2009
and August 2009, respectively. These non-qualified stock option awards were granted outside of our 2007 Stock Option and
Incentive Plan in compliance with Nasdaq Listing Rule 5635, but have similar vesting terms to those stock option awards typically
granted under our 2007 Stock Option and Incentive Plan.
(3) The maximum number of shares of our common stock that are authorized for issuance under our 2007 Stock Option and Incentive
Plan as of December 31, 2009 is 825,423 shares, which includes an increase of 725,000 on January 1, 2009. The amount will be
increased on January 1, 2010, and on each January 1 thereafter through January 1, 2012, by a number of shares equal to 3% of the
number of shares of our common stock outstanding as of the immediately preceding December 31, up to the maximum increase of
725,000 additional shares per year.
For more information relating to our equity compensation plans, see Note 11 to our consolidated financial statements.
Issuer Repurchases of Equity Securities
We did not repurchase any of our equity securities during the quarter ended December 31, 2009, nor issue any securities that were
not registered under Securities Act of 1933.
Purchases of Equity Securities by the Issuer and Affiliated Purchasers
None.
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ITEM 6.

SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA
Year Ended December 31,
2008(5)
2007
2006
(In thousands, except share and per share data)

2009

Consolidated Statements of Operations Data:
Revenue(1)
Cost of revenue
Gross profit (loss)
Operating expenses:
Research and development
General and administrative
Sales and marketing
Restructuring and impairment of assets
Total operating expenses(2)
Operating loss
Other income (expense), net
Change in value of preferred stock warrant
liability
Net loss
Accretion of redeemable convertible preferred
stock
Net loss attributable to common shareholders
Net loss per share basic and diluted
Weighted-average number of shares used in
calculating net loss per share(3)

Consolidated Balance Sheet Data:
Cash and cash equivalents
Working capital
Total assets
Current debt
Long-term debt, net of current portion(4)
Other long-term liabilities
Redeemable convertible preferred stock
Total stockholders’ equity (deficit)

$

66,032
47,735
18,297

$

36,059
40,643
(4,584)

$

13,372
25,733
(12,361)

$

3,663
15,660
(11,997)

2005

$

50
1,530
(1,480)

13,231
26,842
37,583
—
77,656
(59,359)
(20,182)

13,104
23,750
39,734
8,170
84,758
(89,342)
(5,429)

10,391
13,922
16,141
1,027
41,481
(53,842)
377

8,094
8,389
6,165
—
22,648
(34,645)
(460)

10,764
5,490
3,771
—
20,025
(21,505)
(131)

—
(79,541)

—
(94,771)

(74)
(53,539)

(845)
(35,950)

—
(21,636)

$

—
(79,541)

$

—
(94,771)

$

—
(53,539)

(222)
$ (36,172)

—
$ (21,636)

$

(2.68)

$

(3.43)

$

(3.21)

$ (99.72)

$ (70.95)

362,750

304,962

29,727,106

27,611,003

16,688,418

2009

2008(5)

As of December 31,
2007
(In thousands)

2006

2005

$127,996
$134,491
$171,648
$
—
$ 96,979
$ 1,999
$
—
$ 52,857

$ 56,663
$ 71,531
$108,233
$
—
$ 60,172
$ 2,987
$
—
$ 28,106

$ 94,588
$ 87,723
$130,741
$ 10,671
$ 16,006
$ 1,431
$
—
$ 92,275

$ 33,231
$
785
$ 57,140
$ 29,222
$
—
$
316
$ 119,509
$(101,765)

$ 7,660
$ 5,168
$ 16,792
$ 1,479
$ 8,302
$
315
$ 69,500
$(66,091)

(1) We commercially launched the OmniPod Insulin Management System in October 2005. See Note 2 to our consolidated financial
statements included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
(2) Effective January 1, 2006, we adopted the provisions of FASB ASC 718-10 Compensation — Stock Compensation. In accordance
with the provisions of FASB ASC 718-10, we recognized expenses of $4.2 million
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in 2009, $3.4 million in 2008, $1.5 million in 2007 and $0.3 million in 2006. See Note 11 to our consolidated financial statements
included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
(3) In connection with our initial public offering of common stock in May 2007, we sold 8.4 million shares of common stock and
17.4 million redeemable convertible preferred stock converted into shares of common stock.
(4) In June 2008, we sold $85.0 million principal amount of 5.375% Convertible Senior Notes due June 15, 2013 in a private placement
to qualified institutional buyers pursuant to Rule 144A under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended. In March 2009, we entered
into a Facility Agreement of up to $60 million with certain institutional accredited investors. At December 31, 2009, we had
$32.5 million of outstanding debt under the agreement. See Notes 8 and 9 to our consolidated financial statements included in this
Annual Report on Form 10-K.
(5) Amounts have been restated to reflect the retrospective adoption of certain provisions of FASB ASC 470-20 Debt with Conversion
and Other Options.
ITEM 7.

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion and analysis should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and
accompanying notes and the other financial information appearing elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. This discussion and
analysis contains forward-looking statements that involve risks, uncertainties and assumptions. Our actual results could differ
materially from those anticipated in these forward-looking statements as a result of various factors, including those discussed below
and elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K, particularly under the heading “Risk Factors.”
Overview
We are a medical device company that develops, manufactures and markets an insulin infusion system for people with insulindependent diabetes. Our proprietary OmniPod Insulin Management System consists of our OmniPod disposable insulin infusion device
and our handheld, wireless Personal Diabetes Manager.
The US Food and Drug Administration, or FDA, approved the OmniPod System in January 2005. In October 2005, we shipped our
first commercial OmniPod System. We have progressively expanded our marketing efforts from an initial focus in the Eastern United
States to having availability of the OmniPod System in the entire United States. In January 2010, we entered into an exclusive
distribution agreement with Ypsomed Distribution AG, or Ypsomed, which intends to distribute and sell our OmniPod System in eleven
countries, beginning with France, Germany and the United Kingdom in the first half of 2010, subject to approved reimbursement. We
focus our sales towards key diabetes practitioners, academic centers and clinics specializing in the treatment of diabetes patients, as well
as individual diabetes patients. Our total revenue was $66.0 million, $36.1 million and $13.4 million for the years ended December 31,
2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively.
We are currently producing the OmniPod on a partially automated manufacturing line at a facility in China operated by a
subsidiary of Flextronics International Ltd. We purchase complete OmniPods pursuant to our agreement with Flextronics. Under the
agreement, Flextronics has agreed to supply us, as a non-exclusive supplier, with OmniPods at agreed upon prices per unit pursuant to a
rolling 12-month forecast that we provide to Flextronics. The initial term of the agreement is three years from January 3, 2007, with
automatic one-year renewals. The agreement may be terminated at any time by either party upon prior written notice given no less than a
specified number of days prior to the date of termination. The specified number of days is intended to provide the parties with sufficient
time to make alternative arrangements in the event of termination. By purchasing OmniPods manufactured by Flextronics in China, we
have been able to substantially increase production volumes for the OmniPod and reduce our per unit production cost.
As a medical device company, reimbursement from third-party payors is an important element of our success. If patients are not
adequately reimbursed for the costs of using the OmniPod System, it will be much more difficult for us to penetrate the market. We
continue to negotiate contracts establishing reimbursement
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for the OmniPod System with national and regional third-party payors, and we believe that substantially all of the units sold have been
reimbursed by third-party payors, subject to applicable deductible and co-payment amounts. As we expand our sales and marketing
focus, increase our manufacturing capacity and expand to international markets, we will need to maintain and expand available
reimbursement for the OmniPod System.
Since our inception in 2000, we have incurred losses every quarter. In the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007, we
incurred net losses of $79.5 million, $94.8 million and $53.5 million, respectively. As of December 31, 2009, we had an accumulated
deficit of $329.9 million. We have financed our operations through the private placement of equity securities, public offerings of our
common stock, a private placement of our convertible debt and borrowings under certain debt agreements. As of December 31, 2009, we
had $85.0 million of convertible debt outstanding and $32.5 million of outstanding debt relating to a facility agreement entered into
March 13, 2009 and amended on September 25, 2009. Since inception, we have received net proceeds of $478.3 million from the
issuance of redeemable convertible preferred stock, common stock and debt.
In May 2007, in our initial public offering, we issued and sold 7,700,000 shares of common stock to the public at a price of $15.00
per share. In June 2007, we issued and sold an additional 665,000 shares of common stock to the public at a price of $15.00 per share
pursuant to the underwriters’ partial exercise of their over-allotment option. In connection with the initial public offering, including the
partial exercise of the over-allotment option, we received total gross proceeds of $125.5 million, or approximately $113.4 million of net
proceeds after deducting underwriting discounts and offering expenses.
In November 2007, in a public offering of 4,898,398 shares of our common stock at a price to the public of $23.25 per share by
certain of our stockholders, we issued and sold an additional 459,759 shares of common stock at the public offering price pursuant to the
underwriters’ exercise of their over-allotment option. In connection with the public offering, we received total gross proceeds of
$10.7 million, or approximately $9.2 million in net proceeds after deducting underwriting discounts and offering expenses. We did not
receive any proceeds from the sale of shares by the selling stockholders.
In June 2008, we sold $85.0 million principal amount of 5.375% Convertible Senior Notes due June 15, 2013 (the “5.375% Notes”)
in a private placement to qualified institutional buyers pursuant to Rule 144A under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended. The interest
rate on the notes is 5.375% per annum on the principal amount from June 16, 2008, payable semi-annually in arrears in cash on
December 15 and June 15 of each year, beginning December 15, 2008. The 5.375% Notes are convertible into our common stock at an
initial conversion rate of 46.8467 shares of common stock per $1,000 principal amount of the 5.375% Notes, which is equivalent to a
conversion price of approximately $21.35 per share. In connection with the private placement of our convertible debt, we received total
gross proceeds of $85.0 million, or approximately $81.5 million in net proceeds after deducting the initial purchasers’ discounts and
offering expenses.
In March 2009, we entered into a Facility Agreement with certain institutional accredited investors, pursuant to which the investors
agreed to loan us up to $60 million, subject to the terms and conditions set forth in the Facility Agreement. Upon execution of this
facility agreement, we issued to the lenders warrants to purchase an aggregate of 3.75 million shares of our common stock at an exercise
price of $3.13 per share in connection with the initial $27.5 million draw down from the facility. In September 2009, we entered into an
Amendment to the Facility Agreement whereby we repaid the $27.5 million of outstanding debt and promptly drew down the remaining
$32.5 million available under the Facility Agreement. The lender agreed to eliminate all performance milestones associated with the
remaining $32.5 million available on the credit facility and reduced the annual interest rate on any borrowed funds to 8.5%. All
principal amounts outstanding under the Facility Agreement are payable in September 2012. In addition, the lender agreed to forego the
remaining warrants to purchase an additional 1.5 million shares of common stock that would have been issued upon future draws. In
connection with the Amendment to the Facility Agreement, we entered into a Securities Purchase Agreement with the lenders whereby
we sold 2,855,659 shares of our common stock to the lenders at $9.63 per share. We received aggregate proceeds of $27.5 million in
connection with the sale of our shares.
In October 2009, in a public offering, we issued and sold 6,000,000 shares of our common stock at a price to the public of $10.25
per share. In November 2009, we issued and sold an additional 900,000 shares of
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common stock to the public at a price of $10.25 per share pursuant to the underwriters’ exercise of their over-allotment option. In
connection with the offering, we received total gross proceeds of $70.7 million, or approximately $66.1 million in net proceeds after
deducting underwriting discounts and offering expenses.
Our long-term financial objective is to achieve and sustain profitable growth. Our efforts for 2010 will be focused primarily on
continuing to reduce our per-unit production costs, expanding sales to international markets and reducing our spending on
manufacturing overhead and operating expenses. The continued expansion of our manufacturing capacity will help us to achieve lower
material costs due to volume purchase discounts and improved absorption of manufacturing overhead costs, reducing our cost of revenue
as a percentage of revenue. Achieving these objectives is expected to require additional investments in certain personnel and initiatives
to allow for us to increase our market penetration in the United States market and enter certain international markets. We believe that we
will continue to incur net losses in the near term in order to achieve these objectives. However, we believe that the accomplishment of
our near term objectives will have a positive impact on our financial condition in the future.
We believe that our cash and cash equivalents, together with the cash to be generated from expected product sales, will be
sufficient to meet our projected operating and debt service requirements through at least the end of 2010.
Facility Agreement and Common Stock Warrants
On March 13, 2009, we entered into a Facility Agreement with certain institutional accredited investors, pursuant to which the
investors agreed to loan us up to $60 million, subject to the terms and conditions set forth in the Facility Agreement. Following the
initial disbursement of $27.5 million on March 31, 2009, we could, but were not required to, draw down on the facility in $6.5 million
increments at any time until November 2010 provided that we met certain financial performance milestones. In connection with this
financing, we paid Deerfield Management Company, L.P., an affiliate of the lead lender, a one-time transaction fee of $1.2 million. Total
financing costs, including the transaction fee, were $3.0 million and were being amortized as interest expense over the 42 month term of
the Facility Agreement.
The amounts initially drawn under the Facility Agreement accrued interest at a rate of 9.75% per annum, and the undrawn amounts
under the Facility Agreement accrued interest at a rate of 2.75% per annum. Accrued interest is payable quarterly in cash in arrears
beginning on June 1, 2009. We had the right to prepay any amounts owed without penalty unless the prepayment was in connection
with a major transaction.
On September 25, 2009, we entered into an Amendment to the Facility Agreement whereby we repaid the $27.5 million of
outstanding debt and promptly drew down the remaining $32.5 million available under the Facility Agreement. The lender eliminated
all future performance milestones associated with the remaining $32.5 million available on the credit facility and reduced the annual
interest rate on any borrowed funds to 8.5%. In connection with the Amendment to the Facility Agreement, we entered into a Securities
Purchase Agreement with the lenders whereby we sold 2,855,659 shares of our common stock to the lenders at $9.63 per share. We
received aggregate proceeds of $27.5 million in connection with the sale of our shares. All subsequent references to the “Facility
Agreement” refer to the Facility Agreement entered into on March 13, 2009 and amended on September 25, 2009.
All principal amounts outstanding under the Facility Agreement are payable in September 2012. Any amounts drawn under the
Facility Agreement may become immediately due and payable upon (i) an “event of default,” as defined in the Facility Agreement, in
which case the lenders would have the right to require us to re-pay 100% of the principal amount of the loan, plus any accrued and
unpaid interest thereon, or (ii) the consummation of certain change of control transactions, in which case the lenders would have the
right to require us to re-pay 106% of the outstanding principal amount of the loan, plus any accrued and unpaid interest thereon. The
Facility Agreement also provides for higher interest rates to be paid by us in certain events.
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Because the consummation of certain change in control transactions would result in the payment of a premium of the outstanding
principal, the premium feature is a derivative that is required to be bifurcated from the host debt instrument and recorded at fair value at
each quarter end. As a higher interest rate could be paid by us upon the occurrence of certain events, the higher interest feature is also
considered a derivative. The higher interest payment does not meet the criteria to be accounted for separately. Any changes in fair value
of the premium feature will be recorded as interest expense. The difference between the face value of the outstanding principal on the
Facility Agreement and the amount remaining after the bifurcation will be recorded as a discount to be amortized over the term of the
Facility Agreement. At December 31, 2009, the premium feature associated with the Facility Agreement had no value as we do not
currently expect a change in control transaction to occur. The embedded derivatives related to the Facility Agreement will be reassessed
and marked-to-market through earnings on a quarterly basis.
As of December 31, 2009, $32.5 million of outstanding debt related to the Facility Agreement is included in long-term debt in the
consolidated balance sheet. Approximately $11.1 million of interest expense was recorded in the year ended December 31, 2009. Of the
$11.1 million recorded in the year ended December 31, 2009, approximately $2.5 million relates to cash interest, $1.0 million relates to
amortization of the debt discount and deferred financing costs and $7.6 million relates to the charge taken for the unamortized portion of
the debt discount and deferred financing costs in connection with the repayment and termination of the initial disbursement. Of the
$7.6 million of interest expense related to the extinguishment of the debt, $6.4 million relates to the debt discount for the unamortized
balance of the fair value of the warrants issued on March 13, 2009 and the transaction fee paid to the lenders and $1.2 million related to
the remaining deferred financing costs.
On March 13, 2009, in connection with the execution of the Facility Agreement, we issued to the lenders fully exercisable warrants
to purchase an aggregate of 3.75 million shares of common stock at an exercise price of $3.13 per share. Pursuant to the original terms of
the Facility Agreement, we would have been required to issue additional warrants to purchase 1.5 million shares upon drawing down the
remaining $32.5 million under the facility. In connection with the Amendment to the Facility Agreement in September 2009, the lenders
agreed to forego the remaining 1.5 million additional warrants that would have been issued upon future draws.
If we issue or sell shares of our common stock (other than (i) pursuant to a registered public offering or shelf takedown, (ii) in a
transaction that does not require shareholder approval, (iii) to partners in connection with a joint venture, distribution or other partnering
arrangement in a transaction that does not require shareholder approval, (iv) upon the exercise of options granted to our employees,
officers, directors and consultants, (v) of restricted stock to, or purchases of, our common stock under our employee stock purchase plan
by employees, officers, directors or consultants or (vi) upon the exercise of the warrants) after March 13, 2009, we will issue concurrently
therewith additional warrants to purchase such number of shares of common stock as will entitle the lenders to maintain the same
beneficial ownership in us after the issuance as they had prior to such issuance, as adjusted on a pro rata basis for repayments of the
outstanding principal amount under the loan, with such warrants being issued at an exercise price equal to the greater of $3.13 per share
and the closing price of the common stock on the date immediately prior to the issuance.
All warrants issued under the Facility Agreement remain unexercised as of December 31, 2009, expire on March 13, 2015 and
contain certain limitations that prevent the holder from acquiring shares upon exercise of a warrant that would result in the number of
shares beneficially owned by it to exceed 9.98% of the total number of shares of our common stock then issued and outstanding.
In addition, upon certain change of control transactions, or upon certain “events of default” (as defined in the warrant agreement),
the holder has the right to net exercise the warrants for an amount of shares of our common stock equal to the Black-Scholes value of the
shares issuable under the warrants divided by 95% of the closing price of the common stock on the day immediately prior to the
consummation of such change of control or event of default, as applicable. In certain circumstances where a warrant or portion of a
warrant is not net exercised in connection with a change of control or event of default, the holder will be paid an amount in cash equal to
the Black-Scholes value of such portion of the warrant not treated as a net exercise.
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The warrants issued in connection with the Facility Agreement qualify for permanent classification as equity and their relative fair
value of $6.1 million on the issuance date was recorded as additional paid in capital and debt discount. The remaining unamortized
value of the warrants was recorded as interest expense in the year ended December 31, 2009, in connection with the repayment and
termination of the initial disbursement.
Convertible Notes and Repayment and Termination of Term Loan
In June 2008, we sold $85.0 million principal amount of 5.375% Convertible Senior Notes due June 15, 2013 (the “5.375% Notes”)
in a private placement to qualified institutional buyers pursuant to Rule 144A under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended. The interest
rate on the notes is 5.375% per annum on the principal amount from June 16, 2008, payable semi-annually in arrears in cash on
December 15 and June 15 of each year, beginning December 15, 2008. The 5.375% Notes are convertible into our common stock at an
initial conversion rate of 46.8467 shares of common stock per $1,000 principal amount of the 5.375% Notes, which is equivalent to a
conversion price of approximately $21.35 per share, representing a conversion premium of 34% to the last reported sale price of our
common stock on the NASDAQ Global Market on June 10, 2008, subject to adjustment under certain circumstances, at any time
beginning on March 15, 2013 or under certain other circumstances and prior to the close of business on the business day immediately
preceding the final maturity date of the notes. The 5.375% Notes will be convertible for cash up to their principal amount and shares of
our common stock for the remainder of the conversion value in excess of the principal amount. We do not have the right to redeem any
of the 5.375% Notes prior to maturity. If a fundamental change, as defined in the Indenture for the 5.375% Notes, occurs at any time prior
to maturity, holders of the 5.375% Notes may require us to repurchase their notes in whole or in part for cash equal to 100% of the
principal amount of the notes to be repurchased, plus accrued and unpaid interest, including any additional interest, to, but excluding,
the date of repurchase.
If a holder elects to convert its 5.375% Notes upon the occurrence of a make-whole fundamental change, as defined in the Indenture
for the 5.375% Notes, the holder may be entitled to receive an additional number of shares of common stock on the conversion date.
These additional shares are intended to compensate the holders for the loss of the time value of the conversion option, and are set forth in
the Indenture for the 5.375% Notes. In no event will the shares issuable upon conversion of a note exceed 62.7746 per $1,000 principal
amount (subject to adjustment as described in the Indenture for the 5.375% Notes).
We adopted certain provisions of FASB ASC 470-20 Debt with Conversion and Other Options, on January 1, 2009. FASB ASC
470-20 clarifies that convertible debt instruments that may be settled in cash upon conversion should be separated between the liability
and equity components in a manner that will reflect the entity’s nonconvertible debt borrowing rate when interest cost is recognized in
subsequent periods. These provisions of FASB ASC 470-20 were applied retrospectively to all periods presented. Accordingly, we
recorded a debt discount of $26.9 million to equity to reflect the value of our nonconvertible debt borrowing rate of 14.5% per annum.
The $26.9 million represents the difference between our nonconvertible debt borrowing rate and the stated rate on the 5.375% Notes.
This debt discount is being amortized as interest expense beginning June 15, 2008 over the 5 year term of the 5.375% Notes.
We incurred interest expense of approximately $8.9 million and $4.6 million for the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008,
respectively, related to the 5.375% Notes. Of the $8.9 million recorded in the year ended December 31, 2009, approximately
$4.3 million relates to additional interest expense recognized under these provisions of FASB ASC 470-20. Of the $4.6 million recorded
in the year ended December 31, 2008, approximately $2.1 million relates to additional interest expense recognized under these
provisions of FASB ASC 470-20. We incurred deferred financing costs related to this offering of approximately $3.5 million, of which
$1.1 million has been reclassified as an offset to the amount allocated to equity. The remainder is recorded in the consolidated balance
sheet and is being amortized as a component of interest expense over the five year term of the notes.
As of December 31, 2009, the outstanding amounts related to the 5.375% Notes of $64.5 million are included in long-term debt in
the consolidated balance sheet and reflect the debt discount of $20.5 million. As
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of December 31, 2008, the outstanding amounts related to the 5.375% Notes of $60.2 million are included in long-term debt and have
been retroactively restated as required by FASB ASC 470-20 to reflect the debt discount of $24.8 million. The debt discount represents
the difference between our nonconvertible debt borrowing rate and the stated rate on the 5.375% Notes and includes the equity
allocation of $25.8 million (which represents $26.9 million less the $1.1 million of allocated financing costs) offset by the accretion of
the debt discount through interest expense from the issuance date in 2008 over the 5 year term of the notes. We recorded $4.3 million of
interest expense related to the debt discount in the year ended December 31, 2009. As of December 31, 2009, the 5.375% Notes have a
remaining life of 3.5 years. The statement of operations for the 2008 periods subsequent to the debt issuance on June 15, 2008, has been
retroactively restated to reflect the additional interest expense pursuant to FASB ASC 470-20. We recorded $2.1 million of interest
expense related to the debt discount in the year ended December 31, 2008.
We received net proceeds of approximately $81.5 million from the 5.375% Notes offering. Approximately $23.2 million of the net
proceeds from this offering was used to repay and terminate our then-existing term loan, including outstanding principal and accrued
and unpaid interest of $21.8 million, a prepayment fee related to the term loan of approximately $0.4 million and a termination fee of
$0.9 million. We are using the remainder for general corporate purposes. We incurred interest expense of approximately $1.5 million and
$3.2 million on the term loan for the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively. We incurred no interest on the term loan in
the year ended December 31, 2009. The term loan was subject to a loan origination fee of $0.9 million, which was recorded in the
consolidated balance sheet and was being amortized as a component of interest expense over the term of the loan. The remaining balance
of deferred financing costs of approximately $0.6 million was written off at the repayment and termination date. In connection with this
term loan, we issued warrants to the lenders to purchase up to 247,252 shares of Series E preferred stock at a purchase price of $3.64 per
share. The warrants automatically converted into warrants to purchase common stock on a 1-for-2.6267 basis at a purchase price of $9.56
per share at the closing of our initial public offering in May 2007. We recorded the $0.8 million fair value of the warrants as a discount to
the term loan. Upon repayment and termination of the term loan, we recognized approximately $0.5 million as interest expense for the
unamortized balance of the warrants’ fair value. The difference between the amount paid, including the prepayment fee, and the carrying
value of the term loan, including the remaining deferred financing costs and unamortized warrants to purchase common stock, was
recognized as a $1.5 million loss from early extinguishment of the term loan.
Financial Operations Overview
Revenue. Revenue is recognized in accordance with FASB ASC 605-10, Revenue Recognition, and FASB ASC 605-25, Revenue —
Multiple Element Arrangements. We derive most of our revenue from the sale of the OmniPod System directly to patients and third-party
distributors who resell the product to diabetes patients. The OmniPod System is comprised of two devices: the OmniPod, a disposable
insulin infusion device that the patient wears for up to three days and then replaces; and the Personal Diabetes Manager, or PDM, a
handheld device much like a personal digital assistant that wirelessly programs the OmniPod with insulin delivery instructions, assists
the patient with diabetes management and incorporates a blood glucose meter. Revenue is derived from the sale to new customers or
third-party distributors of OmniPods and Starter Kits, which include the PDM, the OmniPod System User Guide and our Interactive
Training CD, and from the subsequent sales of OmniPods to existing customers. Customers generally order a three-month supply of
OmniPods. During the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007, materially all of our revenue was derived from sales within the
United States.
In March 2008, we received a cash payment from Abbott Diabetes Care, Inc. (“Abbott”) for an agreement fee in connection with
execution of the first amendment to the development and license agreement with Abbott. We recognize the payment as revenue over the
5 year term of the agreement. Under the amended Abbott agreement, beginning July 1, 2008, Abbott agreed to pay us an amount for
services performed by us in connection with each sale of a PDM that includes an Abbott Discrete Blood Glucose Monitor to a new
customer. We recognize the revenue related to this portion of the Abbott agreement at the time the revenue is recognized on the sale of
the PDM to the patient. In the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008, we
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recognized $7.1 million and $2.5 million of revenue, respectively, related to the amended Abbott agreement. There was no impact to
cost of revenue related to this agreement.
As of December 31, 2009 and 2008, we had deferred revenue of $5.1 million and $4.0 million, respectively, which includes the
deferred revenue related to the agreement fee received under the first amendment to our development agreement with Abbott.
For the year ending December 31, 2010, we expect our revenue to continue to increase as we continue to gain new diabetes patients
in the United States and expand to certain international markets. Increased revenue will be dependent upon the success of our sales
efforts, our ability to produce OmniPods in sufficient volumes and other risks and uncertainties.
Cost of revenue. Cost of revenue consists primarily of raw material, labor, warranty and overhead costs related to the OmniPod
System. Cost of revenue also includes depreciation, freight and packaging costs.
The increase in our OmniPod manufacturing capacity, as well as our ability to gain cost savings on our bill of materials, is expected
to reduce the per-unit cost of manufacturing the OmniPods by allowing us to reduce our direct costs and spread our fixed and semi-fixed
overhead costs over a greater number of units. However, if sales volumes do not increase, then the average cost of revenue per OmniPod
may not decrease and we may incur gross losses.
Research and development. Research and development expenses consist primarily of personnel costs within our product
development, regulatory and clinical functions, and the costs of market studies and product development projects. We expense all
research and development costs as incurred. For the fiscal year 2010, we expect overall research and development spending to be in line
with 2009 levels as we support our current research and development efforts, which are focused primarily on increased functionality,
improved design for ease of use and reduction of production cost, as well as developing a new OmniPod System that incorporates
continuous glucose monitoring technology.
Sales and marketing. Sales and marketing expenses consist primarily of personnel costs within our sales, marketing, reimbursement
support, customer support and training functions, sales commissions paid to our sales representatives and costs associated with
participation in medical conferences, physician symposia and promotional activities, including distribution of units used in our
demonstration kit programs. In the year ending December 31, 2010, we expect sales and marketing expenses to increase slightly
compared to 2009 as we align our sales and marketing efforts with our expanding business needs.
General and administrative. General and administrative expenses consist primarily of salaries and other related costs for personnel
serving the executive, finance, information technology and human resource functions, as well as legal fees, accounting fees, insurance
costs, bad debt expenses, shipping, handling and facilities-related costs. We expect general and administrative expenses to decrease
slightly in 2010 compared to 2009 as we continue to drive efficiencies in our administrative functions.
Restructuring expenses and impairments of assets. In connection with our efforts to pursue improved gross margins, leverage
operational efficiencies and better pursue opportunities for low-cost supplier sourcing of asset costs, we periodically perform an
evaluation of our manufacturing processes and review the carrying value of our property and equipment to assess the recoverability of
these assets and determine whether impairment may have occurred. As part of this assessment, we review the planned use of the assets as
well as the future undiscounted operating cash flows expected to be generated by those assets. If impairment is indicated through this
review, the carrying amount of the asset would be reduced to its estimated fair value. This review of manufacturing processes and
equipment can result in restructuring activity or an impairment of assets based on current net book value and potential future use of the
assets. We recorded asset impairment charges of $7.4 million and $1.0 million in the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007,
respectively. No asset impairment charges were recorded in the year ended December 31, 2009.
Our restructuring expenses may also include workforce reduction and related costs for one-time termination benefits provided to
employees who are involuntarily terminated under the terms of a one-time benefit arrangement. We record these one-time termination
benefits upon incurring the liability provided that
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the employees are notified, the plan is approved by the appropriate level of management, the employees to be terminated and the
expected completion date are identified and the benefits the identified employees will be paid are established. Significant changes to the
plan are not expected when we record the costs. In recording the workforce reduction and related costs, we estimate related costs such as
taxes and outplacement services which may be provided under the plan. If changes in these estimated services occur, we may be required
to record or reverse restructuring expenses associated with these workforce reduction and related costs. Restructuring and impairment of
assets includes workforce related charges of $0.8 million in the year ended December 31, 2008. No workforce related charges were
included in our restructuring and impairment of assets in the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2007. In the year ended December 31,
2009, we recorded a charge to operating expenses of $0.6 million for workforce reduction and related costs as part of our continued focus
on aligning our infrastructure. At December 31, 2009, we had accrued severance of approximately $0.3 million related to this charge.
Stock based compensation expense. Prior to January 1, 2006, we accounted for our stock-based awards using the minimum value
method of accounting. Effective January 1, 2006, we adopted the fair value recognition provisions of FASB ASC 718-10,
Compensation — Stock Compensation, using the prospective method.
Results of Operations for the Fiscal Years Ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007
The following table presents certain statement of operations information for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007:

2009

Revenue
Cost of revenue
Gross profit (loss)
Operating expenses:
Research and development
General and administrative
Sales and marketing
Restructuring and impairment of assets
Total operating expenses
Operating loss
Other income (expense), net
Net loss(1)

Year Ended December 31,
Year Ended December 31,
2008
2008
(Restated)
% Change
(Restated)
2007
% Change
(Dollar amounts in thousands)

$ 66,032
47,735
18,297

$ 36,059
40,643
(4,584)

83%
17%
499%

$ 36,059
40,643
(4,584)

$ 13,372
25,733
(12,361)

170%
58%
63%

13,231
26,842
37,583
—
77,656
(59,359)
(20,182)
$(79,541)

13,104
23,750
39,734
8,170
84,758
(89,342)
(5,429)
$ (94,771)

1%
13%
5%
100%
8%
34%
272%
16%

13,104
23,750
39,734
8,170
84,758
(89,342)
(5,429)
$ (94,771)

10,391
13,922
16,141
1,027
41,481
(53,842)
303
$(53,539)

26%
71%
146%
696%
104%
66%
1892%
77%

Results for the year ended December 31, 2008 have been restated to reflect the retrospective adoption of certain provisions of FASB
ASC 470-20.
(1) Net loss for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007 includes $4.2 million, $3.4 million, and $1.5 million, respectively,
for stock based compensation expense as required by FASB ASC 718-10. We adopted the fair value recognition provisions of FASB
ASC 718-10 on a prospective basis.
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Comparison of the Years Ended December 31, 2009 and December 31, 2008
Revenue
Our total revenue was $66.0 million for year ended December 31, 2009, as compared to $36.1 million for the year ended
December 31, 2008. The increase in revenue is due to the increase in the number of diabetes patients using the OmniPod System as well
as increased volume with third-party distributors who resell our product to diabetes patients.
Cost of Revenue
Cost of revenue was $47.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2009, as compared to $40.6 million for the year ended
December 31, 2008. The increase is due to increased sales volume partially offset by lower per-unit costs. Lower per-unit cost is a result
of cost savings on raw materials, volume discounts from our suppliers and increased production volumes. Revenue increased by 83.1%
from the year ended December 31, 2008 to the year ended December 31, 2009, while cost of revenue increased by only 17.4% in the
same period mainly due to the reduction in cost per OmniPod.
Research and Development
Research and development expense increased $0.1 million, or 1.0%, to $13.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2009, as
compared to $13.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2008. For the year ended December 31, 2009 the increase in expense was
primarily related to increased severance expense of $0.3 million offset by a $0.2 million decrease in products used for research and
development purposes.
General and Administrative
General and administrative expense increased $3.1 million, or 13.0%, to $26.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2009, as
compared to $23.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2008. For the year ended December 31, 2009, the increase in expense was
primarily due to an increase of $2.2 million in employee related expenses mainly related to increased bonuses of $0.8 million and stock
based compensation of $0.9 million, an increase of $0.8 million related to allowances for doubtful accounts and an increase of
$0.6 million in license fees. These increases were offset by a $0.3 million decrease in depreciation expense and a $0.1 million decrease in
freight expense.
Sales and Marketing
Sales and marketing expense decreased $2.2 million, or 5.4%, to $37.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2009, as compared
to $39.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2008. The decrease in expense for the year ended December 31, 2009, was primarily
due to a $3.5 million reduction in patient demonstration kit units and a reduction of $0.6 million in advertising, promotion and
tradeshow expenses used to support our selling efforts. These decreases were offset by an increase of $1.6 million in employee related
expenses, primarily due to increasing commissions as a result of our increasing revenue, and a $0.8 million increase in outside services.
Restructuring and Impairment of Assets
We had no restructuring or impairment activity in the year ended December 31, 2009. For the year ended December 31, 2008, our
restructuring expenses and impairment of assets was $8.2 million. In the fourth quarter of 2008, we recorded restructuring charges of
$8.2 million for the impairment of certain manufacturing equipment no longer in use as well as workforce reduction and related costs. As
part of the our strategic goal to pursue improved gross margins, leverage operational efficiencies and better pursue opportunities for lowcost supplier sourcing, we transitioned the manufacturing of completed OmniPods to Flextronics International Ltd., located in China. We
determined that we would no longer use certain manufacturing equipment located in our Bedford facility. In addition, this transition
resulted in a reduction in workforce of approximately 30 employees, mainly in the manufacturing and quality departments. As a result of
these actions, we recorded
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a non-cash charge of $7.4 million related to impairments of assets as well as $0.8 million in workforce and related charges in 2008.
As of December 31, 2008, our accrued restructuring was $0.6 million for final payments of severance and was fully utilized during
2009. We had no accrued restructuring expense as of December 31, 2009.
The following is a summary of restructuring activity for the year ended December 31, 2009 and 2008:
Year Ended
December 31,
2009
2008
(In thousands)

Balance at the beginning of year
Restructuring expense
Utilization
Balance at the end of the year

$ 612
—
(612)
$ —

$ —
758
(146)
$ 612

Other Income (Expense)
Interest income was $0.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2009, as compared to $1.8 million for the year ended
December 31, 2008. This represents a decrease of $1.6 million compared to the year ended December 31, 2008, caused primarily by
lower cash balances and interest rates. Interest income was earned from cash deposits and short-term interest bearing instruments. Interest
expense was $20.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2009, as compared to $7.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2008.
This represents an increase of $13.2 million compared to the year ended December 31, 2008.
The increase in interest expense is primarily a result of additional interest incurred on the 5.375% Notes, the retrospective adoption
of FASB ASC 470-20 and interest incurred on the Facility Agreement entered into in March 2009 and amended in September 2009. We
recorded interest expense on the 5.375% Notes of $8.9 million in the year ended December 31, 2009. Of the $8.9 million, $4.3 million
related to interest recognized under the provisions of FASB ASC 470-20 and $4.6 million related to cash interest. We recorded interest
expense on the 5.375% Notes of $4.6 million in the year ended December 31, 2008. Of the $4.6 million, $2.1 million related to interest
recognized under the provisions of FASB ASC 470-20 and $2.5 million related to cash interest. We also recognized interest expense of
$11.1 million related to the Facility Agreement in the year ended December 31, 2009. Of the $11.1 million recorded in 2009,
approximately $2.5 million related to cash interest, $1.0 million related to amortization of the debt discount and deferred financing costs
and $7.6 million related to the charge taken for the remaining unamortized portion of the debt discount and deferred financing costs in
connection with the repayment and termination of the initial disbursement.
Comparison of the Years Ended December 31, 2008 and December 31, 2007
Revenue
Our total revenue was $36.1 million for year ended December 31, 2008, as compared to $13.4 million for the year ended
December 31, 2007. The increase in revenue is due to the increase in the number of diabetes patients using the OmniPod System as well
as relationships with third-party distributors who resell our product to diabetes patients.
Cost of Revenue
Cost of revenue was $40.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2008, as compared to $25.7 million for the year ended
December 31, 2007. The increase is due to increased sales volume partially offset by lower per-unit costs. Cost of revenue included
adjustment of inventory to the lower of cost or market and indirect costs. Since the OmniPods were sold at a price below direct
manufacturing costs in 2007, the inventory adjustment made as of December 31, 2007 increased cost of revenue by $0.6 million. There
was no adjustment made as of December 31, 2008. This was a result of a reduced cost of raw materials and increased volumes
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which improved the absorption of manufacturing overhead costs. During the third quarter of 2008, we incurred production costs for the
OmniPod which were lower than its selling price, primarily due to increased production volumes of the OmniPod which improved
positive gross margin on sales of our OmniPod system.
Research and Development
Research and development expense increased $2.7 million, or 26.1%, to $13.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2008, as
compared to $10.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2007. For the year ended December 31, 2008 the increase in expense was
primarily attributable to an increase of $2.4 million in employee related expenses, $0.5 million in consulting services, $0.5 million in
tools and supplies, offset by a $0.7 million decrease in prototype and other expenses.
General and Administrative
General and administrative expense increased $9.8 million, or 70.6%, to $23.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2008, as
compared to $13.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2007. For the year ended December 31, 2008, the increase in expense was
primarily due to an increase of $2.6 million in employee related expenses primarily with respect to the hiring of additional employees,
$3.2 million related to allowances for doubtful accounts, $0.5 million in consulting related expenses, $1.3 million in increased
depreciation expense, $0.3 million for travel expenses and $0.8 million in increased freight expense.
Sales and Marketing
Sales and marketing expense increased $23.6 million, or 146.2%, to $39.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2008, as
compared to $16.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2007. The increase in expense for the year ended December 31, 2008, was
primarily due to an increase of $11.2 million in employee related expenses resulting from the hiring of additional employees in our sales
and marketing departments, $3.8 million in patient demonstration kit units and other supplies, $2.6 million in travel expenses,
$3.1 million in marketing consultants which include our external trainers and $1.5 million in printing and tradeshow expenses used to
support our selling efforts.
Restructuring and Impairment of Assets
Restructuring expenses and impairment of assets was $8.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2008, compared to $1.0 million
for the year ended December 31, 2007. In the fourth quarter of 2008, we recorded restructuring charges of $8.2 million for the impairment
of certain manufacturing equipment no longer in use as well as workforce reduction and related costs. As part of the our strategic goal to
pursue improved gross margins, leverage operational efficiencies and better pursue opportunities for low-cost supplier sourcing, we
transitioned the manufacturing of completed OmniPods to Flextronics International Ltd., located in China. We determined that we would
no longer use certain manufacturing equipment located in our Bedford facility. In addition, this transition resulted in a reduction in
workforce of approximately 30 employees, mainly in the manufacturing and quality departments. As a result of these actions, we
recorded a non-cash charge of $7.4 million related to impairments of assets as well as $0.8 million in workforce and related charges.
Employees terminated were mainly in the manufacturing and quality departments. In addition, certain members of senior
management were terminated. This reduction was primarily in response to our successful transition of portions of the manufacturing
process to Flextronics as well as on-going alignment of our infrastructure.
During the third quarter of 2008, we successfully transitioned our production of completed OmniPods to the manufacturing line
operated by Flextronics. Pursuant to our agreement with Flextronics, Flextronics will supply, as a non-exclusive supplier, OmniPods at
agreed upon prices per unit pursuant to a rolling 12-month forecast provided by us. The initial term of the agreement is three years from
January 3, 2007, with automatic one-year renewals. The agreement may be terminated at any time by either party upon prior written
notice given no less than a specified number of days prior to the date of termination. We continue to manufacture certain sub-assemblies
and maintain packaging operations in our Bedford, Massachusetts facility.
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We ceased to use certain assets in our Bedford facility in connection with the transition of manufacturing to Flextronics. We
continued to evaluate Flextronics’ ability to manufacture completed OmniPods against the rolling forecast as well as anticipated
capacity and demand throughout the fourth quarter of 2008. During the fourth quarter we concluded that the capacity of the
manufacturing line operated by Flextronics was considered adequate to meet anticipated demand and quality standards. As we
determined that we would no longer use the Bedford equipment on December 1, 2008, we recorded an impairment charge for the
remaining net book value of the assets of $7.4 million on that date. The equipment had no expected salvage value as it was highly
customized equipment that can only be used for the manufacture of OmniPods.
During the year ended December 31, 2007, we completed the evaluation of an upgrade of our manufacturing processes. The
upgrade of our product design and associated manufacturing processes were aimed at achieving lower per-unit costs. As a result, we
performed a review of certain production equipment. The review resulted in a non-cash charge of $1.0 million for the write-down of
certain impaired assets. The impaired assets, which had no future use, consisted of manufacturing equipment. The impairment charges
were recorded following determination of the fair value of cash flows resulting from use of the affected assets, and the carrying value of
the assets has been reduced to reflect their fair value.
Other Income (Expense)
Interest income was $1.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2008, as compared to $3.5 million during the year ended
December 31, 2007. This represents a decrease of $1.7 million compared to the year ended December 31, 2007, caused primarily by
lower cash balances and interest rates. Interest income was earned from cash deposits and short-term interest bearing instruments. Interest
expense was $7.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2008, as compared to $3.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2007.
This represents an increase of $4.0 million compared to the year ended December 31, 2007. The increase in interest expense was
attributable to higher debt levels under our $30 million term loan, interest on the 5.375% Notes, and the retrospective adoption of FASB
ASC 470-20.
Upon the closing of our initial public offering in May 2007, all outstanding warrants to purchase shares of our preferred stock were
converted into warrants to purchase shares of our common stock. The aggregate fair value of these warrants as of May 18, 2007,
determined to be $2.0 million, was reclassified from liabilities to additional paid-in capital, a component of stockholders’ equity, and we
have ceased to record any related periodic fair value adjustments. As a result of the determination of fair value, we recorded other
expenses of approximately $0.1 million in the year ended December 31, 2007, as the aggregate fair value of warrants decreased from the
value recorded at March 31, 2007. The decrease in fair value was primarily caused by a lower expected life for the warrants, considering
the existence of a market for our company’s common stock.
Liquidity and Capital Resources
We commenced operations in 2000, and, to date, we have financed our operations primarily through private placements of our
preferred stock, secured indebtedness and our initial public offering of our common stock in May 2007 and subsequent public offerings
of our common stock in November 2007 and October 2009. Since inception, we have received net proceeds of $478.3 million from the
issuance of redeemable convertible preferred stock, common stock and debt. As of December 31, 2009, we had $128.0 million in cash
and cash equivalents.
In October 2009, in a public offering, we issued and sold 6,900,000 shares of our common stock at a price to the public of $10.25
per share. In connection with the offering, we received total gross proceeds of $70.7 million, or approximately $66.1 million in net
proceeds after deducting underwriting discounts and offering expenses.
In March 2009, we entered into a Facility Agreement with certain institutional accredited investors, pursuant to which the investors
agreed to loan us up to $60 million, subject to the terms and conditions set forth in the Facility Agreement. Following the initial
disbursement of $27.5 million on March 31, 2009, we could, but were not required to, draw down on the facility in $6.5 million
increments at any time until November 2010 provided that we met certain financial performance milestones. In connection with this
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financing, we paid Deerfield Management Company, L.P., an affiliate of the lead lender, a one-time transaction fee of $1.2 million. Total
financing costs, including the transaction fee were $3.0 million. The amounts initially drawn under the Facility Agreement accrued
interest at a rate of 9.75% per annum, and the undrawn amounts under the Facility Agreement accrued interest at a rate of 2.75% per
annum. Accrued interest is payable quarterly in cash in arrears beginning on June 1, 2009. We had the right to prepay any amounts owed
without penalty unless the prepayment was in connection with a major transaction.
In September 2009, we entered into an Amendment to the Facility Agreement whereby we repaid the $27.5 million of outstanding
debt and promptly drew down the remaining $32.5 million available under the Facility Agreement. The lender eliminated all future
performance-related milestones associated with the remaining $32.5 million available on the credit facility and reduced the annual
interest rate on any borrowed funds to 8.5%. In connection with the Amendment to the Facility Agreement, we entered into a Securities
Purchase Agreement with the lenders whereby we sold 2,855,659 shares of our common stock to the lenders at $9.63 per share. We
received aggregate proceeds of $27.5 million in connection with the sale of our shares. All principal amounts outstanding under the
Facility Agreement are payable in September 2012.
In June 2008, we sold $85 million principal amount of 5.375% Convertible Senior Notes due June 15, 2013 (the “5.375% Notes”)
in a private placement to qualified institutional buyers pursuant to Rule 144A under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended. The interest
rate on the notes is 5.375% per annum on the principal amount from June 16, 2008, payable semi-annually in arrears in cash on
December 15 and June 15 of each year, beginning December 15, 2008. The 5.375% Notes are convertible into our common stock at an
initial conversion rate of 46.8467 shares of common stock per $1,000 principal amount of the 5.375% Notes, which is equivalent to a
conversion price of approximately $21.35 per share, representing a conversion premium of 34% to the last reported sale price of our
common stock on the NASDAQ Global Market on June 10, 2008, per $1,000 principal amount of the 5.375% Notes, subject to
adjustment under certain circumstances, at any time beginning on March 15, 2013 or under certain other circumstances and prior to the
close of business on the business day immediately preceding the final maturity date of the notes. The 5.375% Notes will be convertible
for cash up to their principal amount and shares of our common stock for the remainder of the conversion value in excess of the principal
amount. We do not have the right to redeem any of the 5.375% Notes prior to maturity. If a fundamental change, as defined in the
Indenture for the 5.375% Notes, occurs at any time prior to maturity, holders of the 5.375% Notes may require us to repurchase their
notes in whole or in part for cash equal to 100% of the principal amount of the notes to be repurchased, plus accrued and unpaid interest,
including any additional interest, to, but excluding, the date of repurchase.
We received net proceeds of approximately $81.5 million from this offering. In June 2008, we used a portion of the net proceeds to
repay the entire outstanding principal balance, plus accrued and unpaid interest, under our then-existing term loan in the aggregate of
approximately $21.8 million. Additionally, we paid a prepayment fee related to the term loan of approximately $0.4 million, a
termination fee related to the term loan of $0.9 million, and incurred certain other expenses related to the repayment and termination of
the term loan.
We believe that our cash and cash equivalents, together with the cash to be generated from expected product sales, will be
sufficient to meet our projected operating and debt service requirements through at least the end of 2010.
The following table sets forth the amounts of cash used in operating activities and net loss for each of the periods indicated:

2009

Cash used in operating activities
Net loss

$(49,323)
$(79,541)

Year Ended December 31,
2008
(Restated)
(In thousands)

$ (82,611)
$ (94,771)

2007

$(50,372)
$(53,539)

Net cash used in operating activities primarily represents funds utilized in the development and commercialization of the OmniPod
System. The decrease of $33.3 million in cash used in operating activities
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for the year ended December 31, 2009 compared to the year ended December 31, 2008 was due primarily to the increase in our business,
our ability to generate gross margins in 2009 and cost containment initiatives implemented as we strive to become profitable. Cash used
in operations in the year ended December 31, 2009 is primarily a result of our net loss of $79.5 million offset by non-cash items such as
depreciation and bad debt expense and includes an increase in net accounts receivable of $7.0 million, partially offset by a decrease in
inventory of $5.8 million, a decrease in prepaids and other current assets of $0.7 million, an increase in accounts payable and accrued
expenses of $1.5 million and an increase in deferred revenue of $1.6 million. The increase in accounts receivable balance is related to
increased sales and slower than expected collections. The decrease in inventory is a result of increased demand from our growing
customer base offset by improved manufacturing capacity.
The following table sets forth the amounts of cash used in investing activities and cash provided by financing activities for each of
the periods indicated:
2009

Cash used in investing activities
Cash provided by financing activities

$ (3,140)
$123,796

Year Ended December 31,
2008 (Restated)
(In thousands)

$
$

(10,047)
54,733

2007

$ (10,089)
$121,818

Cash used in investing activities was primarily for the purchase of fixed assets for use in the development and manufacturing of the
OmniPod System in the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007. Cash provided by financing activities in the year ended
December 31, 2009, was primarily generated from the net proceeds from the Facility Agreement entered into in March 2009 and
amended in September 2009, the sale of common shares in connection with the amendment in September 2009 and the sale of
6,900,000 shares of common stock at a price to the public of $10.25 per share in October 2009. Cash provided by financing activities in
the year ended December 31, 2008 was primarily a result of the private placement of our convertible debt in 2008. Cash provided by
financing activities in the year ended December 31, 2007 was primarily a result of offerings of our common stock in 2007.
We lease our facilities, which are accounted for as operating leases. The leases of our facilities in Bedford and Billerica,
Massachusetts, generally provide for a base rent plus real estate taxes and certain operating expenses related to the lease. All operating
leases contain renewal options and escalating payments over the life of the lease. As of December 31, 2009, we had an outstanding letter
of credit which totaled $0.2 million to cover our security deposits for lease obligations.
During the year ending December 31, 2010, we will be expending funds in connection with, among other things, our efforts to
increase our production capacity, improve our design for ease of use, develop a new OmniPod System that incorporate continuous
glucose monitoring technology and expand our sales and marketing activities to international markets.
Shareholder Rights Plan
In November 2008, our Board of Directors adopted a Shareholder Rights Plan, as set forth in the Shareholder Rights Agreement
between us and the rights agent, the purpose of which is, among other things, to enhance the Board’s ability to protect shareholder
interests and to ensure that shareholders receive fair treatment in the event any coercive takeover attempt of us is made in the future. The
Shareholder Rights Plan could make it more difficult for a third party to acquire, or could discourage a third party from acquiring, us or a
large block of our common stock.
In connection with the adoption of the Shareholder Rights Plan, our Board of Directors declared a dividend distribution of one
preferred stock purchase right (a “Right”) for each outstanding share of common stock to stockholders of record as of the close of
business on November 15, 2008. In addition, one Right will automatically attach to each share of common stock issued between
November 15, 2008 and the distribution date. The Rights currently are not exercisable and are attached to and trade with the outstanding
shares of common stock. Under the Shareholder Rights Plan, the Rights become exercisable if a person or group becomes an “acquiring
person” by acquiring 15% or more of the outstanding shares of common stock or if a
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person or group commences a tender offer that would result in that person owning 15% or more of the common stock. If a person or group
becomes an “acquiring person,” each holder of a Right (other than the acquiring person) would be entitled to purchase, at the thencurrent exercise price, such number of shares of our preferred stock which are equivalent to shares of common stock having a value of
twice the exercise price of the Right. If we are acquired in a merger or other business combination transaction after any such event, each
holder of a Right would then be entitled to purchase, at the then-current exercise price, shares of the acquiring company’s common stock
having a value of twice the exercise price of the Right.
Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
As of December 31, 2009, we did not have any off-balance sheet financing arrangements.
Contractual Obligations
The following table summarizes our principal contractual obligations as of December 31, 2009. Amounts in thousands:

Contractual Obligations

Operating lease obligations
Long-term debt obligations(1)
Purchase obligations for production components
Purchase obligations for capital expenditures
Total contractual obligations

Total

$

3,560
140,795
6,396
984
$151,735

Payments Due by Period
Less than
1-3
4-5
1 Year
Years
Years

$

900
7,332
6,396
984
$15,612

$ 1,510
46,369
—
—
$47,879

$ 1,150
87,094
—
—
$88,244

More than
5 Years

$
—
—
—
$

(1) The interest rate on the convertible debt is 5.375% per annum, and the interest rate on amounts outstanding under the facility
agreement entered into in March 2009 and amended in September 2009 is 8.5%. We have included future payments of interest on
the long-term debt in our obligations.
Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates
Our financial statements are based on the selection and application of generally accepted accounting principles, which require us to
make estimates and assumptions about future events that affect the amounts reported in our financial statements and the accompanying
notes. Future events and their effects cannot be determined with certainty. Therefore, the determination of estimates requires the exercise
of judgment. Actual results could differ from those estimates, and any such differences may be material to our financial statements. We
believe that the policies set forth below may involve a higher degree of judgment and complexity in their application than our other
accounting policies and represent the critical accounting policies and estimates used in the preparation of our financial statements. If
different assumptions or conditions were to prevail, the results could be materially different from our reported results.
We adopted the Financial Accounting Standard Board Accounting Standards Codification in the year ended December 31, 2009.
The FASB Accounting Standards Codification (“Codification”) has become the single source of authoritative accounting principles
recognized by the FASB to be applied by nongovernmental entities in the preparation of financial statements in accordance with GAAP.
All existing accounting standard documents are superseded by the Codification and any accounting literature not included in the
Codification will not be authoritative. However, rules and interpretive releases of the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”)
issued under the authority of federal securities laws will continue to be sources of authoritative GAAP for SEC registrants. All references
made to GAAP in our consolidated financial statements now use the new Codification numbering system. The Codification does not
change or alter existing GAAP and, therefore, did not have a material impact on our consolidated financial statements.
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Revenue Recognition
We generate nearly all of our revenue from sales of our OmniPod Insulin Management System to diabetes patients or third-party
distributors who resell the product to diabetes patients. The initial sale to a new customer typically includes OmniPods and a Starter Kit,
which include the PDM, the OmniPod System User Guide and the OmniPod System Interactive Training CD. We offer a 45-day right of
return for our Starter Kits sales. Subsequent sales to existing customers typically consist of additional OmniPods.
Revenue is recognized in accordance with FASB ASC 605-10 Revenue Recognition, which requires that persuasive evidence of a
sales arrangement exists, delivery of goods occurs through transfer of title and risk and rewards of ownership, the selling price is fixed or
determinable and collectibility is reasonably assured. With respect to these criteria:
• The evidence of an arrangement generally consists of a physician order form, a patient information form, and if applicable, thirdparty insurance approval for sales directly to patients or a purchase order for sales to a third-party distributor.
• Transfer of title and risk and rewards of ownership are typically passed to the patient or third-party distributor upon shipment of
the products.
• The selling prices for all sales are fixed and agreed with the patient or third-party distributor, and if applicable, the patient’s
third-party insurance provider(s) prior to shipment and are based on established list prices or, in the case of certain third-party
insurers, contractually agreed upon prices. Provisions for discounts and rebates to customers are established as a reduction to
revenue in the same period the related sales are recorded.
We have considered the requirements of FASB ASC 605-25 Revenue — Multiple Element Arrangements, when accounting for the
OmniPods and Starter Kits. FASB ASC 605-25 requires that we assess whether the different elements qualify for separate accounting. We
recognize revenue for the initial shipment to a patient or other third party once all elements have been delivered.
We offer a 45-day right of return for our Starter Kits sales and in accordance with FASB ASC 605-15, Revenue — Products, we defer
revenue to reflect estimated sales returns in the same period that the related product sales are recorded. Returns are estimated through a
comparison of historical return data to their related sales. Historical rates of return are adjusted for known or expected changes in the
marketplace when appropriate. Historically, sales returns have amounted to approximately 3% of gross product sales.
When doubt exists about reasonable assuredness of collectibility from specific customers, we defer revenue from sales of products
to those customers until payment is received.
In March 2008, we received a cash payment from Abbott Diabetes Care, Inc. (“Abbott”) for an agreement fee in connection with
execution of the first amendment to the development and license agreement between us and Abbott. We recognize the agreement fee
received from Abbott over the 5-year term of the agreement, and the non-current portion of the agreement fee is included in other longterm liabilities. Under the amended Abbott agreement, beginning July 1, 2008, Abbott agreed to pay us an amount for services performed
by us in connection with each sale of a PDM that includes an Abbott Discrete Blood Glucose Monitor to certain customers. We
recognize the revenue related to this portion of the Abbott agreement at the time we meet the criteria for revenue recognition, typically at
the time the revenue is recognized on the sale of the PDM to the patient. In the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008, we recognized
$7.1 million and $2.5 million, respectively, of revenue related to the amended Abbott agreement. There was no impact to cost of revenue
related to this agreement.
Restructuring Expense and Impairment of Assets
As part of our efforts to pursue improved gross margins, leverage operational efficiencies and better pursue opportunities for lowcost supplier sourcing of asset costs, we periodically perform an evaluation of our manufacturing processes and review the carrying value
of our property and equipment to assess the recoverability of these assets whenever events indicate that impairment may have occurred.
As part of this
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assessment, we review the planned use of the assets as well as the future undiscounted operating cash flows expected to be generated by
those assets. If impairment is indicated through this review, the carrying amount of the asset would be reduced to its estimated fair value.
This review of manufacturing processes and equipment can result in restructuring activity or an impairment of assets based on current net
book value and potential future use of the assets.
Our restructuring expenses may also include workforce reduction and related costs for one-time termination benefits provided to
employees who are involuntarily terminated under the terms of a one-time benefit arrangement. We record these one-time termination
benefits upon incurring the liability provided that the employees are notified, the plan is approved by the appropriate level of
management, the employees to be terminated and the expected completion date are identified and the benefits the identified employees
will be paid are established. Significant changes to the plan are not expected when we record the costs. In recording the workforce
reduction and related costs, we estimate related costs such as taxes and outplacement services which may be provided under the plan. If
changes in these estimated services occur, we may be required to record or reverse restructuring expenses associated with these workforce
reduction and related costs.
Asset Valuation
Asset valuation includes assessing the recorded value of certain assets, including accounts receivable, inventory and fixed assets.
We use a variety of factors to assess valuation, depending upon the asset. Actual results may differ materially from our estimates.
Inventories are held at the lower of their cost or market value. We periodically review inventories for potential impairment based on
quantities on hand and expectations of future use. Property and equipment is stated at cost and depreciated using the straight-line
method over the estimated useful lives of the respective assets. Leasehold improvements are amortized over their useful life or the life of
the lease, whichever is shorter. We review long-lived assets, including property and equipment and intangibles, for impairment whenever
events or changes in business circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the assets may not be fully recoverable. We also review
assets under construction to ensure certainty of their future installation and integration into the manufacturing process. An impairment
loss would be recognized when estimated undiscounted future cash flows expected to result from the use of the asset and its eventual
disposition is less than its carrying amount. Impairment, if any, is measured as the amount by which the carrying amount of a long-lived
asset exceeds its fair value. We consider various valuation factors, principally planned use of the assets and discounted cash flows, to
assess the fair values of long-lived assets.
Income Taxes
FASB ASC 740-10, Income Taxes, clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes recognized in an entity’s financial
statements. FASB ASC 740-10 prescribes a recognition threshold and measurement attribute for the financial statement recognition and
measurement of a tax position taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. In addition, FASB ASC 740-10 provides guidance on
derecognition, classification, interest and penalties, accounting in interim periods, disclosure and transition. The provisions related to
accounting for uncertain tax positions is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2006. We adopted these provisions on
January 1, 2007. The adoption of these provisions of FASB ASC 740-10 did not have a material impact on our financial position or
results of operations. As of December 31, 2009, we have $0.1 million of unrecognized tax benefits recorded. As of December 31, 2008,
we had no unrecognized tax benefits recorded.
Stock Based Compensation
We account for stock-based compensation under the provisions of FASB ASC 718-10, Compensation — Stock Compensation.
FASB ASC 718-10 requires all share-based payments to employees, including grants of employee stock options, to be recognized in the
income statement based on their fair values.
Nonpublic companies that used the minimum value method for either recognition or pro forma disclosures to apply the fair value
method under FASB ASC 718-10 using the prospective-transition method. As such, we
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will continue to apply the minimum value method in future periods to equity awards outstanding that were originally measured using
the minimum value method.
We use the Black-Scholes option pricing model to determine the weighted-average fair value of options granted. We recognize the
compensation expense of share-based awards on a straight-line basis over the vesting period of the award.
The determination of the fair value of share-based payment awards utilizing the Black-Scholes model is affected by the stock price
and a number of assumptions, including expected volatility, expected life, risk-free interest rate and expected dividends. Because our
initial public offering was completed in May 2007, we do not have sufficient history of market prices of our common stock, and as such
we estimate volatility in accordance with Securities and Exchange Commission’s Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 107, Share-Based
Payment , or SAB 107, using historical volatilities of comparable public entities. The expected life of the awards is estimated based on
the “SEC Shortcut Approach” as defined in SAB 107, which is the midpoint between the vesting date and the end of the contractual
term. The risk-free interest rate assumption is based on observed interest rates appropriate for the terms of the awards. The dividend yield
assumption is based on company history and expectation of paying no dividends. Forfeitures are estimated at the time of grant and
revised, if necessary, in subsequent periods if actual forfeitures differ from those estimates. Stock based compensation expense
recognized in the financial statements is based on awards that are ultimately expected to vest. We evaluate the assumptions used to value
the awards on a quarterly basis and if factors change and different assumptions are utilized, stock based compensation expense may differ
significantly from what has been recorded in the past. If there are any modifications or cancellations of the underlying unvested
securities, we may be required to accelerate, increase or cancel any remaining unearned stock based compensation expense.
Prior to April 1, 2006, the exercise prices for options granted were set by our board of directors based upon guidance set forth by the
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants in the AICPA Technical Practice Aid. To that end, the board considered a number of
factors in determining the option price, including the following factors: (1) prices for our preferred stock, which we had sold to outside
investors in arms-length transactions, and the rights, preferences and privileges of our preferred stock and common stock in the Series A
through Series E financing, (2) obtaining FDA 510(k) clearance, (3) launching the OmniPod System and (4) achievement of budgeted
revenue and results.
In connection with the preparation of the financial statements for our initial public offering, we retrospectively estimated the fair
value of our common stock based upon several factors, including the following: (1) operating and financial performance, (2) progress
and milestones attained in the business, (3) past sales of convertible preferred stock, (4) the results of the retrospective independent
valuations, and (5) the expected valuation obtained in an initial public offering. We believe this to have been a reasonable methodology
based on the factors above and based on several arm’s length transactions involving our stock supportive of the results produced by this
valuation methodology.
Warrants
In connection with the term loans with Lighthouse Capital Partners in 2005 and a group of lenders led by Merrill Lynch Capital in
2006, we issued warrants to the lenders to purchase shares of our redeemable convertible preferred stock. Upon the closing of our initial
public offering in May 2007, all outstanding warrants to purchase shares of our preferred stock were converted into warrants to purchase
shares of our common stock on a 1-for-2.6267 basis at a purchase price of $9.56 per share and, as a result, are no longer be subject to
FSP 150-5 for periods ended or ending on or after that date. The aggregate fair value of these warrants as of May 18, 2007, determined to
be $2.0 million, was reclassified from liabilities to additional paid-in capital, a component of stockholders’ equity, and we have ceased
to record any related periodic fair value adjustments.
In the year ended December 31, 2007, Lighthouse Capital Partners V, L.P. exercised their right to convert 125,853 warrants into
common stock, resulting in the issuance and purchase of 89,821 shares of our common stock at $6.36 per share. In addition, two members
of the group of lenders led by Merrill Lynch Capital
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exercised their right to convert a total of 31,376 warrants into common stock, resulting in the issuance of 21,376 shares of our common
stock.
We recorded $0.8 million fair value of the warrants for Series E preferred stock as a discount to the term loan with Merrill Lynch
Capital. The value of the warrants was being amortized to interest expense over the 42-month life of this term loan. Upon repayment and
termination of the term loan in June 2008, we recognized approximately $0.5 million as interest expense for the unamortized balance of
the warrants’ fair value.
In connection with the $27.5 million initial disbursement related to the execution of the facility agreement in March 2009, we
issued to the lenders fully exercisable warrants to purchase an aggregate of 3.75 million shares of common stock at an exercise price of
$3.13 per share. We recorded $6.1 million fair value as additional paid in capital and debt discount. The unamortized value of the
warrants was recorded as interest expense in the third quarter of 2009, in connection with the repayment and termination of the initial
disbursement.
Significant terms and fair values of warrants to purchase common stock and redeemable convertible preferred stock are as follows
(in thousands except share and per share data):
Expiration
Date

Stock

Series E preferred
Common stock

December 27, 2013
March 13, 2015

Exercise
Price
per Share

$
$

9.56
3.13

Common Shares as of
December 31,
December 31,
2009
2008

62,752
3,750,000

62,752
—

Fair Value as of
December 31,
December 31,
2009
2008

—
—

—
—

Allowance for doubtful accounts
Accounts receivable consist of amounts due from third-party payors, patients and third-party distributors. We account for doubtful
accounts using the allowance method. The allowances for doubtful accounts are recorded in the period in which the revenue is recorded
or at the time the potential collection risk is identified. We estimate our allowance based on historical experience, assessment of specific
risk, discussions with individual customers or various assumptions and estimates that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances. At December 31, 2009 and 2008, the allowance for doubtful accounts was $7.2 million and $3.8 million, respectively. We
believe the reserve is adequate to mitigate current collection risk.
Warranty
We provide a four-year warranty on our PDMs and may replace any OmniPods that do not function in accordance with product
specifications. We estimate our warranty at the time the product is shipped based on historical experience and the estimated cost to
service the claims. Cost to service the claims reflects the current product cost which has been decreasing over time. As these estimates are
based on historical experience, and we continue to introduce new products and new versions of existing products, we also consider the
anticipated performance of the product over its warranty period in estimating warranty reserves.
Adoption of New Accounting Standards
FASB ASC 470-20 Debt — Debt with Conversion and Other Options clarifies that convertible debt instruments that may be settled
in cash upon conversion should be separated between the liability and equity components in a manner that will reflect the entity’s
nonconvertible debt borrowing rate when interest cost is recognized in subsequent periods. These provisions of FASB ASC 470-20 were
applied retrospectively to all periods presented. The cumulative effect of the change in accounting principle on prior periods was
recognized as of the beginning of the first period presented. We adopted these provisions of FASB ASC 470-20 as of January 1, 2009 and
have reclassified $26.9 million of our long-term debt to equity as of the issuance date of the convertible notes. During the year ended
December 31, 2009, we recorded $4.3 million of additional interest expense related to these provisions of FASB ASC 470-20. During the
year ended December 31, 2008, we recorded $2.1 million of additional interest expense related to the provisions of FASB ASC 470-20.
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We adopted certain provisions of FASB ASC 825-10, Subsequent Events, as of June 30, 2009. FASB ASC 825-10 provides
guidance to establish general standards of accounting for and disclosures of events that occur after the balance sheet date but before
financial statements are issued or are available to be issued. FASB ASC 825-10 also requires entities to disclose the date through which
subsequent events were evaluated as well as the rationale for why that date was selected. This disclosure should alert all users of financial
statements that an entity has not evaluated subsequent events after that date in the set of financial statements being presented. FASB
ASC 825-10 requires additional disclosures only, and therefore did not have an impact on our condensed consolidated financial
statements.
ITEM 7A.

QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

We do not use derivative financial instruments in our investment portfolio and have no foreign exchange contracts. Our financial
instruments consist of cash, cash equivalents, short-term investments, accounts receivable, accounts payable, accrued expenses and longterm obligations. We consider investments that, when purchased, have a remaining maturity of 90 days or less to be cash equivalents.
The primary objectives of our investment strategy are to preserve principal, maintain proper liquidity to meet operating needs and
maximize yields. To minimize our exposure to an adverse shift in interest rates, we invest mainly in cash equivalents and short-term
investments and maintain an average maturity of six months or less. We do not believe that a 10% change in interest rates would have a
material impact on the fair value of our investment portfolio or our interest income.
On December 31, 2009, we had outstanding debt recorded at $64.5 million related to our 5.375% Notes and $32.5 million related
to our Facility Agreement. As the interest rates on the 5.375% Notes and the Facility Agreement are fixed, changes in interest rates do not
affect the value of our debt or interest expense.
ITEM 8.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

The consolidated financial statements and supplementary data of the Company required in this item are set forth beginning on
page F-1 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
ITEM 9.

CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

None.
ITEM 9A.

CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Disclosure Controls and Procedures
Our management, with the participation of our chief executive officer and chief financial officer, evaluated the effectiveness of our
disclosure controls and procedures as of December 31, 2009. The term “disclosure controls and procedures,” as defined in
Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Exchange Act, means controls and other procedures of a company that are designed to ensure
that information required to be disclosed by a company in the reports that it files or submits under the Exchange Act is recorded,
processed, summarized and reported, within the time periods specified in the SEC’s rules and forms. Disclosure controls and procedures
include, without limitation, controls and procedures designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed by a company in the
reports that it files or submits under the Exchange Act is accumulated and communicated to the company’s management, including its
principal executive and principal financial officers, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure. Management
recognizes that any controls and procedures, no matter how well designed and operated, can provide only reasonable assurance of
achieving their objectives and management necessarily applies its judgment in evaluating the cost-benefit relationship of possible
controls and procedures. Based on the evaluation of our disclosure controls and procedures as of December 31, 2009, our chief executive
officer and chief financial officer concluded that, as of such date, our disclosure controls and procedures were effective at the reasonable
assurance level.
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Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
There were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the three months ended December 31,
2009 that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.
Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting as such term is
defined in Exchange Act Rule 13a — 15(f). Our internal control system was designed to provide reasonable assurance to our
management and the Board of Directors regarding the preparation and fair presentation of published financial statements. All internal
control systems, no matter how well designed have inherent limitations. Therefore, even those systems determined to be effective can
provide only reasonable assurance with respect to financial statement preparation and presentation. Our management assessed the
effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2009. In making this assessment, our management used
the criteria set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (“COSO”) in Internal Control —
Integrated Framework (the COSO criteria). Based on our assessment we believe that, as of December 31, 2009, our internal control over
financial reporting is effective based on those criteria. The effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2009 has been audited by Ernst & Young LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, as stated in their report
which appears below.
ITEM 9B.

OTHER INFORMATION

None.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
The Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Insulet Corporation
We have audited Insulet Corporation’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2009, based on criteria
established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission (the COSO criteria). Insulet Corporation’s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over
financial reporting, and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting included in the accompanying
Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the
company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our audit.
We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States).
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over
financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over
financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk, and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We
believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.
A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to
the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention
or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.
Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also,
projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
In our opinion, Insulet Corporation maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2009, based on the COSO criteria.
We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the
consolidated balance sheets of Insulet Corporation as of December 31, 2009 and 2008 and the related consolidated statements of
operations, consolidated statements of redeemable convertible preferred stock and changes in stockholders’ equity (deficit) and cash
flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2009 and our report dated March 9, 2010 expressed an unqualified
opinion thereon.

/s/ Ernst & Young LLP
Boston, Massachusetts
March 9, 2010
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PART III
ITEM 10.

DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Certain information required by this Item 10 relating to our directors, executive officers and corporate governance is incorporated
by reference herein from our proxy statement in connection with our 2010 annual meeting of stockholders, which proxy statement will
be filed with the SEC not later than 120 days after the close of our fiscal year ended December 31, 2009.
Audit Committee Financial Expert
The audit committee of our board of directors currently consists of Steven Sobieski (Chairman), Charles Liamos and Regina
Sommer. Our board of directors has determined that each member of the audit committee is “independent” as that term is defined in the
rules of the SEC and the applicable Nasdaq rules. Our board of directors has determined that each member of the audit committee
qualifies as an “audit committee financial expert” as such term is defined in the rules of the SEC. In making its determination, our board
of directors considered the nature and scope of the experiences and responsibilities each member has previously had with reporting
companies. Stockholders should understand that this designation is a disclosure requirement of the SEC related to the experience and
understanding of the members of the audit committee with respect to certain accounting and auditing matters. The designation does not
impose upon any duties, obligations or liability upon the members of the audit committee that are greater than are generally imposed on
other members of the audit committee and our board of directors, and designation as an audit committee financial expert pursuant to this
SEC requirement does not affect the duties, obligations or liability of any other member of the audit committee or the board of directors.
Code of Ethics
We have adopted a “code of ethics,” as defined by regulations promulgated under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and the
Exchange Act, that applies to all of our directors and employees worldwide, including our principal executive officer, principal financial
officer, principal accounting officer or controller, or persons performing similar functions. A current copy of the Code of Business
Conduct and Ethics is available at the Corporate Governance section of our website at http://www.insulet.com. A copy of the Code of
Business Conduct and Ethics may also be obtained, free of charge, upon a request directed to: 9 Oak Park Drive, Bedford, Massachusetts
01730, Attention: Secretary. We intend to disclose any amendment to or waiver of a provision of the Code of Business Conduct and
Ethics that applies to our principal executive officer, principal financial officer, principal accounting officer or controller, or persons
performing similar functions, by posting such information on our website available at http://www.insulet.com.
For more corporate governance information, you are invited to access the Corporate Governance section of our website available at
http://www.insulet.com.
ITEM 11.

EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Certain information required by this Item 11 relating to remuneration of directors and executive officers and other transactions
involving management is incorporated by reference herein from our proxy statement in connection with our 2010 annual meeting of
stockholders, which proxy statement will be filed with the SEC not later than 120 days after the close of our fiscal year ended
December 31, 2009.
ITEM 12.

SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

Certain information required by this Item 12 relating to security ownership of certain beneficial owners and management is
incorporated by reference herein from our proxy statement in connection with our 2010 annual meeting of stockholders, which proxy
statement will be filed with the SEC not later than 120 days after the close of our fiscal year ended December 31, 2009. For information
on securities authorized for issuance
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under equity compensation plans, see the section entitled “Market for Registrant’s Common Equity and Related Stockholders Matters”
in Part II, Item 5. in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
ITEM 13.

CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

Certain information required by this Item 13 relating to certain relationships and related transactions, and director independence is
incorporated by reference herein from our proxy statement in connection with our 2010 annual meeting of stockholders, which proxy
statement will be filed with the SEC not later than 120 days after the close of our fiscal year ended December 31, 2009.
ITEM 14.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES

Certain information required by this Item 14 regarding principal accounting fees and services is set forth under “Principal
Accounting Fees and Services” in our proxy statement in connection with our 2010 annual meeting of stockholders, which proxy
statement will be filed with the SEC not later than 120 days after the close of our fiscal year ended December 31, 2009.
PART IV
ITEM 15.

EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

The following documents are filed as part of this Form 10-K:
1. Financial Statements: Financial Statements are included in “Financial Statements and Supplementary Data” in Part II, Item 8 of
this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
2. Index to Financial Statement Schedules: Financial Statement Schedules are included in “Financial Statements and
Supplementary Data” in Part II, Item 8. of this Annual Report on Form 10-K. Schedules not listed therein are omitted because they are not
required or because the required information is given in the consolidated financial statements or notes thereto.
3. Exhibits: Exhibits are as set forth in the section entitled “Exhibit Index” which follows the section entitled “Signatures” in this
Annual Report on Form 10-K. Exhibits which are incorporated herein by reference can be inspected and copied at the public reference
rooms maintained by the SEC in Washington, D.C., New York, New York, and Chicago, Illinois. Please call the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330
for further information on the public reference rooms. SEC filings are also available to the public from commercial document retrieval
services and at the Website maintained by the SEC at http://www.sec.gov.
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SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this
report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.
INSULET CORPORATION
(Registrant)

/s/ Duane DeSisto
Duane DeSisto
President and Chief Executive Officer
Date: March 9, 2010
/s/ Brian Roberts
Brian Roberts
Chief Financial Officer
Date: March 9, 2010
POWER OF ATTORNEY AND SIGNATURES
We, the undersigned officers and directors of Insulet Corporation hereby severally constitute and appoint Duane DeSisto and Brian
Roberts, and each of them singly, our true and lawful attorneys, with full power to them and each of them singly, to sign for us in our
names in the capacities indicated below, all amendments to this reports, and generally to do all things in our names and on our behalf in
such capacities to enable Insulet Corporation to comply with the provisions of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and all
requirements of the Securities and Exchange Commission.
Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this Report has been signed below by the following persons
on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities on March 9, 2010.
Signature

Title

/s/ Duane DeSisto
Duane DeSisto

President, Chief Executive Officer and Director
(Principal Executive Officer)

/s/ Brian Roberts
Brian Roberts

Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial
and Accounting Officer)

/s/ Sally Crawford
Sally Crawford

Director

/s/ Ross Jaffe, M.D.
Ross Jaffe, M.D.

Director

/s/ Charles Liamos
Charles Liamos

Director
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Signature

Title

/s/ Steven Sobieski
Steven Sobieski

Director

/s/ Regina Sommer
Regina Sommer

Director

/s/ Joseph Zakrzewski
Joseph Zakrzewski

Director
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EXHIBIT INDEX
Listed and indexed below are all Exhibits filed as part of this report.
Number

3.1(4)
3.2(4)
4.1(1)
4.2(8)
4.3(8)
4.4(10)
4.5(10)
4.6(11)
4.7(12)
10.1(2)+
10.2(3)
10.3(3)
10.4(1)
10.7(1)
10.8(1)
10.9(1)
10.10(1)
10.11(1)
10.12(1)
10.13(1)
10.14(1)
10.15(1)
10.16(3)
10.17(5)+
10.18(5)+
10.19(6)+
10.20(7)
10.21(7)
10.22(9)
10.23(13)

Description

Eighth Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the Registrant
Amended and Restated By-laws of the Registrant
Specimen Stock Certificate
Indenture, dated June 16, 2008, between Insulet Corporation and Wells Fargo Bank, N.A.
Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of June 16, 2008, among Insulet Corporation, J.P. Morgan Securities Inc. and
Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner & Smith Incorporated.
Certificate of Designations, Preferences and Rights of a Series of Preferred Stock of Insulet Corporation classifying and
designating the Series A Junior Participating Cumulative Preferred Stock
Shareholder Rights Agreement, dated as of November 14, 2008, between Insulet Corporation and Registrar and Transfer
Company, as Rights Agent
Form of Warrant to purchase shares of common stock of Insulet Corporation
Amendment, dated September 25, 2009, to Shareholder Rights Agreement, dated as of November 14, 2008, between
Insulet Corporation and Computershare Trust Company, As Rights Agent
Development and License Agreement between TheraSense, Inc. and Insulet Corporation, dated January 23, 2002
Lease between William J. Callahan and Insulet Corporation, dated July 15, 2004
Credit and Security Agreement by and among Insulet Corporation, Sub-Q Solutions, Inc., the lenders party thereto and
Merrill Lynch Capital, as Administrative Agent, dated as of December 27, 2006
Insulet Corporation 2000 Stock Option and Incentive Plan
Insulet Corporation 2007 Stock Option and Incentive Plan
Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement for Employees under the 2007 Stock Option and Incentive Plan
Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement for Non-Employee Directors under the 2007 Stock Option and Incentive Plan
Restricted Stock Award Agreement under the 2007 Stock Option and Incentive Plan
Incentive Stock Option Agreement under the 2007 Stock Option and Incentive Plan
Insulet Corporation 2007 Employee Stock Purchase Plan
Employment Agreement between Duane DeSisto and Insulet Corporation, dated May 4, 2005
Employment Agreement between Carsten Boess and Insulet Corporation, dated May 9, 2006
Employment Agreement between Ruthann DePietro and Insulet Corporation, dated February 8, 2006
Form of Employee Non-Competition and Non-Solicitation Agreement by and between Insulet Corporation and each of
its executive officers
Master Supply Agreement between Insulet Corporation and Flextronic Marketing (L) Ltd., dated January 3, 2007
Addendum to Master Supply Agreement between Insulet Corporation and Flextronic Marketing (L) Ltd., dated October
4, 2007
Amendment No. 1 to Development and License Agreement, dated as of March 3, 2008, by and between Abbott Diabetes
Care, Inc., formerly known as TheraSense, Inc., and Insulet Corporation.
Amendment to the Company’s 2007 Stock Option and Incentive Plan.
Executive Severance Plan
Amended and Restated 2007 Stock Option and Incentive Plan
Offer Letter by and between Insulet Corporation and Brian Roberts, dated March 2, 2009
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Description

10.24(11) Facility Agreement, dated March 13, 2009, by and among Insulet Corporation and the lenders named therein
10.25(11) Registration Rights Agreement, dated March 13, 2009, by and among Insulet Corporation and the investors named
therein
10.26(11) Security Agreement, dated March 13, 2009, by and among Insulet Corporation and the secured parties named therein
10.27(14) Securities Purchase Agreement, dated September 25, 2009, by and between Insulet Corporation and certain investors
named therein
10.28(14) Amendment to Facility Agreement, dated September 25, 2009, by and between Insulet Corporation and the lenders
named therein
10.29
Offer Letter by and between Insulet Corporation and Peter Devlin, dated August 17, 2009
21.1
Subsidiaries of the Registrant
23.1
Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm (Ernst & Young LLP)
24.1
Power of Attorney (included on signature page)
31.1
Certification pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 by Chief Executive Officer.
31.2
Certification pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 by Chief Financial Officer.
32.1
Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002,
by Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer.
* This certification shall not be deemed “filed” for purposes of Section 18 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, or otherwise
subject to the liability of that Section, nor shall it be deemed to be incorporated by reference into any filing under the Securities
Act of 1933 or the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.
+ Confidential treatment granted as to certain portions of this exhibit.
(1) Incorporated by reference to Amendment No. 2 to our Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-140694) filed April 25,
2007.
(2) Incorporated by reference to Amendment No. 3 to our Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-140694) filed May 8,
2007.
(3) Incorporated by reference to our Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-140694) filed February 14, 2007.
(4) Incorporated by reference to our Registration Statement on Form S-8 (No. 333-144636) filed July 17, 2007.
(5) Incorporated by reference to our Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-146810) filed October 19, 2007.
(6) Incorporated by reference to our Current Report on Form 8-K, filed March 5, 2008
(7) Incorporated by reference to our Current Report on Form 8-K, filed May 14, 2008
(8) Incorporated by reference to our Current Report on Form 8-K, filed June 20, 2008
(9) Incorporated by reference to our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, filed November 13, 2008
(10) Incorporated by reference to our Form 8-A, filed November 20, 2008
(11) Incorporated by reference to our Current Report on Form 8-K, filed March 16, 2009
(12) Incorporated by reference to our Current Report on Form 8-A/A, filed September 28, 2009
(13) Incorporated by reference to our Current Report on Form 8-K, filed March 5, 2009
(14) Incorporated by reference to our Current Report on Form 8-K, filed September 28, 2009
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
The Board of Directors
Insulet Corporation
We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Insulet Corporation as of December 31, 2009 and 2008, and the
related consolidated statements of operations, redeemable convertible preferred stock and stockholders’ equity (deficit), and cash flows
for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2009. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.
We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States).
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free
of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position
of Insulet Corporation at December 31, 2009 and 2008, and the consolidated results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the
three years in the period ended December 31, 2009, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.
As discussed in Note 9 to the consolidated financial statements, effective January 1, 2009, the Company changed the manner in
which it accounts for convertible debt instruments that may be settled in cash upon conversion.
We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States),
Insulet Corporation’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2009, based on criteria established in Internal ControlIntegrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our report dated March 9,
2010 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

/s/ Ernst & Young LLP
Boston, Massachusetts
March 9, 2010
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INSULET CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
As of
As of
December 31,
December 31,
2008
2009
(Restated)
(In thousands, except share and
per share data)

ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable, net
Inventories
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Total current assets
Property and equipment, net
Other assets
Total assets

$

$

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Deferred revenue
Total current liabilities
Long-term debt, net of current portion
Other long-term liabilities
Total liabilities
Stockholders’ equity
Preferred stock, $.001 par value:
Authorized: 5,000,000 shares at December 31, 2009 and 2008.
Issued: zero shares at December 31, 2009 and 2008
Common stock, $.001 par value:
Authorized: 100,000,000 shares at December 31, 2009 and 2008
Issued: 37,755,254 and 27,778,921 shares at December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively
Additional paid-in capital
Accumulated deficit
Total stockholders’ equity
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity

$

127,996
14,962
10,086
1,260
154,304
15,482
1,862
171,648

$

5,870
9,973
3,970
19,813
96,979
1,999
118,791

$

—
39
382,709
(329,891)
52,857
$ 171,648

$

56,663
13,010
16,870
1,956
88,499
17,564
2,170
108,233

7,291
7,300
2,377
16,968
60,172
2,987
80,127

—
29
278,427
(250,350)
28,106
$ 108,233

December 31, 2008 balances have been restated to reflect the retrospective adoption of certain provisions of FASB ASC 470-20.
See accompanying notes
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INSULET CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
Year Ended December 31,
2008
2009
(Restated)
2007
(In thousands, except share and per share data)

Revenue
Cost of revenue
Gross profit (loss)
Operating expenses:
Research and development
General and administrative
Sales and marketing
Restructuring and impairment of assets
Total operating expenses
Operating loss
Interest income
Interest expense
Net interest income (expense)
Change in value of preferred stock warrant liability
Net loss

$

Net loss per share basic and diluted
Weighted-average number of shares used in calculating net loss per share

66,032
47,735
18,297

$

13,231
26,842
37,583
—
77,656
(59,359)
241
(20,423)
(20,182)
—
(79,541)

$

(2.68)
29,727,106

$

36,059
40,643
(4,584)

$

$

13,104
23,750
39,734
8,170
84,758
(89,342)
1,795
(7,224)
(5,429)
—
(94,771)

$

$

(3.43)

$

27,611,003

13,372
25,733
(12,361)
10,391
13,922
16,141
1,027
41,481
(53,842)
3,537
(3,160)
377
(74)
(53,539)
(3.21)
16,688,418

Results for the year ended December 31, 2008 have been restated to reflect the retrospective adoption of certain provisions of FASB
ASC 470-20
See accompanying notes
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INSULET CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF REDEEMABLE CONVERTIBLE PREFERRED STOCK AND
CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY (DEFICIT)
Series A
Convertible
Preferred
Stock
Shares
Amount

Series B
Convertible
Preferred
Stock
Shares
Amount

Series C Convertible
Preferred
Stock
Shares
Amount

Series D Convertible
Preferred
Stock
Shares
Amount

Series E Convertible
Preferred
Stock
Shares
Amount

Balance at
December 31,
2006
1,000,000 $ 1,000 5,945,946 $ 11,000
10,476,191 $ 22,000
14,669,421 $ 35,500
13,738,661 $ 50,009
Exercise of
options to
purchase
common
stock
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
Issuance for
employee
stock
purchase plan
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
Exercise of
warrant to
purchase
common
stock
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
Compensation
expense
related to
stock options
issued to
employees
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
Conversion of
preferred
stock to
common
stock
(1,000,000) (1,000) (5,945,946) (11,000) (10,476,191) (22,000) (14,669,421) (35,500) (13,738,661) (50,009)
Issuance of
common
stock, net of
offering costs
of
$3.3 million
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
Conversion of
warrants to
purchase
preferred
stock to
warrants to
purchase
common
stock
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
Net loss
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
Balance at
December 31,
2007
Exercise of
options to
purchase
common
stock
Issuance for
employee
stock
purchase plan
Issuance of
restricted
stock
Compensation
expense
related to
stock options
issued to
employees
Allocation of
fair value of
convertible
debt to equity
Net loss
Balance at
December 31,
2008
Exercise of
options to
purchase
common
stock
Issuance for
employee
stock
purchase plan
Compensation
expense
related to
stock options
issued to
employees
Compensation
expense
related to
restricted
stock
Issuance of
common
stock, net of
offering costs
of
$4.6 million
Issuance of
warrants in
connection
with debt
Net loss
Balance at
December 31,
2009

Common Stock
Shares
Amount

457,076 $

Additional
Paid-in
Capital

1 $

Accumulated
Deficit

293 $

Subscription
Receivable

(102,040) $

Total
Stockholders’
Equity
(Deficit)

(19) $

(101,765)

380,190

—

886

—

10

896

2,789

—

66

—

—

66

111,197

—

150

—

—

150

—

—

1,520

—

—

1,520

17,447,809

18

119,491

—

—

119,509

8,824,759

9

123,424

—

—

123,433

—
—

—
—

2,005
—

—
—

2,005
(53,539)

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

27,223,820 $

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

532,763

1

1,237

—

9

1,247

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

18,338

—

190

—

—

190

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

4,000

—

1

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

3,352

—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

25,812
—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

27,778,921 $

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

191,232

—

577

—

—

577

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

29,442

—

273

—

—

273

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

4,145

—

—

4,145

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

16

—

—

16

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

9,755,659

10

93,598

—

—

93,608

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

5,673
—

—
—

5,673
(79,541)

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

37,755,254 $

28 $ 247,835 $

—
(53,539)

29 $ 278,427 $

39 $ 382,709 $

(155,579) $

—
(94,771)

(250,350) $

—
(79,541)

(329,891) $

(9) $

92,275

1

—

3,352

—
—

25,812
(94,771)

— $

— $

28,106

52,857

Results for the year ended December 31, 2008 have been restated to reflect the retrospective adoption of certain provisions of FASB
ASC 470-20
See accompanying notes
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INSULET CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

2009

Cash flows from operating activities
Net loss
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in operating activities
Depreciation
Amortization of debt discount
Redeemable convertible preferred stock warrant expense
Stock compensation expense
Provision for bad debts
Restructuring and impairment of assets
Non cash interest expense
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable
Inventory
Prepaids and other current assets
Other assets
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Other long term liabilities
Deferred revenue
Net cash used in operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchases of property and equipment
Net cash used in investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from issuance of debt
Principal payments of long term debt
Redemption of long term loan
Proceeds from payment of subscription receivable
Proceeds from issuance of common stock
Net cash provided by financing activities
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information
Cash paid for interest
Non-cash financing activities
Allocation of fair value of warrants from net proceeds from issuance of facility agreement
Conversion of preferred stock to common stock upon initial public offering

Year Ended December 31,
2008
Restated
2007
(In thousands)

$ (79,541)

$(94,771)

$ (53,539)

5,222
11,572
—
4,202
5,020
—
1,887

6,375
2,693
—
3,368
4,264
8,170
916

(6,972)
5,843
696
(50)
1,487
(282)
1,593
(49,323)

(12,491)
(8,880)
(565)
2
4,825
2,456
1,027
(82,611)

(4,486)
(4,600)
436
(409)
1,365
1,115
1,066
(50,372)

(3,140)
(3,140)

(10,047)
(10,047)

(10,089)
(10,089)

56,879
—
(27,500)
—
94,417
123,796
71,333
56,663
$127,996

81,484
(5,454)
(22,719)
9
1,413
54,733
(37,925)
94,588
$ 56,663

—
(2,727)
—
10
124,535
121,818
61,357
33,231
$ 94,588

$

6,823

$ 4,018

$

$
$

6,065
—

$
$

$
—
$119,509

—
—

4,681
239
74
1,520
1,120
1,103
(57)

3,154

Results for the year ended December 31, 2008 have been restated to reflect the retrospective adoption of certain provisions of FASB
ASC 470-20
See accompanying notes
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INSULET CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007
1. Nature of the Business
Insulet Corporation (the “Company”) is principally engaged in the development, manufacture and marketing of an insulin infusion
system for people with insulin-dependent diabetes. The Company was incorporated in Delaware in 2000 and has its corporate
headquarters in Bedford, Massachusetts. Since inception, the Company has devoted substantially all of its efforts to designing,
developing, manufacturing and marketing the OmniPod Insulin Management System (“OmniPod”), which consists of the OmniPod
disposable insulin infusion device and the handheld, wireless Personal Diabetes Manager (“PDM”). The Company commercially
launched the OmniPod Insulin Management System in August 2005 after receiving FDA 510(k) approval in January 2005. The first
commercial product was shipped in October 2005.
The Company adopted the Financial Accounting Standard Board Accounting Standards Codification in the year ended
December 31, 2009. The FASB Accounting Standards Codification (“Codification”) has become the single source of authoritative
accounting principles recognized by the FASB to be applied by nongovernmental entities in the preparation of financial statements in
accordance with GAAP. All existing accounting standard documents are superseded by the Codification and any accounting literature
not included in the Codification will not be authoritative. However, rules and interpretive releases of the Securities and Exchange
Commission (“SEC”) issued under the authority of federal securities laws will continue to be sources of authoritative GAAP for SEC
registrants. All references made to GAAP in the Company’s consolidated financial statements now use the new Codification numbering
system. The Codification does not change or alter existing GAAP and, therefore, did not have a material impact on its consolidated
financial statements.
2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Use of Estimates in Preparation of Financial Statements
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles in the United States requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenue and expense during the reporting
periods. The most significant estimates used in these financial statements include the valuation of inventories, accounts receivable,
equity instruments, the lives of property and equipment, as well as warranty and doubtful accounts allowance reserve calculations.
Actual results may differ from those estimates.
Principles of Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholly-owned subsidiaries. All material
intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.
Reclassifications
Certain previously reported amounts have been reclassified to conform to the current year presentation.
Certain Risks and Uncertainties
The Company is subject to risks common to companies in the medical device industry, including, but not limited to, development
by the Company or its competitors of new technological innovations, dependence on key personnel, reliance on third party
manufacturers, protection of proprietary technology, and compliance with regulatory requirements.
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INSULET CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)
Fair Value of Financial Instruments
Certain of the Company’s financial instruments, including cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts payable,
accrued expenses and other liabilities are carried at cost, which approximates their fair value because of the short-term maturity of these
financial instruments. Based on the borrowing rates currently available to the Company for loans with similar terms, the carrying value of
the Company’s long-term debt and capital lease obligations approximate their fair values.
Cash and Cash Equivalents
For the purposes of the financial statement classification, the Company considers all highly liquid investment instruments with
original maturities of ninety days or less, when purchased, to be cash equivalents. Cash equivalents consist of money market accounts
and are carried at cost. This approximates their fair values. Outstanding letters of credit, principally relating to security deposits for lease
obligations, totaled $0.2 million at December 31, 2009 and 2008.
Accounts Receivable and Allowance for Doubtful Accounts
Accounts receivable consist of amounts due from third-party payors, patients and third-party distributors. The Company accounts
for doubtful accounts using the allowance method. The allowances for doubtful accounts are recorded in the period in which the revenue
is recorded or at the time potential collection risk is identified. The Company estimates its allowance based on historical experience,
assessment of specific risk, discussions with individual customers or various assumptions and estimates that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances. At December 31, 2009, 2008, 2007 and 2006, the allowance for doubtful accounts was $7.2 million,
$3.8 million, $1.2 million and $0.2 million, respectively. The Company believes the reserve is adequate to mitigate current collection
risk.
The components of accounts receivable are as follows:
As of
December 31,
2009
2008
(In thousands)

Trade receivables
Allowance for doubtful accounts

$22,152
(7,190)
$14,962

$16,810
(3,800)
$13,010

Bad debt expense for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007 amounted to $5.0 million, $4.3 million, and $1.1 million,
respectively. The Company recorded $1.6 million, $1.6 million and $0.1 million in write-offs or other adjustments to the allowance for
doubtful accounts during the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively.
Inventories
Inventories are held at the lower of cost or market, determined under the first-in, first-out (“FIFO”) method. Inventory has been
recorded at cost at December 31, 2009 and 2008. Work in process is calculated based upon a build up in the stage of completion using
estimated labor inputs for each stage in production. Costs for Personal Diabetes Managers (“PDMs”) and OmniPods include raw material,
labor and manufacturing overhead. The Company periodically reviews inventories for potential impairment based on quantities on hand
and expectations of future use.
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INSULET CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)
Property & Equipment
Property and equipment is stated at cost and depreciated using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the
respective assets. Leasehold improvements are amortized over their useful life or the life of the lease, whichever is shorter. Assets
capitalized under capital leases are amortized in accordance with the respective class of owned assets and the amortization is included
with depreciation expense. Maintenance and repair costs are expensed as incurred.
Warranty
The Company provides a four-year warranty on its PDMs and may replace any OmniPods that do not function in accordance with
product specifications. The Company estimates its warranty at the time the product is shipped based on historical experience and the
estimated cost to service the claims. Cost to service the claims reflects the current product cost which has been decreasing over time. As
these estimates are based on historical experience, and the Company continues to introduce new products and new versions of existing
products, the Company also considers the anticipated performance of the product over its warranty period in estimating warranty
reserves.
Restructuring Expenses and Impairment of Assets
In connection with its efforts to pursue improved gross margins, leverage operational efficiencies and better pursue opportunities
for low-cost supplier sourcing of asset costs, the Company periodically performs an evaluation of its manufacturing processes and
reviews the carrying value of its property and equipment to assess the recoverability of these assets whenever events indicate that
impairment may have occurred. As part of this assessment, the Company reviews the future undiscounted operating cash flows expected
to be generated by those assets. If impairment is indicated through this review, the carrying amount of the asset would be reduced to its
estimated fair value. This review of manufacturing processes and equipment can result in restructuring activity or an impairment of assets
based on current net book value and potential future use of the assets.
The Company’s restructuring expenses also include workforce reduction and related costs for one-time termination benefits
provided to employees who are involuntarily terminated under the terms of a one-time benefit arrangement. The Company records these
one-time termination benefits upon incurring the liability provided that the employees are notified, the plan is approved by the
appropriate level of management, the employees to be terminated and the expected completion date are identified, and the benefits the
identified employees will be paid are established. Significant changes to the plan are not expected when the Company records the costs.
In recording the workforce reduction and related costs, the Company estimates related costs such as taxes and outplacement services
which may be provided under the plan. If changes in these estimated services occur, the Company may be required to record or reverse
restructuring expenses associated with these workforce reduction and related costs.
Revenue Recognition
The Company generates nearly all of its revenue from sales of its OmniPod Insulin Management System to diabetes patients and
third-party distributors who resell the product to diabetes patients. The initial sale to a new customer typically includes OmniPods and a
Starter Kit, which is comprised of the PDM, the OmniPod System User Guide and the OmniPod System Interactive Training CD.
Subsequent sales to existing customers typically consist of additional OmniPods.
Revenue is recognized in accordance with FASB ASC 605-10, Revenue Recognition, which requires that persuasive evidence of a
sales arrangement exists, delivery of goods occurs through transfer of title and risk
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)
and rewards of ownership, the selling price is fixed or determinable and collectibility is reasonably assured. With respect to these criteria:
• The evidence of an arrangement generally consists of a physician order form, a patient information form, and if applicable, thirdparty insurance approval for sales directly to patients or a purchase order for sales to a third-party distributor.
• Transfer of title and risk and rewards of ownership are passed to the patient or third-party distributor upon shipment of the
products.
• The selling prices for all sales are fixed and agreed with the patient or third-party distributor, and if applicable, the patient’s
third-party insurance provider(s) prior to shipment and are based on established list prices or, in the case of certain third-party
insurers, contractually agreed upon prices. Provisions for discounts and rebates to customers are established as a reduction to
revenue in the same period the related sales are recorded.
The Company has considered the requirements of FASB ASC 605-25 Revenue — Multiple Element Arrangements, when
accounting for the OmniPods and Starter Kits. FASB ASC 605-25 requires that the Company assess whether the different elements
qualify for separate accounting. The Company recognizes revenue for the initial shipment to a patient or other third party once all
elements have been delivered.
The Company offers a 45-day right of return for its Starter Kits sales, and in accordance with FASB ASC 605-15, Revenue —
Products, the Company defers revenue to reflect estimated sales returns in the same period that the related product sales are recorded.
Returns are estimated through a comparison of the Company’s historical return data to their related sales. Historical rates of return are
adjusted for known or expected changes in the marketplace when appropriate. Historically, sales returns have amounted to
approximately 3% of gross product sales.
When doubt exists about reasonable assuredness of collectibility from specific customers, the Company defers revenue from sales
of products to those customers until payment is received.
In March 2008, the Company received a cash payment from Abbott Diabetes Care, Inc. (“Abbott”) for an agreement fee in
connection with execution of the first amendment to the development and license agreement between the Company and Abbott. The
Company recognizes the agreement fee from Abbott over the initial 5-year term of the agreement, and the non-current portion of the
agreement fee is included in other long-term liabilities. Under the amended Abbott agreement, beginning July 1, 2008, Abbott agreed to
pay an amount to the Company for services performed by Insulet in connection with each sale of a PDM that includes an Abbott Discrete
Blood Glucose Monitor to certain customers. The Company recognizes the revenue related to this portion of the Abbott agreement at the
time it meets the criteria for revenue recognition, typically at the time the revenue is recognized on the sale of the PDM to the patient. In
the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008, the Company recognized $7.1 million and $2.5 million, respectively, of revenue related
to the amended Abbott agreement. There was no impact to cost of revenue related to this agreement.
The Company had deferred revenue of $5.1 million and $4.0 million as of December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively. The deferred
revenue recorded was comprised of product-related revenue as well as the non-amortized agreement fee related to the Abbott agreement.
Shipping and Handling Costs
The Company does not charge its customers for shipping and handling costs associated with shipping its product to its customers.
These shipping and handling costs are included in general and administrative expenses.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)
Concentration of Credit Risk
Financial instruments that subject the Company to credit risk primarily consist of cash and cash equivalents. The Company
maintains the majority of its cash with two accredited financial institutions.
Although revenue is recognized from shipments directly to patients or third-party distributors, the majority of shipments are billed
to third-party insurance payors. There were no third-party payors that accounted for more than 10% of gross accounts receivable at
December 31, 2009 or 2008.
Research and Development Expenses
The Company’s research and development expenses consist of engineering, product development, quality assurance, clinical
function and regulatory expenses. These expenses are primarily related to employee compensation, including salary, benefits and stockbased compensation. The Company also incurs expense related to consulting fees, materials and supplies, and marketing studies,
including data management and associated travel expenses. Research and development costs are expensed as incurred.
General and Administrative Expenses
General and administrative expenses are primarily comprised of salaries and benefits associated with finance, legal and other
administrative personnel; overhead and occupancy costs; outside legal costs; and other general and administrative costs.
Sales and Marketing Expenses
Sales and marketing expenses are primarily comprised of salaries and benefits associated with personnel employed with sales and
marketing activities, outside marketing expenses including commercial product samples and advertising expenses.
Segment Reporting
Operating segments are defined as components of an enterprise about which separate financial information is available that is
evaluated on a regular basis by the chief operating decision-maker, or decision making group, in deciding how to allocate resources to
an individual segment and in assessing performance of the segment. In light of the Company’s current product offering, and other
considerations, management has determined that the primary form of internal reporting is aligned with the offering of the OmniPod
System. Therefore, the Company believes that it operates in one segment.
Income Taxes
FASB ASC 740-10, Income Taxes, clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes recognized in an entity’s financial
statements. FASB ASC 740-10 prescribes a recognition threshold and measurement attribute for the financial statement recognition and
measurement of a tax position taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. In addition, FASB ASC 740-10 provides guidance on
derecognition, classification, interest and penalties, accounting in interim periods, disclosure and transition. The provisions related to
accounting for uncertain tax positions is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2006.
The Company adopted these provisions of FASB ASC 740-10 on January 1, 2007. The adoption of these provisions did not have a
material impact on the Company’s financial position or results of operations. As of December 31, 2009, the Company has $0.1 million of
unrecognized tax benefits recorded. As of December 31, 2008 and 2007, the Company had no unrecognized tax benefits recorded.
The Company files federal and state tax returns. The Company has accumulated significant losses since its inception in 2000. Since
the net operating losses may potentially be utilized in future years to reduce
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)
taxable income, all of the Company’s tax years remain open to examination by the major taxing jurisdictions to which the Company is
subject.
Stock Based Compensation
The Company accounts for stock-based compensation under the provisions of FASB ASC 718-10, Compensation — Stock
Compensation. FASB ASC 718-10 requires all share-based payments to employees, including grants of employee stock options, to be
recognized in the income statement based on their fair values.
Nonpublic companies that used the minimum value method for either recognition or pro forma disclosures were required to apply
the fair value method under FASB ASC 718-10 using the prospective-transition method. As such, the Company will continue to apply
the minimum value method in future periods to equity awards outstanding that were originally measured using the minimum value
method.
The Company uses the Black-Scholes option pricing model to determine the weighted-average fair value of options granted. The
Company recognizes the compensation expense of share-based awards on a straight-line basis over the vesting period of the award.
The determination of the fair value of share-based payment awards utilizing the Black-Scholes model is affected by the stock price
and a number of assumptions, including expected volatility, expected life, risk-free interest rate and expected dividends. As the
Company’s initial public offering was completed in May 2007, it does not have a history of market prices of its common stock, and as
such estimates volatility in accordance with Securities and Exchange Commission’s Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 107, Share-Based
Payment (SAB 107), using historical volatilities of similar public entities. The expected life of the awards is estimated based on the “SEC
Shortcut Approach” as defined in SAB 107, which is the midpoint between the vesting date and the end of the contractual term. The riskfree interest rate assumption is based on observed interest rates appropriate for the terms of the awards. The dividend yield assumption is
based on company history and expectation of paying no dividends. Forfeitures are estimated at the time of grant and revised, if
necessary, in subsequent periods if actual forfeitures differ from those estimates. Stock based compensation expense recognized in the
financial statements is based on awards that are ultimately expected to vest. The Company evaluates the assumptions used to value the
awards on a quarterly basis and if factors change and different assumptions are utilized, stock based compensation expense may differ
significantly from what has been recorded in the past. If there are any modifications or cancellations of the underlying unvested
securities, the Company may be required to accelerate, increase or cancel any remaining unearned stock based compensation expense.
Prior to April 1, 2006, the exercise prices for options granted were set by the Company’s board of directors based upon guidance set
forth by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The board considered a number of factors in determining the option
price, including the following factors: (1) prices for the Company’s preferred stock, which the Company had sold to outside investors in
arms-length transactions, and the rights, preferences and privileges of the Company’s preferred stock and common stock in the Series A
through Series E financing, (2) obtaining FDA 510(k) clearance, (3) launching the OmniPod System and (4) achievement of budgeted
revenue and results.
The Company retrospectively estimated the fair value of its common stock based upon several factors, including the following
factors: (1) operating and financial performance, (2) progress and milestones attained in the business, (3) past sales of convertible
preferred stock, (4) the results of the retrospective independent valuations, and (5) the expected valuation obtained in an initial public
offering. The Company believes this to have been a reasonable methodology based on the factors above and based on several arm’slength transactions involving the Company’s stock supportive of the results produced by this valuation methodology.
See Note 11 for a summary of the stock option activity under our stock based employee compensation plan.
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Adoption of New Accounting Standards
FASB ASC 470-20, Debt with Conversion and Other Options, clarifies that convertible debt instruments that may be settled in cash
upon conversion should be separated between the liability and equity components in a manner that will reflect the entity’s
nonconvertible debt borrowing rate when interest cost is recognized in subsequent periods. These provisions of FASB ASC 470-20 were
applied retrospectively to all periods presented. The cumulative effect of the change in accounting principle on prior periods was
recognized as of the beginning of the first period presented. The Company adopted these provisions of FASB ASC 470-20 as of
January 1, 2009 and have reclassified $26.9 million of its long-term debt to equity as of the issuance date of the convertible notes.
During the year ended December 31, 2009, the Company recorded $4.3 million of additional interest expense related to these provisions
of FASB ASC 470-20. During the year ended December 31, 2008, the Company recorded $2.1 million of additional interest expense
related to the provisions of FASB ASC 470-20.
The Company adopted certain provisions of FASB ASC 825-10, Subsequent Events, as of June 30, 2009. FASB ASC 825-10
provides guidance to establish general standards of accounting for and disclosures of events that occur after the balance sheet date but
before financial statements are issued or are available to be issued. FASB ASC 825-10 also requires entities to disclose the date through
which subsequent events were evaluated as well as the rationale for why that date was selected. This disclosure should alert all users of
financial statements that an entity has not evaluated subsequent events after that date in the set of financial statements being presented.
FASB ASC 825-10 requires additional disclosures only, and therefore did not have an impact on the Company’s consolidated financial
statements.
3. Restructuring Expenses and Impairments of Assets
Restructuring Expenses
In December 2008, the Company recorded restructuring charges of $8.2 million for the impairment of certain manufacturing
equipment no longer in use as well as workforce reduction and related costs. As part of the Company’s strategic goal to pursue improved
gross margins, leverage operational efficiencies and better pursue opportunities for low-cost supplier sourcing, the Company transitioned
the manufacturing of completed OmniPods to Flextronics International Ltd., located in China. The Company determined that it would
no longer use certain manufacturing equipment located in its Bedford facility. In addition, this transition resulted in a reduction in
workforce of approximately 30 employees, mainly in the manufacturing and quality departments. As a result of these actions, the
Company recorded a non-cash charge of $7.4 million related to impairments of assets and $0.8 million in workforce and related charges.
The Company took no restructuring actions in 2009.
During the third quarter of 2008, the Company successfully transitioned its production of completed OmniPods to the
manufacturing line operated by Flextronics. Pursuant to the Company’s agreement with Flextronics, Flextronics supplies, as a nonexclusive supplier, OmniPods at agreed upon prices per unit pursuant to a rolling 12-month forecast provided by the Company. The
initial term of the agreement is three years from January 3, 2007, with automatic one-year renewals. The agreement may be terminated at
any time by either party upon prior written notice given no less than a specified number of days prior to the date of termination. The
Company continues to manufacture certain sub-assemblies and maintain packaging operations in its Bedford, Massachusetts facility.
The Company ceased to use certain assets in its Bedford facility, in connection with the transition of manufacturing to Flextronics.
The Company continued to evaluate Flextronics’ ability to manufacture completed OmniPods against the rolling forecast as well as
anticipated capacity and demand throughout the fourth quarter of 2008. During the fourth quarter of 2008 the Company concluded that
the capacity of the manufacturing line operated by Flextronics was adequate to meet anticipated demand and quality standards in
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the future. As the Company determined that it would no longer use the Bedford equipment on December 1, 2008, the Company recorded
an impairment charge for the remaining net book value of the assets of $7.4 million on that date. The equipment has no expected salvage
value as it is highly customized equipment that can only be used for the manufacture of OmniPods.
At December 31, 2008, the Company’s accrued expense for restructuring was $0.6 million for final payments of severance which
were fully utilized during 2009. The Company had no accrued restructuring at December 31, 2009.
The following is a summary of restructuring activity for the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008:
Year Ended
December 31,
2009
2008
(In thousands)

Balance at the beginning of year
Restructuring expense
Utilization
Balance at the end of the year

$ 612
—
(612)
$ —

$ —
758
(146)
$ 612

In September 2009, the Company recorded a charge to operating expenses of $0.6 million for workforce reduction and related costs
as part of the Company’s continued focus on aligning the Company’s infrastructure. This focus resulted in a reduction of workforce of
approximately 30 employees throughout the organization, including certain members of senior management. At December 31, 2009, the
Company has accrued severance of approximately $0.3 million related to the workforce reduction.
Impairment of Property and Equipment
During the year ended December 31, 2007, the Company evaluated an upgrade of its manufacturing processes, and as a result, the
Company performed a review of certain production equipment. The review resulted in a non-cash charge of $1.0 million for the writedown of certain impaired assets. The impaired assets, which had no future use, consisted of manufacturing equipment. The impairment
charges were recorded following determination of the fair value of cash flows resulting from use of the affected assets, and the carrying
value of the assets was reduced to reflect their fair value.
4. Net Loss Per Share
Basic net loss per share is computed by dividing net loss by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding for the
period, excluding unvested restricted common shares. During the year ended December 31, 2008, the Company issued 4,000 shares of
restricted common stock. The restricted common stock vests over 2 years. At December 31, 2009, 1,780 shares were vested and
2,220 shares were unvested. At December 31, 2008, 4,000 shares of restricted common stock were unvested. There were no vested or
unvested restricted common shares outstanding at December 31, 2007. Diluted net loss per share is computed using the weighted average
number of common shares outstanding and, when dilutive, potential common share equivalents from options and warrants (using the
treasury-stock method), and potential common shares from convertible securities (using the if-converted method). Because the Company
reported a net loss for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007, all potential common shares have been excluded from the
computation of the diluted net loss per share for all periods presented because the effect would have been antidilutive. Upon the closing
of the initial public offering of the Company’s common stock in May 2007, all
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redeemable convertible preferred stock converted to common stock. Potential common share equivalents consist of the following:
2009

Convertible debt
Unvested restricted common shares
Outstanding options and ESPP
Outstanding warrants
Total

Year Ended December 31,
2008

3,981,969
2,220
3,542,590
3,812,752
11,339,531

3,981,969
4,000
2,933,832
62,752
6,982,553

2007

—
—
2,341,844
62,752
2,404,596

5. Inventories
Inventories consist of the following:
As of
December 31,
2009
2008
(In thousands)

Raw materials
Work-in-process
Finished goods

$ 1,657
496
7,933
$10,086

$ 3,518
997
12,355
$16,870

The Company is currently producing the OmniPod on a partially automated manufacturing line at a facility in China, operated by a
subsidiary of Flextronics International Ltd. The Company also produces certain sub-assemblies for the OmniPod as well as maintains
packaging operations in its facility in Bedford, Massachusetts. The Company purchases complete OmniPods from Flextronics.
Inventories of finished goods were held at cost at December 31, 2009 and 2008.
6. Property and Equipment
Property and equipment consist of the following:
Estimated
Useful Life
(Years)

Machinery and equipment
Construction in process
Computers
Software
Leasehold improvement
Office furniture and fixtures
Total property and equipment
Less: Accumulated depreciation
Total

5
3
3
*
5

* Lesser of lease or useful life of asset
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As of
December 31,
2009
2008
(In thousands)

$ 16,019
2,705
2,405
3,987
2,247
1,664
$ 29,027
(13,545)
$ 15,482

$13,834
2,252
2,220
3,788
2,186
1,607
$25,887
(8,323)
$17,564
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Depreciation expense related to property and equipment was $5.2 million, $6.4 million, and $4.7 million for the years ended
December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively. The Company recorded $0.1 million, $0.4 million, and $0.7 million of capitalized
interest for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively.
Construction in process mainly consists of machinery and equipment in the process of being constructed for use in the Company’s
automated manufacturing process. Depreciation on the machinery and equipment does not begin until the machinery and equipment are
installed and integrated into the manufacturing process.
7. Accrued Expenses
Accrued expenses consist of the following:
As of
December 31,
2009
2008
(In thousands)

Employee compensation and related items
Professional and consulting services
Interest expense
Warranty reserve
Training
Other
Total accrued expenses

$4,552
1,571
425
928
384
2,113
$9,973

$3,402
864
190
885
344
1,615
$7,300

Product Warranty Costs
The Company provides a four-year warranty on its PDMs and may replace any OmniPods that do not function in accordance with
product specifications. Warranty expense is recorded in the period that shipment occurs. The expense is based on historical experience
and the estimated cost to service the claims. A reconciliation of the changes in the Company’s product warranty liability is as follows:
Year Ended
December 31,
2009
2008
(In thousands)

Balance at the beginning of year
Warranty expense
Warranty claims settled
Balance at the end of the year

$ 2,268
3,373
(3,821)
$ 1,820

$

Composition of balance:
Short-term
Long-term
Total warranty balance

928
892
$ 1,820

885
1,383
$ 2,268
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865
3,865
(2,462)
$ 2,268
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8. Facility Agreement and Common Stock Warrants
On March 13, 2009, the Company entered into a Facility Agreement with certain institutional accredited investors, pursuant to
which the investors agreed to loan it up to $60 million, subject to the terms and conditions set forth in the Facility Agreement. Following
the initial disbursement of $27.5 million on March 31, 2009, the Company could, but was not required to, draw down on the facility in
$6.5 million increments at any time until November 2010 provided that it met certain financial performance milestones. In connection
with this financing, the Company paid Deerfield Management Company, L.P., an affiliate of the lead lender, a one-time transaction fee of
$1.2 million. Total financing costs, including the transaction fee, were $3.0 million and were being amortized as interest expense over
the 42 months of the Facility Agreement.
The amounts initially drawn under the Facility Agreement accrued interest at a rate of 9.75% per annum, and the undrawn amounts
under the Facility Agreement accrued interest at a rate of 2.75% per annum. Accrued interest is payable quarterly in cash in arrears
beginning on June 1, 2009. The Company had the right to prepay any amounts owed without penalty unless the prepayment was in
connection with a major transaction.
On September 25, 2009, the Company entered into an Amendment to the Facility Agreement whereby the Company repaid the
$27.5 million of outstanding debt and promptly drew down the remaining $32.5 million available under the Facility Agreement. The
lender eliminated all future performance milestones associated with the remaining $32.5 million available on the credit facility and
reduced the annual interest rate on any borrowed funds to 8.5%. In connection with the Amendment to the Facility Agreement, the
Company entered into a Securities Purchase Agreement with the lenders whereby the Company sold 2,855,659 shares of its common
stock to the lenders at $9.63 per share. The Company received aggregate proceeds of $27.5 million in connection with the sale of its
shares. All subsequent references to the “Facility Agreement” refer to the Facility Agreement entered into on March 13, 2009 and
amended on September 25, 2009.
All principal amounts outstanding under the Facility Agreement are payable in September 2012. Any amounts drawn under the
Facility Agreement may become immediately due and payable upon (i) an “event of default,” as defined in the Facility Agreement, in
which case the lenders would have the right to require the Company to re-pay 100% of the principal amount of the loan, plus any
accrued and unpaid interest thereon, or (ii) the consummation of certain change of control transactions, in which case the lenders would
have the right to require the Company to re-pay 106% of the outstanding principal amount of the loan, plus any accrued and unpaid
interest thereon. The Facility Agreement also provides for higher interest rates to be paid by the Company in certain events.
Because the consummation of certain change in control transactions would result in the payment of a premium of the outstanding
principal, the premium feature is a derivative that is required to be bifurcated from the host debt instrument and recorded at fair value at
each quarter end. As a higher interest rate could be paid by the Company upon the occurrence of certain events, the higher interest
feature is also considered a derivative. The higher interest payment does not meet the criteria to be accounted for separately. Any
changes in fair value of the premium feature will be recorded as interest expense. The difference between the face value of the
outstanding principal on the Facility Agreement and the amount remaining after the bifurcation will be recorded as a discount to be
amortized over the term of the Facility Agreement. At December 31, 2009, the premium feature associated with the Facility Agreement
had no value as the Company does not currently expect a change in control transaction to occur. The embedded derivatives related to
the Facility Agreement will be reassessed and marked-to-market through earnings on a quarterly basis.
As of December 31, 2009, $32.5 million of outstanding debt related to the Facility Agreement is included in long-term debt in the
consolidated balance sheet. Upon repayment of the initial tranche of the Facility Agreement in September 2009, the Company
recognized approximately $7.6 million of interest expense. Of the $7.6 million of interest expense, $6.4 million related to the debt
discount for the remaining unamortized
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balance of the fair value of the warrants issued on March 13, 2009 and the transaction fee paid to the lenders and $1.2 million related to
the remaining deferred financing costs. Approximately $11.1 million of interest expense was recorded in the year ended December 31,
2009. Of the $11.1 million recorded in the year ended December 31, 2009, approximately $2.5 million relates to cash interest,
$1.0 million relates to amortization of the debt discount and deferred financing costs and $7.6 million relates to the charge taken for the
unamortized portion of the debt discount and deferred financing costs as a result of the repayment and termination of the initial
disbursement.
On March 13, 2009, in connection with the execution of the Facility Agreement, the Company issued to the lenders fully
exercisable warrants to purchase an aggregate of 3.75 million shares of common stock at an exercise price of $3.13 per share. Pursuant to
the original terms of the Facility Agreement, the Company would have been required to issue additional warrants to purchase 1.5 million
shares upon drawing down the remaining $32.5 million under the facility. In connection with the Amendment to the Facility Agreement
in September 2009, the lenders agreed to forego the remaining 1.5 million additional warrants that would have been issued upon future
draws.
If the Company issues or sells shares of its common stock (other than (i) pursuant to a registered public offering or shelf takedown,
(ii) in a transaction that does not require shareholder approval, (iii) to partners in connection with a joint venture, distribution or other
partnering arrangement in a transaction that does not require shareholder approval, (iv) upon the exercise of options granted to our
employees, officers, directors and consultants, (v) of restricted stock to, or purchases of, our common stock under our employee stock
purchase plan by employees, officers, directors or consultants or (vi) upon the exercise of the warrants) after March 13, 2009, the
Company will issue concurrently therewith additional warrants to purchase such number of shares of common stock as will entitle the
lenders to maintain the same beneficial ownership in the Company after the issuance as they had prior to such issuance, as adjusted on a
pro rata basis for repayments of the outstanding principal amount under the loan, with such warrants being issued at an exercise price
equal to the greater of $3.13 per share and the closing price of the common stock on the date immediately prior to the issuance.
All warrants issued under the Facility Agreement remain unexercised as of December 31, 2009, expire on March 13, 2015 and
contain certain limitations that prevent the holder from acquiring shares upon exercise of a warrant that would result in the number of
shares beneficially owned by it to exceed 9.98% of the total number of shares of the Company’s common stock then issued and
outstanding.
In addition, upon certain change of control transactions, or upon certain “events of default” (as defined in the warrant agreement),
the holder has the right to net exercise the warrants for an amount of shares of our common stock equal to the Black-Scholes value of the
shares issuable under the warrants divided by 95% of the closing price of the common stock on the day immediately prior to the
consummation of such change of control or event of default, as applicable. In certain circumstances where a warrant or portion of a
warrant is not net exercised in connection with a change of control or event of default, the holder will be paid an amount in cash equal to
the Black-Scholes value of such portion of the warrant not treated as a net exercise.
The warrants issued in connection with the Facility Agreement qualify for permanent classification as equity and their relative fair
value of $6.1 million on the issuance date was recorded as additional paid in capital and debt discount. The remaining unamortized
value of the warrants was recorded as interest expense in the year ended December 31, 2009, in connection with the repayment and
termination of the initial disbursement.
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9. Convertible Notes and Repayment and Termination of Term Loan
Loan and Security Agreements
In December 2006, the Company entered into a credit and security agreement with a group of lenders led by Merrill Lynch Capital
pursuant to which the Company borrowed $30.0 million in a term loan. The Company used $9.5 million of the proceeds from this term
loan to repay all amounts owed under a previous term loan. This term loan was secured by all the assets of the Company other than its
intellectual property. The borrowings under the term loan bore interest at a floating rate equal to the LIBOR rate plus 6% per annum.
Interest was payable on a monthly basis during the term of the loan and, on October 1, 2007, the Company began the repayment of
principal in 33 equal monthly installments of $0.9 million. This term loan was also subject to a loan origination fee amounting to
$0.9 million. The Company capitalized these costs as deferred financing costs at inception of the loan. The deferred cost asset was being
amortized to interest expense over the 42-month life of this term loan. This term loan was subject to acceleration upon the occurrence of
any fact, event or circumstance that has resulted or could reasonably be expected to result in a material adverse effect.
In connection with this term loan, the Company issued warrants to the lenders to purchase up to 247,252 of Series E preferred stock.
The Company recorded the $0.8 million fair value of the warrants as a discount to the term loan. The value of the warrants was being
amortized to interest expense over the 42-month life of this term loan.
Convertible Notes
In June 2008, the Company sold $85.0 million principal amount of 5.375% Convertible Senior Notes due June 15, 2013 (the
“5.375% Notes”) in a private placement to qualified institutional buyers pursuant to Rule 144A under the Securities Act of 1933, as
amended. The interest rate on the notes is 5.375% per annum on the principal amount from June 16, 2008, payable semi-annually in
arrears in cash on December 15 and June 15 of each year, beginning December 15, 2008. The 5.375% Notes are convertible into the
Company’s common stock at an initial conversion rate of 46.8467 shares of common stock per $1,000 principal amount of the
5.375% Notes, which is equivalent to a conversion price of approximately $21.35 per share, representing a conversion premium of 34%
to the last reported sale price of the Company’s common stock on the NASDAQ Global Market on June 10, 2008, subject to adjustment
under certain circumstances, at any time beginning on March 15, 2013 or under certain other circumstances and prior to the close of
business on the business day immediately preceding the final maturity date of the notes. The 5.375% Notes will be convertible for cash
up to their principal amount and shares of the Company’s common stock for the remainder of the conversion value in excess of the
principal amount. The Company does not have the right to redeem any of the 5.375% Notes prior to maturity. If a fundamental change,
as defined in the Indenture for the 5.375% Notes, occurs at any time prior to maturity, holders of the 5.375% Notes may require the
Company to repurchase their notes in whole or in part for cash equal to 100% of the principal amount of the notes to be repurchased,
plus accrued and unpaid interest, including any additional interest, to, but excluding, the date of repurchase.
If a holder elects to convert its 5.375% Notes upon the occurrence of a make-whole fundamental change, as defined in the Indenture
for the 5.375% Notes, the holder may be entitled to receive an additional number of shares of common stock on the conversion date.
These additional shares are intended to compensate the holders for the loss of the time value of the conversion option and are set forth in
the Indenture to the 5.375% Notes. In no event will the number of shares issuable upon conversion of a note exceed 62.7746 per $1,000
principal amount (subject to adjustment as described in the Indenture for the 5.375% Notes).
The Company adopted certain provisions of FASB ASC 470-20, Debt with Conversion and Other Options, on January 1, 2009.
FASB ASC 470-20 clarifies that convertible debt instruments that may be settled in cash upon conversion should be separated between
the liability and equity components in a manner that
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will reflect the entity’s nonconvertible debt borrowing rate when interest cost is recognized in subsequent periods. FASB ASC 470-20
was applied retrospectively to all periods presented. Accordingly, the Company recorded a debt discount of $26.9 million to equity to
reflect the value of its nonconvertible debt borrowing rate of 14.5% per annum. This debt discount is being amortized as interest expense
beginning June 15, 2008 over the 5 year term of the 5.375% Notes.
The Company incurred interest expense of approximately $8.9 million and $4.6 million for the years ended December 31, 2009 and
2008, respectively, related to the 5.375% Notes. Of the $8.9 million recorded in the year ended December 31, 2009, approximately
$4.3 million relates to additional interest expense recognized under these provisions of FASB ASC 470-20. Of the $4.6 million recorded
in the year ended December 31, 2008, approximately $2.1 million relates to additional interest expense recognized under these
provisions of FASB ASC 470-20. The Company incurred deferred financing costs related to this offering of approximately $3.5 million,
of which $1.1 million has been reclassified as an offset to the amount allocated to equity. The remainder is recorded in the consolidated
balance sheet and is being amortized as a component of interest expense over the five year term of the notes.
As of December 31, 2009, the outstanding amounts related to the 5.375% Notes of $64.5 million are included in long-term debt in
the consolidated balance sheet and reflect the debt discount of $20.5 million. As of December 31, 2008, the outstanding amounts related
to the 5.375% Notes of $60.2 million are included in long-term debt and have been retroactively restated as required by FASB ASC
470-20 to reflect the debt discount of $24.8 million. The debt discount includes the equity allocation of $25.8 million (which represents
$26.9 million less the $1.1 million of allocated financing costs) offset by the accretion of the debt discount through interest expense
from the issuance date in 2008 over the 5 year term of the notes. The Company recorded $4.3 million of interest expense related to the
debt discount in the year ended December 31, 2009. As of December 31, 2009, the 5.375% Notes have a remaining life of 3.5 years. The
statement of operations for 2008 has been retroactively restated to reflect the additional interest expense pursuant to FASB ASC 470-20.
The Company recorded $2.1 million of interest expense related to the debt discount in the year ended December 31, 2008.
The Company received net proceeds of approximately $81.5 million from this offering. Approximately $23.2 million of the
proceeds from this offering was used to repay and terminate the Company’s then-existing term loan, including outstanding principal and
accrued and unpaid interest of $21.8 million, a prepayment fee related to the term loan of approximately $0.4 million and a termination
fee of $0.9 million. The Company is using the remainder for general corporate purposes. The Company incurred interest expense of
approximately $1.5 million and $3.2 million for the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively, related to the term loan. The
term loan was subject to a loan origination fee of $0.9 million, which was recorded in the consolidated balance sheet and was amortized
as a component of interest expense over the term of the loan. The remaining balance of deferred financing costs of approximately
$0.6 million was written off at the repayment and termination date. In connection with this term loan, the Company issued warrants to
the lenders to purchase up to 247,252 shares of Series E preferred stock at a purchase price of $3.64 per share. The warrants automatically
converted into warrants to purchase common stock on a 1-for-2.6267 basis at a purchase price of $9.56 per share at the closing of the
Company’s initial public offering in May 2007. The Company recorded the $0.8 million fair value of the warrants as a discount to the
term loan. Upon repayment and termination of the term loan, the Company recognized approximately $0.5 million as interest expense
for the unamortized balance of the warrants’ fair value. The difference between the amount paid, including the prepayment fee, and the
carrying value of the term loan, including the remaining deferred financing costs and unamortized warrants to purchase common stock,
was recognized as a $1.5 million loss from early extinguishment of the term loan.
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Warrants
In connection with the term loans with Lighthouse Capital Partners and a group of lenders led by Merrill Lynch Capital, the
Company issued warrants to the lenders to purchase shares of its redeemable convertible preferred stock. Prior to the Company’s initial
public offering, these warrants were recorded as “warrants to purchase shares subject to redemption” in current liabilities in accordance
with FASB ASC 480-10, Distinguishing Liabilities from Equity.
Significant terms and fair values of warrants to purchase common stock are as follows (in thousands except share and per share
data), and reflect the conversion ratio of 2.6267 redeemable convertible preferred shares for each common share:
Exercise
Price
Expiration Dateper Share

Stock

Series E preferred
Common stock

December 27, 2013
March 13, 2015

$ 9.56
$ 3.13

Common Shares as of
December 31,
December 31,
2009
2008

62,752
3,750,000

62,752
—

Fair Value as of
December 31,
December 31,
2009
2008

—
—

—
—

The Company recorded $0.8 million as the fair value of the warrants for Series E preferred stock as a discount to the term loan. The
fair value of the warrants was being amortized to interest expense over the 42-month life of the term loan. Upon repayment and
termination of the term loan, the Company recognized approximately $0.5 million as interest expense for the unamortized balance of the
warrants’ fair value.
Upon the closing of the Company’s initial public offering on May 18, 2007, all outstanding warrants to purchase shares of the
Company’s preferred stock were converted into warrants to purchase shares of common stock. The aggregate fair value of these warrants
as of May 18, 2007, determined to be $2.0 million, was reclassified from liabilities to additional paid-in capital, a component of
stockholders’ equity. No periodic fair value adjustments will be made in future periods.
10.

Commitments and Contingencies

Operating Leases
The Company leases its facilities, which are accounted for as operating leases. The leases generally provide for a base rent plus real
estate taxes and certain operating expenses related to the leases. In February 2008, the Company entered into a non-cancelable lease for
additional office space in Bedford, Massachusetts. The lease expires in September 2010 and provides a renewal option of five years and
escalating payments over the life of the lease. In March 2008, the Company extended the lease of its Bedford, Massachusetts
headquarters facility containing research and development and manufacturing space. Following the extension, the lease expires in
September 2014. The lease is non-cancelable and contains a five year renewal option and escalating payments over the life of the lease.
The Company also leases warehouse facilities in Billerica, Massachusetts. This lease expires in December 2012.
The Company’s operating lease agreements contain scheduled rent increases which are being amortized over the terms of the
agreement using the straight-line method and are included in other liabilities in the accompanying balance sheet. The Company has
considered FASB ASC 840-20, Leases, in accounting for these lease provisions.
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The Company leases its corporate offices under long-term, noncancelable leases with a five-year renewal option. The Company
leases its warehouse facility under a long-term, cancelable lease with a five-year renewal option. The aggregate future minimum lease
payments of these leases as of December 31, 2009, is as follows (in thousands):
Minimum
Lease Payments
(In thousands)

Year

2010
2011
2012
2013
2014
Thereafter
Total

$

$

900
755
755
657
493
—
3,560

Rent expense of approximately $0.8 million, $0.8 million, and $0.5 million was charged to operations as of December 31, 2009,
2008 and 2007, respectively. The Company’s operating lease agreements contain scheduled rent increases, which are being amortized
over the terms of the agreement using the straight-line method, and are included in other long-term liabilities in the accompanying
consolidated balance sheet. Deferred rent was $0.1 million as of December 31, 2008. There was no deferred rent as of December 31, 2009.
Indemnifications
In the normal course of business, the Company enters into contracts and agreements that contain a variety of representations and
warranties and provide for general indemnifications. The Company’s exposure under these agreements is unknown because it involves
claims that may be made against the Company in the future, but have not yet been made. To date, the Company has not paid any claims
or been required to defend any action related to its indemnification obligations. However, the Company may record charges in the future
as a result of these indemnification obligations.
In accordance with its bylaws, the Company has indemnification obligations to its officers and directors for certain events or
occurrences, subject to certain limits, while they are serving at the Company’s request in such capacity. There have been no claims to
date and the Company has a director and officer insurance policy that enables it to recover a portion of any amounts paid for future
claims.
11.

Equity

In April 2007, the Company’s Board of Directors approved a 1-for-2.6267 reverse stock split of the Company’s common stock,
which was executed in May 2007. All share and per share amounts of common and preferred stock in the accompanying consolidated
financial statements have been restated for all periods to give retroactive effect to the stock split.
In May 2007, the Company issued and sold 7,700,000 shares of common stock at a price to the public of $15.00 per share. In June
2007, the Company issued and sold an additional 665,000 shares of common stock at a price to the public of $15.00 per share pursuant
to the underwriters’ partial exercise of their over-allotment option. In connection with the initial public offering, the Company received
total gross proceeds of $125.5 million, or approximately $113.4 million in net proceeds after deducting underwriting discounts and
offering expenses.
In October 2007, in a public offering of 4,898,398 shares of the Company’s common stock at a price to the public of $23.25 per
share by certain of its stockholders, the Company issued and sold 459,759 shares of common stock which were purchasable by the
underwriters upon their exercise of a 30-day over-allotment
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option granted to the underwriters by the Company. The Company did not receive any of the proceeds from the sale of shares of its
common stock by the selling stockholders. Upon the closing of the sale of these shares, the Company received net proceeds of
approximately $9.2 million.
In the year ended December 31, 2007, 157,229 warrants to purchase common stock issued in relation to the Company’s term loan
were exercised, resulting in the issuance of 111,197 common shares. In addition, exercises of employee stock options resulted in the
issuance of 191,232 common shares in 2009, 532,763 common shares in 2008 and 380,192 common shares in 2007.
In March 2009, in connection with the facility agreement entered into with certain institutional accredited investors, the Company
issued warrants to purchase 3.75 million shares of its common stock at an exercise price of $3.13 per share. All warrants issued under the
facility agreement remain unexercised at December 31, 2009 and expire on March 13, 2015. In connection with the Amendment to the
Facility Agreement in September 2009, the Company entered into a Securities Purchase Agreement with the lenders whereby the
Company sold 2,855,659 shares of its common stock to the lenders at $9.63 per share. The Company received aggregate proceeds of
$27.5 million in connection with the sale of its shares.
In October 2009, in a public offering, the Company issued and sold 6,000,000 shares of its common stock at a price to the public of
$10.25 per share. In November 2009, the Company issued and sold an additional 900,000 shares of common stock to the public at a
price of $10.25 per share pursuant to the underwriters’ exercise of their over-allotment option. In connection with the offering, the
Company received total gross proceeds of $70.7 million, or approximately $66.1 million in net proceeds after deducting underwriting
discounts and offering expenses.
Redeemable Convertible Preferred Stock Conversion
Upon the closing of the initial public offering of the Company’s common stock, all redeemable convertible preferred stock
converted to common stock.
Stock Option Plans
In May 2007, upon the closing of the Company’s initial public offering, the Company’s 2007 Stock Option and Incentive Plan (the
“2007 Plan”) became effective and the Company’s board of directors determined not to make any further grants under the Company’s
2000 Stock Option and Incentive Plan. Under the 2007 Plan, awards may be granted to persons who are, at the time of grant, employees,
officers, non-employee directors or key persons (including consultants and prospective employees) of the Company. The 2007 Plan
provides for the granting of stock options, stock appreciation rights, deferred stock awards, restricted stock, unrestricted stock, cashbased awards, performance share awards or dividend equivalent rights. Options granted under the 2007 Plan generally vest over a period
of four years and expire ten years from the date of grant. The Company had originally reserved 535,000 shares of common stock for
issuance under the 2007 Plan, which amount will be increased on each January 1 through January 1, 2012, by a number of shares equal
to the lesser of 3% of the number of shares of common stock of the Company outstanding as of the immediately preceding December 31,
or 725,000 shares. In addition, in May 2008, shares available for grant under the 2007 Plan were increased by 600,000 shares. At
December 31, 2009, 825,423 options were available for future grants.
Under the Company’s 2000 Stock Option and Incentive Plan (the “2000 Plan”), options could be granted to persons who were, at
the time of grant, employees, officers, or directors of, or consultants or advisors to, the Company. The 2000 Plan provided for the
granting of non-statutory stock options, incentive stock options, stock bonuses, and rights to acquire restricted stock. The option price at
the date of grant was determined by the Board of Directors and, in the case of incentive stock options, could not be less than the fair
market value of the common stock at the date of grant, as determined by the Board of Directors. Options granted under the
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2000 Plan generally vest over a period of four years and expire 10 years from the date of grant. The provisions of the 2000 Plan limit the
exercise of incentive stock options. At the time of grant, options are typically immediately exercisable, but subject to restrictions. The
restrictions generally lapse over a period of four years.
Activity under the Company’s Stock Option Plans:

Number of
Options (#)

Weighted
Average
Exercise
Price ($)

Balance, December 31, 2008
Granted
Exercised
Canceled
Balance, December 31, 2009

2,933,832
1,262,940
(191,482)
(462,700)
3,542,590

9.47
6.76
3.02
13.52
8.36

Vested, December 31, 2009
Vested and expected to vest, December 31, 2009(3)

1,729,831
2,923,483

7.56

Aggregate
Intrinsic
Value ($)
(In thousands)

1,121(1)
23,118(2)
12,638(2)
19,761(2)

(1) The aggregate intrinsic value was calculated based on the positive difference between the estimated fair value of the Company’s
common stock as of the date of exercise and the exercise price of the underlying options. The aggregate intrinsic value of options
exercised in the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007, was $1.1 million, $7.9 million and $7.7 million, respectively.
(2) The aggregate intrinsic value was calculated based on the positive difference between the estimated fair value of the Company’s
common stock as of December 31, 2009, and the exercise price of the underlying options.
(3) Represents the number of vested options as of December 31, 2009, plus the number of unvested options expected to vest as of
December 31, 2009, based on the unvested options outstanding at December 31, 2009, adjusted for the estimated forfeiture rate of
16%.
At the time of grant, options granted under the 2000 Plan are typically immediately exercisable, but subject to restrictions.
Therefore, under the 2000 Plan, the number of options exercisable is greater than the number of options vested until all options are fully
vested. At December 31, 2009, there were 3,542,590 options outstanding with a weighted average exercise price of $8.36 and a weighted
average remaining contractual life of 7.2 years. At December 31, 2009, there were 1,837,882 options exercisable with a weighted average
exercise price of $7.76 and a weighted average remaining contractual life of 5.7 years.
2007 Employee Stock Purchase Plan
The 2007 Employee Stock Purchase Plan (“2007 ESPP”) was adopted by the board of directors and approved by stockholders in
April 2007 and became effective upon the closing of the initial public offering in May 2007. The 2007 ESPP authorizes the issuance of
up to a total of 380,000 shares of common stock to participating employees.
All employees who have been employed by the Company for at least six months and whose customary employment is for more than
20 hours a week are eligible to participate in the 2007 ESPP. Any employee who owns 5% or more of the voting power or value of shares
of the Company’s common stock is not eligible to purchase shares under the 2007 ESPP.
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The Company will make one or more offerings each year to employees to purchase stock under the 2007 ESPP. The first offering
began on the date of the closing of our initial public offering and ended on December 31, 2007. Subsequent offerings will usually begin
on each January 1 and July 1 and will continue for six-month periods, referred to as offering periods. Each employee eligible to
participate on the date of the closing of the initial public offering was automatically deemed to be a participant in the initial offering
period.
Each employee who is a participant in our 2007 ESPP may purchase shares by authorizing payroll deductions of up to 10% of his
or her cash compensation during an offering period. Unless the participating employee has previously withdrawn from the offering, his or
her accumulated payroll deductions will be used to purchase common stock on the last business day of the offering period at a price
equal to 85% of the fair market value of the common stock on the last day of the offering period. Under applicable tax rules, an employee
may purchase no more than $25,000 worth of shares of common stock, valued at the start of the purchase period, under the 2007 ESPP in
any calendar year.
The accumulated payroll deductions of any employee who is not a participant on the last day of an offering period will be
refunded. An employee’s rights under the 2007 ESPP terminate upon voluntary withdrawal from the plan or when the employee ceases
employment for any reason.
The 2007 ESPP may be terminated or amended by the board of directors at any time. An amendment that increases the number of
shares of the common stock that is authorized under the 2007 ESPP and certain other amendments require the approval of stockholders.
The Company issued 29,442 shares of common stock in 2009, 18,338 shares of common stock in 2008 and 2,789 shares of common
stock in 2007 to employees participating in the 2007 ESPP. The Company recorded $41,000, $29,000 and $10,000 of stock-based
compensation expense for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively.
Stock-based Compensation Associated with Awards for Non-Employees
Restricted Stock Awards for Non-Employees
During the year ended December 31, 2008, the Company granted 4,000 shares of restricted common stock from the 2007 Plan to a
non-employee in exchange for $0.001 per share. The restricted shares granted had a weighted average fair value of $8.04 based on the
closing price of the Company’s common stock on the date of grant. The intrinsic value of these shares was measured using the closing
price on the date of grant. Of the shares awarded, 1,780 vested on December 31, 2009, and the remaining vest ratably on a quarterly basis.
The shares were valued at approximately $32,000 at their grant date, and the Company will recognize the compensation expense over
the two year vesting period. Approximately $15,000 of stock-based compensation expense related to the vesting of restricted stock was
recognized in the year ended December 31, 2009. No shares vested in the year ended December 31, 2008.
The total fair value of the restricted shares at December 31, 2009 was approximately $32,000, of this amount approximately
$17,000 was unrecognized as of December 31, 2009. The stock-based compensation cost is expected to be recognized over a weighted
average period of 2 years.
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The following table summarizes the status of the Company’s restricted shares since December 31, 2007:
Number of
Shares

Balance, December 31, 2008
Granted
Vested
Forfeited
Balance, December 31, 2009

4,000
—
(1,780)
—
2,220

Weighted
Average
Fair Value

$

$

8.04
—
8.04
—
8.04

Stock-based Compensation Associated with Awards for Employees
Employee Stock-based Awards Prior to January 1, 2006
Compensation costs for employee stock options granted prior to January 1, 2006, were accounted for using the minimum value
method. Under the minimum value method of accounting, compensation expense for employee stock options is based on the excess, if
any, of the fair market value of the Company’s common stock over the option exercise price on the measurement date, which is typically
the date of grant. All options granted were intended to be exercisable at a price per share not less than fair market value of the shares of
the Company’s stock underlying those options on their respective dates of grant. The board of directors determined these fair market
values in good faith based on the best information available to the board of directors and Company’s management at the time of grant.
Employee Stock-Based Awards Granted On or Subsequent to January 1, 2006
The Company recognizes compensation expense for all share-based payment awards made to the its employees, directors and
consultants. Stock-based compensation expense recognized is based on the value of the portion of stock-based awards that is ultimately
expected to vest. The Company attributes the value of stock-based compensation to expense using the straight-line method, which was
previously used for its pro forma information required.
The Company uses the Black-Scholes option pricing model to determine the fair value of stock options. The determination of the
fair value of stock-based payment awards on the date of grant using a pricing model is affected by our stock price as well as assumptions
regarding a number of complex and subjective variables. The estimated grant date fair values of the employee stock options were
calculated using the Black-Scholes option pricing model, based on the following assumptions:

Risk-free interest rate
Expected term (in years)
Dividend yield
Expected volatility

2009

Year Ended December 31,
2008

2007

1.80 - 2.80%
6.25
0
71 - 76%

1.71 - 3.30%
6.25
0
52 - 61%

3.62 - 5.10%
6.25
0
67%

Risk-free interest rate. The risk-free interest rate is based on U.S. Treasury zero-coupon issues with remaining terms similar to the
expected term on the options.
Expected volatility. Expected volatility measures the amount that a stock price has fluctuated or is expected to fluctuate during a
period. The Company determines volatility based on an analysis of comparable companies.
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Expected term. The expected term of stock options represents the period the stock options are expected to remain outstanding and
is based on the “SEC Shortcut Approach” as defined in SAB 107, Share-Based Payments, which is the midpoint between the vesting date
and the end of the contractual term.
Dividend yield. The Company has never declared or paid any cash dividends and does not plan to pay cash dividends in the
foreseeable future, and, therefore, used an expected dividend yield of zero in the valuation model.
Forfeitures. Forfeitures are estimated at the time of grant and revised in subsequent periods if actual forfeitures differ from those
estimates. The Company uses historical data to estimate pre-vesting option forfeitures and record stock-based compensation expense
only for those awards that are expected to vest. If the Company’s actual forfeiture rate is materially different from its estimate, the stockbased compensation expense could be significantly different from what the Company has recorded in the current period.
The weighted average grant date fair value of options granted for the year ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007 was $4.52,
$7.15, and $9.99, respectively. Employee stock-based compensation expense under FASB ASC 718-10 recognized in the year ended
December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007 was $4.2 million, $3.4 million, and $1.5 million, respectively, and was calculated based on awards
ultimately expected to vest. At December 31, 2009, the amount of stock-based compensation capitalized as part of inventory was not
material.
At December 31, 2009, the Company had $10.3 million of total unrecognized compensation expense under FASB ASC 718-10 that
will be recognized over a weighted-average period of 1.3 years.
Shareholder Rights Plan
In November 2008, the Board of Directors of the Company adopted a Shareholder Rights Plan, as set forth in the Shareholder
Rights Agreement between the Company and the rights agent, the purpose of which is, among other things, to enhance the Board’s
ability to protect shareholder interests and to ensure that shareholders receive fair treatment in the event any coercive takeover attempt of
the Company is made in the future. The Shareholder Rights Plan could make it more difficult for a third party to acquire, or could
discourage a third party from acquiring, the Company or a large block of the Company’s common stock.
In connection with the adoption of the Shareholder Rights Plan, the Board of Directors of the Company declared a dividend
distribution of one preferred stock purchase right (a “Right”) for each outstanding share of common stock to stockholders of record as of
the close of business on November 15, 2008. In addition, one Right will automatically attach to each share of common stock issued
between November 15, 2008 and the distribution date. The Rights currently are not exercisable and are attached to and trade with the
outstanding shares of common stock. Under the Shareholder Rights Plan, the Rights become exercisable if a person or group becomes an
“acquiring person” by acquiring 15% or more of the outstanding shares of common stock or if a person or group commences a tender
offer that would result in that person owning 15% or more of the common stock. If a person or group becomes an “acquiring person,”
each holder of a Right (other than the acquiring person) would be entitled to purchase, at the then-current exercise price, such number of
shares of the Company’s preferred stock which are equivalent to shares of common stock having a value of twice the exercise price of the
Right. If the Company is acquired in a merger or other business combination transaction after any such event, each holder of a Right
would then be entitled to purchase, at the then-current exercise price, shares of the acquiring company’s common stock having a value of
twice the exercise price of the Right.
12.

Defined Contribution Plan

The Insulet 401(k) Retirement Plan is a defined contribution plan in the form of a qualified 401(k) plan, in which substantially all
employees are eligible to participate upon the first day of the month following
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30 days of service. Eligible employees may elect to contribute, subject to certain IRS limits, from 1% to 20% of their compensation. The
Company has the option of making both matching contributions and discretionary profit-sharing contributions to the plan. During 2003,
the Company offered a discretionary match of 25% of the first 4% of an employee’s salary that was contributed to the 401(k) plan. The
Company match vests over a four-year period (25% per year). The total amount contributed by the Company was $0.1 million,
$0.2 million, and $0.1 million for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively.
13.

Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes under FASB ASC 740-10. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are determined based
upon differences between financial reporting and tax bases of assets and liabilities and are measured using the enacted tax rates and laws
that will be in effect when the differences are expected to reverse.
A reconciliation of income tax expense (benefit) at the statutory federal income tax rate as reflected in the financial statements is as
follows:
Year Ended December 31,
2008
(Restated)

2009

Tax at U.S. statutory rate
State taxes, net of federal benefit
Tax credits
Change in valuation allowance
Other

(34.00)%
(5.33)
0.17
41.32
(2.16)
—%
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Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effects of temporary differences between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for income tax purposes. Significant components of the Company’s deferred tax assets
(liabilities) consisted of the following:
Year Ended December 31,
2008
2009
(Restated)
(In thousands)

Deferred tax assets:
Net operating loss carryforwards
Start up expenditures
Tax credits
Gain/loss on impairments
Bad debt
Other
Deferred tax liabilities:
Prepaids
Depreciation
Amortization of debt discount
Valuation allowance

$ 116,292
3,424
5,685
2,915
2,828
2,576

$ 85,397
4,540
4,707
2,936
1,505
1,663

(231)
(1,157)
(8,070)
124,262
(124,262)
$
—

(527)
(101)
(9,834)
90,286
(90,286)
$
—

A valuation allowance is required to reduce the deferred tax assets reported if, based on the weight of the evidence, it is more likely
than not that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized. After consideration of the available evidence, both
positive and negative, the Company has determined that a $124.3 million valuation allowance at December 31, 2009, is necessary to
reduce the deferred tax assets to the amount that will more likely than not be realized. The Company also provided a valuation
allowance for the full amount of its net deferred tax asset for the year ended December 31, 2008, because realization of any future tax
benefit was not sufficiently assured.
At December 31, 2009, the Company had approximately $287.3 million, $18.6 million and $5.7 million of federal net operating
loss carryforwards, state net operating loss carryforwards and research and development and other tax credits, respectively, that if not
utilized, will begin to expire in 2020 for federal tax purposes and began to expire in 2005 for state tax purposes. At December 31, 2008,
the Company had approximately $215.6 million, $12.1 million and $4.7 million of federal net operating loss carryforwards, state net
operating loss carryforwards and research and development and other tax credits, respectively. The utilization of such net operating loss
carryforwards and realization of tax benefits in future years depends predominantly upon having taxable income. Under the provisions of
the Internal Revenue Code, certain substantial changes in the Company’s ownership may result in a limitation on the amount of net
operating loss carryforwards and tax credit carryforwards which may be used in future years. As there were significant issuances of
Series C, Series D and Series E redeemable convertible preferred stock in 2003, 2005 and 2006, respectively, to mostly new investors, it
is probable that there will be a yearly limitation placed on the amount of net operating loss and tax credit carryforwards available for use
in future years.
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14.

Quarterly Data (Unaudited)

December 31

Revenue
Gross profit (loss)
Net loss
Net loss per share

$ 11,861
$
1,198
$ (29,197)
$
(1.05)

December 31

Revenue
Gross profit
Net loss
Net loss per share

$ 20,211
$
7,334
$ (14,932)
$
(0.42)

2008 Quarters Ended
(Restated)
September 30
June 30
(In thousands, except per share data)

$ 10,110
$
(87)
$ (21,666)
$
(0.78)

$ 7,417
$ (2,368)
$(24,034)
$ (0.87)

March 31

$ 6,671
$ (3,327)
$(19,874)
$ (0.73)

2009 Quarters Ended
September 30
June 30
(In thousands, except per share data)

$ 18,735
$
5,799
$ (24,725)
$
(0.88)

$ 14,617
$ 3,169
$(20,239)
$ (0.73)

March 31

$ 12,469
$ 1,995
$(19,645)
$ (0.71)

Results for the year ended December 31, 2008 balances have been restated to reflect the retrospective adoption of certain
provisions of FASB ASC 470-20.
Net loss in the quarter ended December 31, 2008, includes the impact of restructuring and impairment related charges of
$8.2 million. See Note 3 for a description of the restructuring and impairment charges.
15.

Subsequent Event

In January 2010, the Company entered into a 5 year distribution agreement with Ypsomed Distribution AG, or Ypsomed, to become
the exclusive distributor of the OmniPod System in eleven countries. It is expected that Ypsomed will begin distributing the OmniPod
System, subject to approved reimbursement, in France, Germany and the United Kingdom in the first half of 2010, in Australia, Belgium,
Finland, Norway, Sweden, Switzerland and the Netherlands in the second half of 2010 and in China in the first half of 2011.
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July 16, 2009
Peter Devlin
65 Walnut Avenue
Andover, MA 01810
Dear Peter:
Insulet Corporation (“Insulet” or the “Company”) is pleased to offer you the full-time position of Chief Commercial Officer, reporting directly to Duane
DeSisto, President and CEO. We are excited about the prospect of you joining our team and look forward to the addition of your professionalism and
experience to help the Company achieve its goals. You are scheduled to begin your employment with the Company on August 17, 2009.
Your base compensation will be $275,000 per year. You will be paid $10,576.92 biweekly in accordance with the Company’s normal payroll practices as
established or modified from time to time. In addition, the company will pay you a signing bonus of $40,000 which will be paid in the second payroll cycle
after your start date and is considered taxable income. You will participate in the Company’s Executive Incentive Compensation Program with a target bonus
of 50% of your 2009 base compensation. You will participate as a Covered Executive in the Company’s Amended and Restated Executive Severance Plan.
This offer of employment is contingent upon the satisfactory completion of background checks.
You will also be eligible to participate in the Company’s benefits programs to the same extent as, and subject to the same terms, conditions and limitations
applicable to, other employees of the Company of similar rank and tenure. These benefits presently include: comprehensive medical, prescription drug, and
dental insurance coverage, with 80% of premiums paid for you and your dependents; Company-paid life insurance coverage at two times your annualized
salary; 401(k) plan; paid holidays and vacation time which will accrue at three weeks per year, per Company policy. For a more detailed understanding of the
benefits and the eligibility requirements, please consult the summary plan descriptions for the programs which will be made available to you.
Subject to approval of the Company’s Board of Directors, you will be granted the option to purchase 180,000 shares of Company common stock, at a
purchase price equal to the fair market value as of the date of the grant. The date of the grant is typically the date of the next regularly scheduled Board of
Directors meeting occurring after your start date. Prior to the grant date, the number of options may be adjusted to reflect a stock split or other similar
transaction. This grant will be subject to and governed by the terms and conditions of a stock option agreement between you and the Company and the
Company’s Stock Option and Incentive Plan, which will include, among other things, a vesting schedule.
Insulet’s normal business hours are 8:00am to 5:00pm, Monday through Friday. Your schedule may vary based on your job responsibilities. This position is
salary exempt and may include

travel and hours greater than a forty hour per-week work schedule. You will be reimbursed for normal travel and lodging expenses outside of the local
Bedford, Massachusetts area.
The Company also requires you to verify that the performance of your position at Insulet does not and will not breach any agreement entered into by you
prior to employment with the Company (i.e., you have not entered into any agreements with previous employers which are in conflict with your obligations
to Insulet). You will be required to sign the Company’s standard Proprietary Information and Non-Competition Agreements as a condition of your
employment with the Company. A copy of these agreements will be made available to you prior to your employment start date.
Also, please bring with you, for the purpose of completing the I-9 form, sufficient documentation to demonstrate your eligibility to work in the United States
on your first day of employment. This verification must occur by the third day of your employment.
We look forward to having you join Insulet. We hope you will be a very valuable contributor to our team going forward. Please provide a response within
2 days acknowledging that you have accepted this offer of employment.
Sincerely,
/s/ Duane DeSisto
Duane DeSisto
Chief Executive Officer
Accepted:
/s/ Peter Devlin
Peter Devlin

EXHIBIT 21.1
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE REGISTRANT
Name of Entity

Sub-Q Solutions, Inc.
Insulet MA Securities Corporation

State/Country of Organization

Delaware
Massachusetts

EXHIBIT 23.1
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
We consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration Statements (Forms S-8 No. 333-144636, 333-153176 and 333-164883) pertaining to the
Insulet Corporation 2000 Stock Option and Incentive Plan, the Insulet Corporation Amended and Restated 2007 Stock Option and Incentive Plan and the
Stand-Alone Inducement Options of Insulet Corporation of our reports dated March 9, 2010 with respect to the consolidated financial statements of Insulet
Corporation and the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting of Insulet Corporation, included in this Annual Report (Form 10-K) for the year
ended December 31, 2009.
/s/ Ernst & Young LLP
Boston, Massachusetts
March 9, 2010

EXHIBIT 31.1
CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER UNDER SECTION 302
I, Duane DeSisto, certify that:
1.

I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of Insulet Corporation;

2.

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this
report;

3.

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4.

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)
for the registrant and have:

5.

a)

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to
ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiary, is made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b)

Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c)

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d)

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent
fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):
a)

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b)

Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting.

Date: March 9, 2010
/s/ Duane DeSisto
Duane DeSisto
President and Chief Executive Officer

EXHIBIT 31.2
CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER UNDER SECTION 302
I, Brian Roberts, certify that:
1.

I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of Insulet Corporation;

2.

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this
report;

3.

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4.

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)
for the registrant and have:

5.

a)

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to
ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiary, is made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b)

Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c)

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d)

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent
fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):
a)

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b)

Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting.

Date: March 9, 2010
/s/ Brian Roberts
Brian Roberts
Chief Financial Officer

EXHIBIT 32.1
INSULET CORPORATION
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
In connection with the Annual Report of Insulet Corporation (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2009, as filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), we, Duane DeSisto, President and Chief Executive Officer of the Company, and Brian
Roberts, Chief Financial Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act
of 2002, to our knowledge, that:
(1)

The Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended; and

(2)

The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

Dated: March 9, 2010
/s/ Duane DeSisto
Duane DeSisto
President and Chief Executive Officer
/s/ Brian Roberts
Brian Roberts
Chief Financial Officer

